
City Council Agenda             September 8, 2020 
 

City of Jacksonville Beach  1 

ZOOM VIRTUAL MEETING NOTICE 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR PUBLIC VIEWING AND PARTICIPATION 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020, AT 7:00 P.M.  

(NO PHYSICAL LOCATION) 

Due to the current restrictions and limitations for social distancing and gatherings surrounding the COVID-
19 crisis, the September 8, 2020, City of Jacksonville Beach, City Council meeting will be conducted in a 
modified manner. The meeting will be conducted virtually, utilizing Zoom technology and webinar 
capabilities. The City is providing numerous additional technological options for public attendance and 
participation in the meeting.   

Governor DeSantis’ Executive Order No. 20-193, extended the Governor’s authorization for local 
government bodies to continue to conduct meetings without an in-person quorum at any specific location, 
and to hold meetings using communications media technology (CMT). On April 6, 2020, the City of 
Jacksonville Beach City Council approved at their public meeting the use of CMT and alternative start 
times to conduct Council meetings and briefings. The following CMT options are available to participate, 
view and listen to the September 8, 2020, City Council meeting: 

1. View and listen to a Livestream of the meeting online: 
• Access the meeting by visiting the City of Jacksonville Beach YouTube Channel: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBvNLjCCZtu9PWDV41cR6-Q 
• View the Livestream via Zoom technology: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89713943797 

2. Listen to the meeting via phone: 
• Dial 1-301-715-8592 
• Webinar ID: 897 1394 3797 
• There is no participant ID number.  If you are asked for this, press #. When dialing in by 

phone, your line will be automatically muted for the duration of the meeting, unless you 
have pre-registered to speak. (Instructions for pre-registration are below.) 

3. Hearing or speech impaired access: 
• Contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service: 1-800-955-8771 (TDD) or 1-800-955-

8770 (Voice). 
4. Submit questions and comments concerning a scheduled agenda item or for the Courtesy of 

the Floor portion of the Agenda: 
• You may provide written comments by: 

• Emailing the City Clerk, Laurie Scott, at cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net; or 
• Via U.S. mail to City Clerk, City Hall, 11 N. 3rd Street, Jacksonville Beach, FL 

32250; or 
• Place a copy of your comments in the drop box at the main entrance of City Hall. 

• Provide your full name and address, and if you are a city business owner, list the business 
name and address. 

• You may also submit a Public Comment Submission Form on the City of Jacksonville 
Beach website. Fill out the form at this link to have your comments read during the 
meeting: https://bit.ly/COJBvirtualmeeting. Comments on an action item and comments 
for Courtesy of the Floor will be read into the record. Submissions will be provided to the 
Council. All Submissions are a public record. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBvNLjCCZtu9PWDV41cR6-Q
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBvNLjCCZtu9PWDV41cR6-Q
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89713943797
mailto:cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net
https://bit.ly/COJBvirtualmeeting
https://bit.ly/COJBvirtualmeeting


City Council Agenda             September 8, 2020 
 

City of Jacksonville Beach  2 

• Written comments will be read into the record at the appropriate time. All other written 
comments received by the deadline will be distributed to the Mayor and City Council 
members and the appropriate staff before the start of the meeting. Comments received 
through these CMT options will be read into the record by the City Clerk or City Attorney. 
Written comments will be limited to three (3) minutes of reading time. 

• Members of the public may also opt to comment via dialing in or utilizing Zoom 
technology, but to do this, they must register in advance. To register, fill out the form at 
this link: https://bit.ly/COJBvirtualmeeting.  

•  It is requested that members of the public register by noon on Monday, September 
8, 2020. 

• Speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes. 
• To either dial in or use Zoom technology, speakers need to ensure they have proper 

working equipment. For dialing in, a telephone with audio/speaker and 
microphone capabilities is required. For participation utilizing Zoom technology, 
smart technology (smartphone/tablet/laptop/desktop) should be equipped with 
both microphone and speaker capabilities. It is up to each speaker to test the 
functionality of their equipment before the meeting starts. If the speaker’s 
equipment is not working correctly during the meeting, the speaker will be unable 
to participate. 

• To check technological requirements and to test your technology, visit the Zoom 
web site here: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-
Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux  

• To download Zoom applications, click here: https://zoom.us/download  
• For the purposes of this meeting, speakers will be clicking “Download” 

under “Zoom Client for Meetings” (using a PC or MAC) or choosing 
your mobile device platform under “Zoom Mobile Apps.” 

• The email address and the online comment form will remain open during the meeting to 
accept comments to be read into the record up until 5 minutes before a particular agenda 
item is addressed by the Mayor.  Public comments for Courtesy of the Floor will be 
accepted until 5 minutes before the Mayor opens that portion of the meeting. 

• For additional information or assistance, please contact the following people prior to the 
meeting: 

• For public comment questions:  Laurie Scott, City Clerk, cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net or 
(904) 247-6299. 

• For questions on connecting to or using CMT or Zoom for the meeting: Jacob 
Board, Communications Manager, jboard@jaxbchfl.net, or (904) 247-4036. 

 
 

NOTICE 
 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities 
needing a special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (904) 
247-6299, no later than one business day before the meeting. 

In accordance with Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, any person desirous of appealing any decision reached at this 
meeting may need a record of the proceedings. Such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

https://bit.ly/COJBvirtualmeeting
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux
https://zoom.us/download


City of Jacksonville Beach Page 1    Printed on 9/3/2020 
 

  

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM TO:  
 
The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 
 
Council Members: 
 
The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council. 
 
OPENING CEREMONIES: INVOCATION, FOLLOWED BY SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
20-165 Budget Workshop held on August 10, 2020 
 
20-166 Budget Workshop held on August 11, 2020 
 
20-167 Council Briefing held on August 17, 2020 
 
20-168 Regular Council Meeting held on August 17, 2020  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 
 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
CITY CLERK 
 
CITY MANAGER 
 
20-169 Authorize Council Member Golding to Participate in the Florida League of Cities 

(FLC) Municipal Administration Legislative Policy Committee Meetings, and to 
Attend the FLC Legislative Conference November 12-13, 2020, on Behalf of the City 

City of Jacksonville Beach  

Agenda 

11 North Third Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Via Video Conference 7:00 PM Tuesday, September 8, 2020    

City Council 



City Council Agenda             September 8, 2020  
 

City of Jacksonville Beach Page 2    Printed on 9/3/2020 

20-170  Award/Reject Bid No. 1920-07, Lift Station No. 2 Replacement to Intercounty 
Engineering, Inc. for Construction Services, and Authorize Construction 
Administration Services with the Project Design Firm, Jones Edmunds 

 
20-171  Award/Reject RFP No. 06-1920, Graffiti Abatement - Continuous Services for 36 

Months to Biotraits Chemical, Inc. (Primary), and Krystal Companies DBA Krystal 
Klean (Alternate) and Authorize the City Manager to Extend the Contract from One 
(1) Year through Two (2) Years in Length Each for a Total Contract Length Not to 
Exceed Five (5) Years 

 
20-172 Approve/Disapprove a Purchase Order in the Amount of $158,346 with a 20% 

Contingency for a Total of $190,015.20 to Fund the Upgrade of our Advanced Control 
Systems Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA) Hardware and 
Software 

 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
20-173  RESOLUTION NO. 2065-2020 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH ESTABLISHING RULES, PROCEDURES AND PROTOCOLS FOR CITY 
COUNCIL LIVE PUBLIC MEETINGS AND BRIEFINGS DURING THE PERIOD 
OF THE DECLARED PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY CAUSED BY COVID-19; 
PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF RECITALS AND LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, 
REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT RESOLUTIONS AND CITY COUNCIL DECISIONS, 
SEVERABILITY, DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
ORDINANCES 
 
20-174 ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8147 (Second Reading) (Public Hearing)   
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES OF 
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES, TO REFLECT 
BEST PRACTICES, REGULATIONS, STANDARDS, AND PROCEDURES FOR 
CODE ENFORCEMENT OF PUBLIC NUISANCE ABATEMENT; PROVIDING 
FOR LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, REPEAL OF CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
20-175 ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8148 (Second Reading) (Public Hearing)   
 

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE CHAPTER 20 “PARKS, RECREATION, AND 
BEACH” AND ASSOCIATED SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, TO PROVIDE UNIFORM 
AND PARK SPECIFIC CODIFIED LOCAL LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS 
AND SPECIFIED AUTHORITY AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS CONCERNING 



City Council Agenda             September 8, 2020  
 

City of Jacksonville Beach Page 3    Printed on 9/3/2020 

THE CITY’S PARKS, PARK PROPERTIES, AND BEACH; PROVIDING FOR 
LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, REPEAL OF CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

20-176 ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8145 (First Reading) (Public Hearing)   
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REVISE CHAPTERS 12 AND 34 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA; TO 
ADAPT THE CITY’S CODE TO NEW FLORIDA STATUTE SECTION 509.102 
CONCERNING MOBILE FOOD DISPENSING VEHICLES; PROVIDING FOR 
LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, 
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
20-177 ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8149 (First Reading) (Public Hearing)   
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: PUD 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 99-7765, ESTABLISHING A PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT: PUD ZONING DISTRICT, SUPPLEMENTING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING REGULATIONS AND ZONING ATLAS FOR THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED UNDER 
CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY. (Isabella Office 
Center PUD) 

 
20-178 ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8150 (First Reading) (Public Hearing)   
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICY PROVIDING 
FOR AN ADDITIONAL PAID HOLIDAY (PRESIDENT’S DAY); PROVIDING 
FOR LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, DIRECTION TO AMEND CITY POLICY, 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
20-179 ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8151 (First Reading) (Public Hearing)   
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8, “CEMETERIES,” OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, CODE OF ORDINANCES BY REVISING 
THE TITLE AND AMENDING SECTION 8-2. “SAME – CITY CLERK TO 
MAINTAIN RECORD OF GRANTEES, ETC.” AND AMENDING SECTION 8-3. 
“DISINTERMENTS; MOLESTING GRAVES.” BY CHANGING THE 
REFERENCE FROM “CITY CLERK” TO “PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT;” PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF RECITALS, 
SEVERABILITY, REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, CODEFICTION, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 
 
 



City Council Agenda             September 8, 2020  
 

City of Jacksonville Beach Page 4    Printed on 9/3/2020 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE 
 
In accordance with Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, any person desirous of appealing any decision reached at this 
meeting may need a record of the proceedings. Such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings 
is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities 
needing a special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (904) 247-6299,  
no later than one business day before the meeting. 
 
You may use this website http://www.jacksonvillebeach.org/publichearinginfo to find information concerning the hearing 
process.  This information is also available in the City Hall first floor display case. 

http://www.jacksonvillebeach.org/publichearinginfo


City of Jacksonville Beach 
Minutes of City Council Workshop 

FY2021 – Budget Workshop 
Monday, August 10, 2020 – 5:00 P.M. 

Via Video Conference 
 
 

WS 200810 min – FY 2021 Budget Workshop Page 1 of 3 

City Manager Mike Staffopoulos called the Budget Workshop to order at 5:00 P.M. 
 
The following City Council Members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor:   William C. Latham 
 
Council Members: Keith Doherty (absent) Georgette Dumont Christine Hoffman  
   Sandy Golding  Cory Nichols   Phil Vogelsang (absent) 
  
Also present were Director of Public Works Dennis Barron, and Director of Planning and Development 
Bill Mann. 
 
Public Works 
Director of Public Works Dennis Barron reviewed the mission statement of the Department.   
 
Mr. Barron reviewed the Department's organization and stated there had been no significant changes in 
staffing within the Department.  Mr. Barron reviewed the Department's recent accomplishments, goals for 
FY2021, performance measures, funding sources, and budget issues.  
 
Distribution and Collection Division 
Mr. Barron stated there are no staff increases in the Distribution and Collection Division.   
 
Mr. Barron highlighted the following topics: 

- Funding $25,000 for GIS updates and enhancements 
- Funding $65,000 to replace one (1) ½ ton pick-up truck and one (1) ½ ton pick-up truck with a 

utility body 
- Water main projects 

 
Pollution Control Plant Division 
Mr. Barron stated the F.O.G Program Manager position was added to the Pollution Control Plant Division.   
 
Mr. Barron reviewed the Capital Outlay projects, highlighting the following:  

- Funding $695,000 for Lift Station Rehabilitation Program 
- Funding $150,000 for Sludge Dewatering Facility design and improvements 
- Funding $175,000 for replacement of Digester stairs 
- Funding $345,000 for Digester and Air Piping 
- Funding $100,000 for Wastewater Plant Outfall Piping 

 
 
 



Minutes of Budget Workshop 
Monday, August 10, 2020 
 
 

WS 200810min – FY2021 Budget Workshop   Page 2 of 3 

Water Plant Division 
Mr. Barron stated there are no staff increases in the Water Plant Division.  Mr. Barron explained the most 
substantial Capital Outlay is $125,000 for the Master Water Plan study. 
 
Streets Division 
Mr. Barron reviewed the objectives for the Street Division.  Regarding the organization of the division, 
Mr. Barron stated the Administrative Assistant position would be moved to the Administrative Division 
and reclassified as an Office Administrator.  Mr. Barron also stated the Heavy Equipment Operator 
position would be reclassified as an Equipment Operator I, II position. 
 
Mr. Barron stated the Capital Outlay for the division is funding for $60,000 to replace two Ford Rangers.  
 
Stormwater Utility Program 
Mr. Barron reviewed the Capital Outlay for the division.   
 
Mr. Barron stated the FDOT project to improve the stormwater drainage system for A1A/Beach Boulevard 
is approximately 90% complete.  The estimated project completion date is mid-September 2020. 
 
Sanitation Utility Program 
Mr. Barron stated there is no Capital Outlay for FY21 for the division.   
 
Community Redevelopment Agency 
Director of Planning and Development Bill Mann explained the Community Redevelopment Agency 
(CRA) consists of two districts: Downtown and South Beach. The Agency receives administrative, 
engineering, and project management support from the City's Planning and Development and Public 
Works departments.   
 
Mr. Mann reviewed the CRA Budget Issues for FY21, stating the increase in Personnel Services are 
attributable to the addition of the CRA Program Manager position and the cost increase associated with 
the new pay plan. 
 
Mr. Mann highlighted the recent program accomplishments for the CRA and reviewed the FY2021 
program goals for the Downtown and South Beach Redevelopment Districts.   
 
Planning & Development Department 
Mr. Mann stated the Operating Costs increased by 56% due to the Council approved addition of 
professional services for short-term vacation rental compliance and commercial building inspection 
services.  
 
Mr. Mann highlighted the Planning and Development Division's recent accomplishments, the division's 
goals for FY2021, and the performance measures for the division. 
 
Mr. Mann stated Host Compliance was bought out by Granicus.  The renewal contract for Host 
Compliance was increased by an additional $8,000.  The new contract is being reviewed. 



Minutes of Budget Workshop 
Monday, August 10, 2020 
 
 

WS 200810min – FY2021 Budget Workshop   Page 3 of 3 

 
Mr. Mann reviewed the Building Inspection and Code Enforcement division's organization and stated two 
Permit Specialist positions had been shifted to different divisions but no additional staff had been hired.   
 
Mr. Mann stated the Building Division issued 3,358 construction-related permits and approved 
construction with a total valuation of $152,044,531.  Construction activity generated approximately 
$968,000 in permit fees.  
 
Mr. Mann stated Code Enforcement processed 287 code cases in FY2019, compared to 772 cases in the 
previous Fiscal year due to voluntary compliance.  
 
Mr. Mann reviewed the Performance Measures for the Building Inspection and Code Enforcement 
divisions. 
 
 
The Workshop adjourned at 6:27 P.M. 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jodilynn Byrd 

Administration Assistant 
 
 

    Approved: 
 
 
   

William C. Latham, Mayor 
  
 
  Date:   
 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Minutes of City Council 

FY2021 - Budget Workshop 
Tuesday, August 11, 2019 – 5:00 P.M.  

Via Video Conference 
 

 

 
WS 200811 min – FY2021 Budget Workshop Page 1 of 4 

City Manager Mike Staffopoulos called the Budget Workshop to order at 5:04 P.M. 
 
The following City Council Members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor:   William C. Latham (absent) 
 
Council Members: Keith Doherty (absent) Georgette Dumont     Christine Hoffman 
  Sandy Golding  Cory Nichols (absent)     Phil Vogelsang (absent)  
 
Also present were Director of Beaches Energy Services Allen Putnam, Budget Officer A.J. Souto, 
Director of Parks and Recreation Jason Phitides, Golf Course Superintendent Trevor Hughes, and Golf 
Facility Manager Bruce Mohler. 
 
Beaches Energy Services  
Director of Beaches Energy Service (BES) Allen Putnam reviewed the organization and staffing of 
each Division with Beaches Energy.   
 
Mr. Putnam spoke about the completed negotiations with TECO Partners to modify the existing 
contract that would allow flexibility to develop a new business model resulting in reduced costs for 
customers.  The natural gas purchase piece should result in a savings of approximately $300,000. 
 
Mr. Putnam highlighted the following areas: 

• System reliability 
• Customer Service 
• Customer growth trends 
• Rate comparison 
• Energy efficiency and conservation 
• Goals for FY2021 
• Performance measures 
• Budget issues 

 
Budget Officer A.J. Souto highlighted the Utility Bill Assistance Program Funding [on file] used for 
the City’s Customer Assistance Relief Emergency (CARE) program, in conjunction with Beaches 
Emergency Assistance Ministry (BEAM) to Beaches Energy customers with utility bill payments.  Mr. 
Souto stated with a consensus from staff, BES was requesting guidance from Council regarding 
doubling the amount of assistance offered ($60,000 to $120,000) annually.  The Council in attendance 
supported the increase.     
 
Mr. Putnam stated the City is continuously pushing for change at the Florida Municipal Power Agency 
(FMPA) to update the strategic plan to focus on the following priorities: 

• Paying off all of the All-Requirements Project debt in 20 years or less 



Minutes of Budget Workshop 
Tuesday, August 11, 2020   
 

 
WS 200811 min – FY2021 Budget Workshop   Page 2 of 4 

• Replacing the all-requirements model with a project-based model to build and operate 
generation facilities 

• Preparing the FMPA for the future by limiting the amount of new power generation built and 
relying on distributed generation resources.  

 
Mr. Putnam reviewed Regulatory Issues stating BES continues to go through dramatic regulatory 
changes. 
 
Mr. Putnam stated natural gas service began in June 2010, and customers would continue to be 
connected as the system expands.   
 
Parks and Recreation 
Director of Parks and Recreation Jason Phitides reviewed the Parks and Recreation Department 
mission statement and the organization of the Department.  Mr. Phitides stated there are 11 Divisions 
within the Department of Parks and Recreation. 
 
Recreation Administration Division 
Mr. Phitides stated the Administration Division is responsible for fiscal and personnel management, 
clerical support services, and staff support of all recreation activities throughout the City.  The staff 
manages all active adult sports and coordinates youth sports. The athletic programs throughout the City 
are extremely popular and have participants from multiple counties.  
 
Mr. Phitides reviewed the Administration’s goals for FY2021, highlighting the possibility of adding 
additional sports programs such as lacrosse, indoor basketball, and pickleball.  Mr. Phitides stated one 
of the ball fields at the Carver Center may be converted into an all-purpose field.   
 
Ocean Rescue Division 
Mr. Phitides stated the Volunteer Lifesaving Corp. helps with recruiting and training the Lifeguards as 
well as covers the patrolling of the beach every Sunday.   
 
Ground Maintenance Division 
Mr. Phitides stated the Grounds Division (with the exception of the Golf Course) utilizes 
approximately 40% of the Department’s budget and maintains 59 properties throughout the City.   
 
Mr. Phitides stated a new pesticide program had been implemented throughout the City, which should 
assist with the aesthetics of the treated locations.  The work of a new Irrigation Specialist would 
coincide with the pesticide program to assist with the maintaining of the sites.   
 
Tennis Center Division 
Mr. Phitides stated two part-time Tennis Court Attendant positions (budgeted at 780 hours each) were 
converted to four part-time Tennis Court Attendants (budgeted at 390 hours each).  This change did 
not change the budget as it is the same number of hours.  Mr. Phitides stated the goal of the Tennis 
Center is to become self-sustaining.  The addition of the eighth court should help reach this goal.  Mr. 
Phitides stated a budgeted Point of Sale system would assist with collecting fees.     
 
 
 



Minutes of Budget Workshop 
Tuesday, August 11, 2020   
 

 
WS 200811 min – FY2021 Budget Workshop   Page 3 of 4 

Carver Center 
Mr. Phitides stated the Carver Center offers services to all ages throughout the day.  New activities are 
continuously added.  An additional Assistant has been added and helps with administering the 
programs. 
 
Mr. Phitides stated the Community Development Block Grant partially funds the Carver Center.  The 
grant pays for approximately 55% of the Carver Center’s budget.  The General Fund would make up 
any funding shortfalls.   
 
Oceanfront Facilities Division 
Mr. Phitides stated $60,000 had been budgeted for the upcoming year to renovate the restroom, 
including one changing table.   
 
Community Center and Exhibition Hall 
Mr. Phitides stated a previous contract for facility set-up was eliminated, and set-up is now completed 
by City staff.  Eliminating this contract saves approximately 30% of the budget. 
 
Special Events 
Mr. Phitides stated there had not been any significant issues with the amended (2017) Special Events 
policy.  A good after-action process with Public Works, Police, and Jacksonville Fire and Rescue 
Department (JFRD), allowing all involved departments to discuss and assess the events. 
 
Mr. Phitides stated the City would continue to seek possible sponsors for the Jazz Concerts (2) to assist 
with offsetting the costs of the event. 
 
Mr. Staffopoulos stated a proposed copy of the new co-sponsored special events policy is under 
review.  
 
Golf Course  
Golf Course Facility Manager Bruce Mohler reviewed the increase in staff as follows: 

- Converting one full-time Golf Shop Attendant position to two part-time positions; one part-
time golf Shop Attendant and one part-time Cart/Range Attendant 

- Adding two part-time seasonal maintenance workers from March through September working 
20 hours each per week 

 
Mr. Mohler stated approximately 52,000 rounds of golf were completed last fiscal year.  The course is 
on target to have 65,000 rounds completed for FY2021.  Mr. Mohler stated the driving range shade 
cover had been installed, and the new restaurant is open. 
 
Mr. Mohler reviewed the play statistics of the course for FY2020, Goals for FY2021, and the Financial 
summary. 
 
Golf Course Superintendent Trevor Hughes stated the recent renovation to the golf course covered a 
small part of the golf course (three acres) only including the greens.  Mr. Hughes stated the remaining 
sections of the golf course (fairways, tees, irrigation, and drainage) were built in 1984, and the 
additional staff is required to maintain the course.     
 



Minutes of Budget Workshop 
Tuesday, August 11, 2020   
 

 
WS 200811 min – FY2021 Budget Workshop   Page 4 of 4 

 
The Workshop adjourned at 6:30 P.M. 
 
Submitted by:  Jodilynn Byrd 

 Administrative Assistant                                   
 
 
                                                                           Approved: 

 
   
  William C. Latham, Mayor 
   
  Date:   



Minutes of City Council Briefing  
Monday, August 17, 2020 – 5:30 P.M.  
Via Video Conference 

 

CC 200817 Briefing min   Page 1 of 2 

The Council Briefing began at 5:30 P.M. The meeting was held via video conference using the 
Zoom platform. 
 
The following City Council Members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor: William C. Latham  
 
Council Members:       Keith Doherty (absent)         Georgette Dumont             Sandy Golding  
 Christine Hoffman                Cory Nichols (absent)       Phil Vogelsang       
 
Also present was City Manager Mike Staffopoulos. 
 
Purpose of Briefing 
The purpose of the Briefing was to update the Council Members about ongoing items in the City.  
Mr. Staffopoulos stated due to limited time, the discussion may not include all the items on the 
Briefing Notice.  Any items not discussed would be included in the next scheduled Council 
Briefing. 
 
City Manager 
Public Works Roadway Condition Strategy 
Bruce Myhre and Mark Nelson, with Jones Edmunds, reviewed the Pavement Management 
Program [on file] suggestions for the City of Jacksonville Beach.  Director of Public Works Dennis 
Barron and Project Engineer Kayle Moore reiterated the suggested program by Jones Edmunds 
would be focused on a proactive roadway maintenance approach. 
 
Conversation ensued regarding not using only computer software generated data to evaluate roads, 
but also include physical inspections.    
 
Ordinance 2020-8147, Chapter 19, Public Nuisance Abatement 
City Attorney Chris Ambrosio presented an overview of the recommended and proposed 
amendments to Ordinance No. 2020-8147, Chapter 19, Public Nuisance Abatement.   
 
Mr. Ambrosio stated the current ordinance is outdated, no longer fits the City’s needs, and lacks 
elements on control and abatement for Code Enforcement.   
 
A possible abatement lien reduction policy would be considered for the City and would be 
reviewed at a later date if needed. 
 
Mr. Ambrosio stated the recommended amendments to Ord. No. 2020-8147 would be presented 
for First Reading at the August 17, 2020, Council Meeting 
 
Discussion on Resuming In-Person Meetings in October 
City Manager Mike Staffopoulos stated Council meetings, special meetings, and briefings for 
September would continue to be held virtually due to CMT (Communications Media Technology).  



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 

CC 200817 Briefing min          Page 2 of 2 

Mr. Staffopoulos stated, if the CMT expires for October, he would like a consensus from the 
Council regarding how to proceed with in-person meetings.   
 
Conversation ensued regarding different options, but the consensus of Council was as follows: 

- Consensus to hold Meetings on 1st and 3rd Mondays in-person, with Briefings on 2nd and 
4th Mondays virtually 

- Meetings could start at 6:00 P.M.; Briefings could continue at 5:30 P.M. 
- Council requested we explore moving all Council Members to the floor rather than split 

between the dais and the floor 
- There were no comments on the proposals for public seating in the Chambers or use of 

online and other means of public input (no phone calls) 
 
The Briefing adjourned at 6:40 P.M. 
 
Submitted by:  Jodilynn Byrd  
   Administrative Assistant    
 Approved: 

 
    
____________________________________ 

  William C. Latham, MAYOR  
 
                                                               
                                                                  Date: _______________________________ 



 
Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, August 17, 2020, at 7:00 P.M. 
via Video Conference 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida  
 
STATEMENT OF THE MAYOR: 
Mayor Charlie Latham made the following statement: 
“Governor DeSantis’ Executive Order No. 20-193, extended the Governor’s authorization for local 
government bodies to continue to conduct meetings without an in-person quorum at any specific 
location and to hold meetings using communications media technology (CMT). 

On April 6, 2020, the City of Jacksonville Beach Council approved at their public meeting the use 
of CMT and alternative start times to conduct their Council meetings and briefings. 

Accordingly, this City Council meeting is being held in a modified manner using CMT.  The 
Council, staff and the public are not physically present in City Hall tonight.    

In a moment, the City Attorney will explain the CMT procedures and adaptations for public 
attendance and public comment that have been put in place. 

The City Council members and City personnel are appearing through CMT.”   

OPENING CEREMONIES: 
Council Member Vogelsang provided the Invocation, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Latham called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
Mayor Latham invited City Attorney Chris Ambrosio to state the CMT procedures and adaptations 
being utilized for this meeting.   
 
Mr. Ambrosio explained the CMT instructions and opportunities for the public to attend and 
participate were published on various platforms in a public notice [on file] and went over the 
options.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
Mayor:   William C. Latham 
 
Council Members: Keith Doherty (Absent)   Georgette Dumont           Sandy Golding  
   Christine Hoffman      Cory Nichols (Absent)     Phil Vogelsang  
 
Also present were City Manager Mike Staffopoulos, City Attorney Chris Ambrosio, and City Clerk 
Laurie Scott. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman, seconded by Mr. Vogelsang, and passed unanimously 

to approve the following minutes: 
• Budget Showcase held on July 31, 2020 
• Budget Workshop held on August 3, 2020 
• Council Briefing held on August 3, 2020 
• Regular Council Meeting held on August 3, 2020 
• Budget Workshop held on August 4, 2020 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 

 
CC 200817 mins                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 of 9 
 

City Clerk Laurie Scott noted there were a couple of scrivener’s errors on the August 3, 2020, 
Budget Workshop minutes that were corrected. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS:   
Council Member Golding announced she had applied to be on the Florida League of Cities 
Municipal Administration Policy Committee so the City could have a voice on the work the Florida 
League of Cities does on that Committee.  The Committee works on the vacation rental issue and 
several other preemption issues.   
 
Ms. Golding also announced the City of Jacksonville Finance Committee would meet on August 
19, 2020, to go over the CIP (Capital Improvement Program) Budget, which had the $500,000 for 
Penman Road.  Ms. Golding added that she, as well as Neptune Beach Vice Mayor Fred Jones, 
sent an email to the Finance Committee members thanking them for the support. 
 
Ms. Golding mentioned Beaches Watch would host “A Conversation with Our Beaches Black 
Youth” on September 2, 2020 (virtually), to hear from them about their experiences growing up at 
the beaches. She said with the national discussion regarding diversity, inclusion, and equity, it 
would be good to hear from the local beach youth and learn from them. 
 
Finally, Ms. Golding thanked JTC Running for the drinking fountains that were donated, which 
are located at the SeaWalk Pavilion and Oceanfront Park. 
 
Council Member Hoffman announced the Beaches Museum Annual Gala, “2020 Beach Legends 
– A Virtual Event,” would be held on September 18, 2020.  Honorees include Ed Malin, Jackie 
Rooney, and the Dickinson family.  Also, in honor of the 100th anniversary of the passing of the 
19th Amendment, a history exhibit called “Breaking Ground: Beyond Bathing Beauties” would be 
put up in October.  
 
Council Member Dumont asked everyone to fill out their 2020 Census.   
 
COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS: 
Mayor Latham extended Courtesy of the Floor to visitors.   
 

• Ken Marsh, 2011 Gail Avenue, Jacksonville Beach, spoke about property appraisal 
information and budget issues from the City FY21 Budget related to the two redevelopment 
districts, referencing submitted slides [on file]. 

CITY CLERK:  No items 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL:   
 
Item #20-153 – Proclamation – Florida Lineworker Appreciation Day 
The City Clerk read the proclamation. 
 
Mayor Latham expressed his thanks to the Lineworkers for the hard work they do.  Director of 
Beaches Energy Allen Putnam stated he would make sure the sentiment was passed along to the 
employees. 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 

 
CC 200817 mins                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 of 9 
 

Item #20-154 – Proclamation – 19th Amendment – 100th Anniversary of Women’s Right to 
Vote 
The City Clerk read the proclamation. 
 
Mayor Latham marked the significance of the anniversary. 
 
CITY MANAGER: 
Item #20-155 – Accept/Reject the Financial Reports for the Month of July 2020 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to accept the financial 

reports for the month of July 2020, as submitted by the Chief Financial Officer. 
 
Discussion: 
There was no Council discussion. 
 
Voice Vote:  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item #20-156 – Approve/Disapprove Construction Services in the Amount of $36,790.00 to 

Allow Flo Power LLC to Complete Work Associated with Sampson 230kV 
Breakers 8W40 & 8W71 Via ITB FMPA 2019-034 

 
Mr. Staffopoulos explained this item is requesting some additional construction services for 
replacement breakers at Sampson Substation.   Director of Beaches Energy Services Allen Putnam 
went over the history of the issues with the breakers.  This work was originally budgeted in 2017. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to approve construction 

services in the amount of $36,790 to allow Flo Power LLC to complete work associated 
with Sampson 230kV breakers 8w40 & 8W71 via Invitation to Bid FMPA 2019-034. 

 
Discussion: 
There was no Council discussion. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Dumont, Golding, Hoffman, Vogelsang, Mayor Latham  
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item #20-157 – Approve/Disapprove Additional Funding from the Water and Sewer Utility 

Fund Operating Reserves to Complete the FY 2020 Sewer Line 
Rehabilitation Project 

 
Mr. Staffopoulos explained this item is seeking to use reserve funding to support the annual Sewer 
Line Rehabilitation Program.  Director of Public Works Dennis Barron explained this is for the 
Pine Grove Sewer Lining Project. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to approve additional 

funding from the Water and Sewer Utility Fund operating reserves to complete the FY 
2020 Sewer Line Rehabilitation Project, as described in the memorandum from the 
Public Works Director dated August 5, 2020. 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 

 
CC 200817 mins                                                                                                                                                              Page 4 of 9 
 

Discussion: 
There was no Council discussion. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Golding, Hoffman, Vogelsang, Dumont, Mayor Latham  
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item #20-158 – Award/Reject Proposal Number 04-1920, Debris Monitoring Services, to 

Debris Tech, LLC for a Five (5) Year Contractual Agreement 
 
Mr. Staffopoulos explained this item is seeking to award an RFP for debris monitoring services.  
This would put a new five-year contract in place.  Mr. Barron stated this is our current debris 
monitoring contract, and the City has a very good relationship with them.  Mayor Latham 
concurred the contractor had done a very good job. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to award Proposal 

Number 04-1920, Debris Monitoring Services, to the highest-ranked respondent, Debris 
Tech, LLC, for a five (5) year contractual agreement. 

 
Discussion: 
There was no Council discussion. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes –Hoffman, Vogelsang, Dumont, Golding, Mayor Latham  
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
RESOLUTIONS:   
Item #20-159 – RESOLUTION NO. 2059-2020  
 
Mayor Latham requested the City Clerk read Resolution No. 2059-2020 by title only, whereupon 
Ms. Scott read the following: 
 

“A RESOLUTION APPROVING TWO PERPETUAL EASEMENTS 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AND 
THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, 
FOR USE OF THE CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY TO FACILITATE AN FDOT 
PEDESTRIAN SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT ALONG STATE 
ROAD A1A AT 15TH AVENUE NORTH; PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE 
FINDINGS, PUBLIC PURPOSES, DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY  AND 
RESPONSIBILITY, CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.” 

Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Vogelsang and seconded by Ms. Golding to authorize the Mayor 
of the City of Jacksonville Beach to execute Resolution No. 2059-2020 and the 
Perpetual Easement (Parcels 800 and 801) documents having identification numbers of 
Section No. 72100, F.P. No 4411941. 

Mr. Staffopoulos explained the Florida Department of Transportation is moving forward with their 
final design plans of two new pedestrian crossings on A1A (3rd Street) north of Beach Boulevard.  
They are proposing two crossings, one at 2nd North, and the other at 15th North.  In order to proceed 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 

 
CC 200817 mins                                                                                                                                                              Page 5 of 9 
 

with the crossing at 15th North, they need access to property under the control of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach in order to install their equipment to match their standards for safety.  The City 
does not have a problem with the issuance of these perpetual easements. 
 
Mayor Latham stated it had been a long time since the City had requested these crossings.  He 
believed it was during his first year as mayor. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Vogelsang, Dumont, Golding, Hoffman, Mayor Latham  
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item #20-160 – RESOLUTION NO. 2060-2020  
 
Mayor Latham requested the City Clerk read Resolution No. 2060-2020 by title only, whereupon 
Ms. Scott read the following: 
 

“A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, ADOPTING A POLICY FOR THE CITY COUNCIL TO 
REVIEW AND APPROVE REQUESTS FOR HONORARY STREET NAME 
DESIGNATION; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF RECITALS, REPEAL 
OF PRIOR INCONSISTENT RESOLUTIONS AND COUNCIL 
DECISIONS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.” 

Mr. Staffopoulos explained this resolution would put a new policy in place, creating an honorary 
street naming program in the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to adopt Resolution No. 

2060-2020, establishing an honorary street name designation policy for the City of 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

Ms. Golding stated she wanted to propose adding a couple of things.  She referenced a list of 
questions she submitted to the Director of Parks and Recreation, Jason Phitides.  She found other 
cities included the word “Honorary” on the installed sign above the name of the person being 
honored, and it wouldn’t cost any more to add the word to the sign.  Ms. Golding also said the 
contributions did not have to be financial in nature and thought it would be good to add that under 
the provisions in A.1. in the definition of Honoree. 
 
Amended Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Golding and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to include 

“Honorary” above the name of the honoree on the sign, and add “said 
contributions do not have to be financial in nature” to Provision A.1. 

 
Voice Vote:  The motion to amend Resolution No. 2060-2020 passed unanimously. 
 
Vote on the original motion (as amended): 
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Dumont, Golding, Hoffman, Vogelsang, Mayor Latham  
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 

 
CC 200817 mins                                                                                                                                                              Page 6 of 9 
 

Item #20-161 – RESOLUTION NO. 2061-2020  
 
Mayor Latham requested the City Clerk read Resolution No. 2061-2020 by title only, whereupon 
Ms. Scott read the following: 
 

“A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
ADOPTING A POLICY FOR CITY COUNCIL TO REVIEW AND 
APPROVE REQUESTS FOR NAMING AND RENAMING CITY 
BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF 
RECITALS, REPEAL OF PRIOR INCONSISTENT RESOLUTIONS AND 
COUNCIL DECISIONS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.” 
 

Mr. Staffopoulos explained this resolution is a new policy that would allow for the renaming of 
City buildings and facilities, such as parks. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to adopt Resolution No. 

2061-2020, establishing a building and facility naming and renaming policy for the City 
of Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

Amended Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Golding and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to add 
clarification in section D.1. that asks for clear evidence that the Honoree has 
made a significant and lasting contribution by referencing the criteria in 
section B.1.c. 

 
Voice Vote:  The motion to amend Resolution No. 2061-2020 passed unanimously. 
 
Vote on the original motion (as amended): 
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Golding, Hoffman, Vogelsang, Dumont, Mayor Latham  
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ORDINANCES: 
Item #20-162 – ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8146 (Second Reading) 
 
Mayor Latham requested the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2020-8146 by title only, whereupon 
Ms. Scott read the following: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: PUD 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2019-8121, ESTABLISHING A PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT: PUD ZONING DISTRICT, SUPPLEMENTING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING REGULATIONS AND ZONING ATLAS 
FOR THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED 
UNDER CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY.”   

Mr. Staffopoulos explained this was the second reading for the expansion of Pablo Hamlet.  He 
said it was originally planned to be two additional buildings, but the plan was changed to reduce 
the density down to one building. 
 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 

 
CC 200817 mins                                                                                                                                                              Page 7 of 9 
 

Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to adopt Ordinance No. 
2020-8146, amending PUD Rezoning Ordinance No. 2019-8121, governing the 
property located at 1600 Shetter Avenue, by providing a new project narrative and site 
plan. (Pablo Hamlet Senior Living) 

 
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Hoffman, Vogelsang, Dumont, Golding, Mayor Latham   

The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item #20-163 – ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8147 (First Reading)(Public Hearing) 
 
Mayor Latham requested the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2020-8147 by title only, whereupon 
Ms. Scott read the following: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE CHAPTER 19 – 
NUISANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, TO REFLECT BEST PRACTICES, REGULATIONS, 
STANDARDS, AND PROCEDURES FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT OF 
PUBLIC NUISANCE ABATEMENT; PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE 
FINDINGS, REPEAL OF CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.”   

Mayor Latham read the following: 
“This ordinance is before the Council for a public hearing and consideration on its first reading.” 
 
Public Hearing: 
No one had registered to speak on this item, and no public comments were submitted. 
 
Mayor Latham closed the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Ambrosio noted a correction would be made to Ordinance No. 2020-8147 that would be 
incorporated into the motion.  The change is to Section 19-7(7), to add “Florida Department of 
Financial Services prevailing legal rate.”  The draft ordinance included in the agenda package only 
had the wording “legal rate.”  Mayor Latham stated the change would be considered a scriveners 
error. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to adopt Ordinance No. 

2020-8147 to revise, amend, and add new sections to City Code of Ordinances Chapter 
19 – Public Nuisance Abatement. 

Mr. Vogelsang noted for the benefit of those who had not attended (virtually) the Council Briefing 
held before this Council meeting, this would create a policy with regard to waiver of liens, and a 
City process for that. 

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Vogelsang, Dumont, Golding, Hoffman, Mayor Latham   
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 

 
CC 200817 mins                                                                                                                                                              Page 8 of 9 
 

Item #20-164 – ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8148 (First Reading)(Public Hearing) 
 
Mayor Latham requested the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2020-8148 by title only, whereupon 
Ms. Scott read the following: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE CHAPTER 20 “PARKS, RECREATION, 
AND BEACH,” AND ASSOCIATED SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
TO PROVIDE UNIFORM AND PARK SPECIFIC CODIFIED LOCAL 
LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS AND SPECIFIED AUTHORITY 
AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS CONCERNING THE CITY’S PARKS, 
PARK PROPERTIES, AND BEACH, PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE 
FINDINGS, REPEAL OF CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATIONS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.”   

Mayor Latham read the following: 
“This ordinance is before the Council for a public hearing and consideration on its first reading.” 
 
Public Hearing: 
Mr. Ambrosio explained this ordinance would create a Chapter 20, which is going to be for Parks, 
Recreation, and Beach.  It is essentially a new chapter, as the existing Chapter 20 had no body or 
substance.  The chapter would provide regulations, rules, and laws for specific parks, and generally 
across all parks and recreation areas, as well as the beaches.   
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Hoffman and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to adopt Ordinance No. 

2020-8148, creating a new City Code of Ordinances Chapter 20 – Parks, Recreation, 
and Beach. 

No one had registered to speak on this item, and no public comments were submitted. 
 
Mayor Latham closed the public hearing. 
 
Discussion: 
Ms. Golding referenced questions she sent to Mr. Phitides (on 8/17/2020) to request a correction 
to Section 20-16.(5)d. 
 
Amended Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Golding and seconded by Mr. Vogelsang to modify 

Section 20-16(5)d. to read, “Courts will be assigned by HTC staff.”   
 
Voice Vote:  The motion to amend Ordinance No. 2020-8148 passed unanimously. 
 
Discussion continued with Mr. Ambrosio adding there had been problems with coals and wood 
from fires not been removed or not fully extinguished on the beach.  The Fire Marshal and 
Lifeguards have had safety concerns. 
 
 
 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
 
 

 
CC 200817 mins                                                                                                                                                              Page 9 of 9 
 

Vote on the original motion (as amended): 
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Dumont, Golding, Hoffman, Vogelsang, Mayor Latham  
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:05 P.M. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Laurie Scott 

City Clerk 
 
 

        Approval: 
 
 
              
        William C. Latham, MAYOR 
 
        Date:       
 

LS: sg 



 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL  32250 

Phone: 904.247.6268 

 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:    Mayor and City Council 

FROM:   Michael Staffopoulos, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Florida League of Cities Legislative Policy Committee Attendance  

DATE: August 25, 2020 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Each year, municipal officials (both elected and appointed) from across the state 
volunteer to serve on one of the Florida League of Cities (FLC) five Legislative 
policy committees.  Appointments are typically a one-year commitment and involve 
developing the FLC’s Legislative Action Agenda detailing priority issues that are 
most likely to affect daily municipal governance and local decision making during 
the upcoming legislative session.  Policy committee members also help FLC staff 
understand the real-world implications of proposed legislation and are asked to 
serve as advocates throughout the legislative process. 
 
Policy committees supporting the FLC include: 

• Finance, Taxation & Personnel 
• Land Use & Economic Development 
• Municipal Administration 
• Transportation & Intergovernmental Relations 
• Utilities, Natural Resources & Public Works 

 
This year’s meetings are scheduled as follows: 

• September 18, 2020, from 10:00 am to 3:00 pm (virtual Zoom meeting) 
• October 23, 2020, from 10:00 am to 3:00 pm in Orlando (or via Zoom) 
• November 12, 2020 from 10:00 am to 12:00 pm during the FLC Legislative 

Conference (or via Zoom) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



dddddddMdd 

Memorandum 
Florida League of Cities Legislative Policy Committee Attendance 
August 25, 2020             Page 2 of 2  
 
 
Councilor Golding has signed up for the Municipal Administration Legislative policy 
committee.  As such, she may be required to attend the second and third meetings 
of the committee (in October and November) in person.  Further, she has 
requested to attend the FLC Legislative Conference, scheduled for November 12-
13, of which the third policy committee meeting would be a part of if held in person.  
There are sufficient funds in the legislative travel and training budget to support 
her participation on the committee and her attendance at the respective meetings 
in Orlando and the conference. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION  
 
Authorize Councilor Golding to participate in the FLC Municipal Administration 
Legislative policy committee meetings, and to attend the FLC Legislative 
conference November 12-13, 2020 on behalf of the City. 



 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

Operations & 

Maintenance Facility 

Department of Public 

Works 

1460-A Shetter Avenue 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL  32250 

Phone: 904.247.6219 

Fax: 904.247.6117 

 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Dennis W. Barron, Jr., Director of Public Works 
  
SUBJECT: Bid No. 1920-07, Lift Station No. 2 Replacement 
 
DATE: August 27, 2020 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Lift Station No. 2, located at 4th Street North and 6th Avenue North is one of the 
oldest of the City’s Master lift stations and is in need of replacement.  It was 
originally constructed around 1946 and has undergone several upgrades since that 
time.  This project involves new construction of: concrete wetwell with 
Spectrashield coating, submersible pumps and motors, piping, valves, fittings, by-
pass pumping, generator with enclosure, electrical, SCADA instrumentation, 433 
L.F. of 16-inch sewer force main, manifold connection with Lift Station No. 10 to 
eliminate re-pumping, 733 L.F. of 6-inch PVC water main on Palm Tree Road from 
2nd Avenue North to 4th Avenue North, asphalt pavement removal and replacement 
and other sitework items.   
 
The City advertised the project to fifteen (15) contractors on July 1, 2020, and five 
(5) contractors submitted bids electronically for the project. The bids were 
evaluated for conformance with the criteria set forth in the bidding documents. The 
corrected Total Base Bid prices from the five (5) contractors ranged from 
$1,888,652 to $2,797,397.  The engineer’s Opinion of Cost for this project was 
$1,512,128.  Intercounty Engineering, Inc. was the lowest responsive, responsible 
bidder in the amount of $1,888,652.    
 

Unit Price Bid No: 1920-07 
Lift Station No.2 Replacement 

DESCRIPTION COST RECOMMENDATION 

LS-2 Unit Price Bid  
 

$1,888,652.00 
 

• Award to Intercounty 
Engineering, Inc., (the lowest 
qualified bidder)   

10% Contingency $188,865.20 
Construction Total: $2,077,517.20 

 Construction Administration 
(C&A) Services $59,506.00 

• Authorize C&A Services with 
Jones Edmunds (the 
project’s design firm) 10% Contingency $5,950.60 

C&A Services Total: $65,456.60 

GRAND TOTAL:  $ 2,142,973.80 
 

  



 

Memorandum 
Bid No. 1920-07, Lift Station No. 2 Replacement  
August 27, 2020             Page 2 of 2  
 
 
The design consultant’s Recommendation of Award letter, Construction 
Administration fee, and Bid Tabulation Form are attached. 
 
Several factors, including additional site improvements, current industry-wide 
construction and materials cost escalations and the COVID-19 pandemic has 
resulted in the increased construction cost of the project.  Funding is available in 
the Water and Sewer Utility Fund operating reserves. The budget will be amended 
as part of the FY2020 year-end budget adjustment and the funds will be spent from 
the following account: 420-07-0706-535-63-563000 VREH02 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Award/Reject Bid No. 1920-07, Lift Station No. 2 Replacement to Intercounty 
Engineering, Inc. for construction services, and authorize construction 
administration services with the project design firm, Jones Edmunds as described 
in the memorandum from the Public Works City Engineer dated August 27, 2020. 
 
 
 

















 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

Operations & 

Maintenance Facility 

Department of Public 

Works 

1460-A Shetter Avenue 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL  32250 

Phone: 904.247.6219 

Fax: 904.247.6117 

 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Mike Staffopoulos, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Dennis Barron, Jr., Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT:  RFP No. 06 -1920, Graffiti Abatement - Continuous Services for 36 

Months 
 
DATE:  August 10, 2020 
        
BACKGROUND   
 
The City has an ongoing program for removal of undesired applications of various 
compositions on various surfaces throughout the City on public property and City rights-
of-ways. 

 
This RFP was to identify and select a qualified firm that has the capability and 
professional experience necessary for graffiti abatement services and other similar type 
work, as needed, throughout the City for Public Works and other City departments. 

 
Six (6) invitations were issued and two (2) were received by the closing date. 
Consideration for the award was based on evaluating the submitted Proposals 
according to four (4) Evaluation Criteria as summarized in the following chart. 
 

VENDOR EVALUATION CRITERIA Total Rank Hourly 
Rate 1 2 3 4 

Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 23.3 23.3 25 21.6 93.33 1 $95.00 
Krystal Companies dba Krystal Klean 21.6 21.6 23.3 25 91.66 2 $65.00 
• Evaluation Criteria: 1. Method of Approach (25%), 2. Qualifications and Experience (25%), 3. 

References (25%), 4. Pricing (25%).   
• The Evaluation Committee Collective Score Sheet attached. 
• The Notice of Intent for Approval and Award attached. 
• The RFP specification states: “The resulting unit price contract for continuous services for three 

(3) years may be extended for additional terms, from one (1) through two (2) years in length 
each, for a total contract length not to exceed five (5) years.  Extension terms are subject to 
mutual consent of the CITY and the CONTRACTOR.”  

• The bid specification includes a section titled Price Adjustment Provision for Unit Prices based 
on CPI Change that may be applied after the first three (3) years of the contract term. Pricing 
may be adjusted in the remaining two (2) years based on the Consumer Price Index mutually 
agreed upon between the City and Contractor. 

 
 



 

 
 
Memorandum 
RFP No. 06-1920, Graffiti Abatement  
August 10, 2020                          Page 2 of 2 
 
 
The committee recommends Biotraits Chemical, Inc. as the primary, which received 
the highest ranking from the committee due to their substantial references, 
experience and performance for the City the past eight (8) years (both quality and 
reliability).  The committee also recommends an alternate: Krystal Companies dba 
Krystal Klean. Having a choice of two (2) qualified Contractors under contract 
affords the City the flexibility with any scheduling difficulties, urgent circumstances, 
and/or to negotiate the best possible solution and price for a project in the best 
interests of the City without sacrificing service quality. 
 
Contract funding is subject to annual appropriations of the various departments 
utilizing the resulting continuous service contract and to the City’s purchasing policy.  
As an example for 2020, $30,000 is budgeted for graffiti abatement annually in the 
General Fund Contractual Services Account for the Public Works Streets Division. 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Award/Reject Proposal Number 06-1920, Graffiti Abatement - Continuous Services 
for 36 Months to the highest ranked respondent, Biotraits Chemical, Inc. (primary), 
and Krystal Companies dba Krystal Klean (alternate) and authorize the City 
Manager to extend the contract from one (1) year through two (2) years length each 
for a total contract length not to exceed five (5) years. 
 
 



VENDOR Member 1 Member 2 Member 3 SCORE
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 25 25 20 23.33333333
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 20 20 25 21.66666667

VENDOR Member 1 Member 2 Member 3 SCORE
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 25 25 20 23.33333333
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 25 20 20 21.66666667

VENDOR Member 1 Member 2 Member 3 SCORE
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 25 25 25 25
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 20 25 25 23.33333333

VENDOR Member 1 Member 2 Member 3 SCORE
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 25 20 20 21.66666667
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 25 25 25 25

VENDOR SCORE Rank
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 93.33333333 1
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 91.66666667 2

 

 Criteria 1 - Method of Approach (25 Points)

 Criteria 2 - Qualification and Experience (25 points)

  Criteria - 3 References (25 points)

  Criteria - 4 Price Proposal (25 points)

 



 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

Property and 

Procurement Division 

1460A Shetter Avenue 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6229 

Email: purchasing@jaxbchfl.net 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

PROPERTY AND PROCUREMENT DIVISION 

This is the only recommendation notice you will receive. If there are other 

representatives in your firm working on this project, please forward to 

their attention. 
 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO SUBMIT RFP FOR APPROVAL AND 
AWARD BY CITY COUNCIL 

 

Date:  August 5, 2020 
 

From:  Luis F. Flores, Property and Procurement Officer 
 

RE: RFP No. 06-1920 Graffiti Abatement 
 

Recommendation will be presented to the City Manager for: 
 

RFP Number: 06-1920 
Title: Graffiti Abatement 
 

Award to: Biotraits Chemical, Inc. (Primary) and Krystal Companies, LLC 
dba Krystal Klean (Alternate) 

 

Attached is the Selection Committee Collective Summary. 
 

In accordance with the procedures set forth in Section XII K., of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach Purchasing Manual, a written notice of intent to file a protest 
must be filed with the Property and Procurement Officer within three (3) business 
days, Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM – 4:00 PM, after receipt by the respondent 
of the Notice of Intent To Submit RFP for Approval and Award By City Council 
from the Property and Procurement Officer. 
 

The City reserves the right to further negotiate any proposal, including price, with 
the highest rated respondent. If an agreement cannot be reached with the highest 
rated respondent, the City reserves the right to negotiate and recommend award 
to the next ranked respondent or subsequent respondents, until an agreement is 
reached. 
 

If awarded, please do not proceed with any work prior to receiving an official City 
of Jacksonville Beach Purchase Order and/or Notice-to-Proceed letter. 
 

We would like to thank each respondent for their submittal. 
 

 Luis F. Flores      
Luis F. Flores, Property and Procurement Officer 
1460A Shetter Avenue, Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 



VENDOR Member 1 Member 2 Member 3 SCORE
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 25 25 20 23.33333333
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 20 20 25 21.66666667

VENDOR Member 1 Member 2 Member 3 SCORE
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 25 25 20 23.33333333
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 25 20 20 21.66666667

VENDOR Member 1 Member 2 Member 3 SCORE
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 25 25 25 25
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 20 25 25 23.33333333

VENDOR Member 1 Member 2 Member 3 SCORE
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 25 20 20 21.66666667
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 25 25 25 25

VENDOR SCORE Rank
Biotraits Chemical, Inc. 93.33333333 1
Krystal Companies, LLC dba Krystal Klean 91.66666667 2

 

 Criteria 1 - Method of Approach (25 Points)

 Criteria 2 - Qualification and Experience (25 points)

  Criteria - 3 References (25 points)

  Criteria - 4 Price Proposal (25 points)

 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 1 of 32 
 

City of Jacksonville Beach 
Property and Procurement Division 

1460A Shetter Ave., Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 
Purchasing@jaxbchfl.net 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

 

RFP Number: 06-1920 
RFP Title: GRAFFITI ABATEMENT FOR THE CITY OF 

JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
 
 

Submittal Deadline 
Day: Wednesday 
Date: July 15, 2020 
Time: 2:00 P.M. 

Location: Property and Procurement 

Address: 1460A Shetter Ave., Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

 
 
 

ANTICIPATED TIME LINE: The anticipated schedule for this RFP is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RFP Advertised 17-June-2020 
Deadline to Submit Questions 3-July-2020 
Addendum (if necessary) Issued 8-July-2020 
Submission Deadline 15-July-2020 
RFPs Opened 15-July-2020 

  

mailto:Purchasing@jaxbchfl.net


City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 2 of 32 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 
Electronic proposals, subject to the terms and conditions specified in this Request for Proposals (RFP), will be 
received until Wednesday, July 15, 2020 at 2:00 p.m., and acknowledged publicly by the Property and 
Procurement Division, 1460A Shetter Avenue, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 for furnishing the following: 
 

RFP Number: 06-1920 
Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 

 
Proposal submission with the company name, RFP number and title in the file name will be sent to: 

 
https://cojbftp2.jaxbchfl.net/public/folder/bI_oZNdIXE_y_IHKgufEow/RFP%2006-1920 
Password: 7J(3VgQ% 

 
It is the respondent’s responsibility to ensure that all files for the proposal are able to be received by the City. 
Completed responses to this RFP will only be received electronically. The response should include One (1) PDF of 
the entire proposal with the required signatures. This will serve as the official submitted proposal. 
 
Electronic submissions received after the posted due date and/or time will not be considered. Modifications 
received after the due date and/or letters of withdrawal received after the due date or after contract award, whichever 
is applicable, will not be considered. 
 
No verbal interpretations will be made of any proposal documents. Requests for such interpretations shall be made 
via email to Purchasing@jaxbchfl.net at least seven (7) days prior to the proposal opening date. Interpretation will 
be in the form of an addendum and issued to all respondents. 
 
RFP opening call – in information: 
As authorized by the governors executive order and due to the current restrictions and limitations for social 
distancing and gatherings surrounding the COVID-19 crisis, we are conducting a telephonic RFP opening on 
Wednesday, July 15, 2020 at 2:00pm. 
 
The Governor's Executive Order Number 20-69, addressing Local Government Public Meetings, states local 
government bodies may utilize communications media technology (CMT), as provided in section 120.54(5)(b)2., 
Florida Statutes. 
 
The following CMT telephone options are available to listen to the July 15, 2020 RFP opening. 
 
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
US: +1(470)8692200 (US East) 

+1(623)4049000 (US West) 
+1(720)9027700 (US Central) 
+1(773)2319226 (US North) 
+1(469)4450100 (US South) 

Meeting ID: 149 957 1554 
 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
 
Luis F. Flores 
Property and Procurement Officer 
1460A Shetter Avenue, Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 
 

https://cojbftp2.jaxbchfl.net/public/folder/bI_oZNdIXE_y_IHKgufEow/RFP%2006-1920
mailto:Purchasing@jaxbchfl.net


City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 3 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
1.1 INSTRUCTIONS TO RESPONDENTS 
 
 Specifications that are explicit to this particular RFP 06-1920 are at Exhibit “A”, which begins 

on page 23. 
 
 Respondent must provide the following, completely filled out, appropriately executed, and 

timely submitted as the minimal proposal package. These required documents start on page 16: 
 

 Title Page, Table of Contents and Letter of Transmittal, 
 Proposal Tender Form (2 pages), 
 Forms 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 (5 pages), and 
 Method of Approach, Qualifications and Experience and References. 

 
The CITY will evaluate submittals based on the criteria set forth in this package. Fees may be 
requested as part of the package. However, if fees are requested, the CITY reserves the right, at 
its sole discretion, to exclude the fees from the evaluation process. The evaluation process will 
consider all other requested criteria to determine which firm is the most highly qualified to 
perform the required services. 

 
Failure to comply with the requirements of this paragraph may be construed by the CITY as 
proper grounds for disqualifying any proposal at the CITY’s sole discretion. 

 
1.2 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. General. It is the purpose and intent of this contract to secure the supplies and/or services 
listed herein for the City of Jacksonville Beach, Jacksonville Beach, Florida, hereinafter 
called the “CITY.” 

 
B. Time for CITY Acceptance. Respondent shall honor its bid proposal for 90 days from 

Submission Deadline date. 
 

C. Effective Contract Term Start Date. The effective contract term start date shall be the date of 
award by the CITY or date of Notice to Proceed, whichever is later. 

 
D. Extension of Contract. If the CITY should have a need to re-advertise for proposals, the 

contract resulting from this RFP shall automatically be extended month-to-month past its 
term end date. This mandatory extension will allow the CITY to receive and assess 
proposals, to award a new contract, and to ensure a smooth, cooperative and seamless 
transition between contractors; to minimize impact and disruption to customers; and, to 
maintain public safety and health standards. 

 
E. Contract Termination. Subject to a thirty (30) day written notice, the CITY reserves the right 

to terminate the resulting contract for the following causes: 
1) The Contractor fails to perform the work in a satisfactory manner as determined by the 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 4 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

CITY. 
2) The Contractor fails to perform the work in a timely manner as determined by the CITY. 
3) For convenience. By the CITY, effective upon the receipt of notice by CONTRACTOR. 

The CITY's performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon 
annual appropriations. 

 
F. Award. 

1) The CITY reserves the right to waive informalities, to reject any and all proposals, in 
whole or in part, and to accept the proposal that in its judgment will best serve the 
interest of the CITY. 

2) The CITY specifically reserves the right to reject any conditional proposal and will 
normally reject those that make it impossible to determine the true amount of the 
submittal. Each item must be submitted separately and no attempt shall be made to tie 
any item or items together. 

 
G. Inspection. All supplies and workmanship shall be subject to inspection and test after arrival 

at destination. In case any articles are found to be defective, or otherwise not in conformity 
with the specification requirement, the CITY shall have the right to reject such articles. 

 
H. Payments. The Contractor shall be paid, upon the submission of an invoice, the prices 

stipulated herein for articles delivered and accepted. Invoices must show Purchase Order 
Number. Payments shall be made in conformance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act and 
after approval by the CITY Finance Department. Payment is contingent upon appropriation 
of funds by the City Council. 

 
1.3 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

The information in this RFP package is provided to facilitate proposals. Much effort was made to 
provide necessary and accurate information, but the CITY is not to be penalized for any lack of 
completeness. If you require further information regarding this submittal, please contact Luis F. 
Flores, Property and Procurement Officer, in the Property and Procurement Division via email at 
Purchasing@jaxbchfl.net. 

 
1.4 ADDENDA TO THE RFP 
 

If any addenda are issued to this RFP, a good faith attempt will be made to deliver a copy to each 
of those respondents, who, according to the records of the Property and Procurement Division 
previously requested a copy of this RFP. However, prior to submitting a proposal, it shall be the 
responsibility of the respondent to contact the CITY’s Property and Procurement Division at 
Purchasing@jaxbchfl.net to determine if any addenda were issued and if so, to obtain such 
addenda for attachment to, and consideration with, the RFP. Respondents should either 
acknowledge receipt of such addendum(s) on their proposal, or attach such addendum(s) to their 
proposal. Additionally, all documents associated with this RFP are available on the CITY’s 
webpage: 
 
http://www.jacksonvillebeach.org/government/departments/finance/bidrfp-rfq-listings 

  

mailto:Purchasing@jaxbchfl.net
mailto:Purchasing@jaxbchfl.net
http://www.jacksonvillebeach.org/government/departments/finance/bidrfp-rfq-listings


City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 5 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.5 USE OF PROPOSAL RESPONSE FORMS 
 

All proposals must include the completed Proposal Tender Form provided in this package, and 
all questions must be answered. Proposals will not be accepted where the Proposal Tender 
Form has been retyped or altered by the respondent. Failure to comply may preclude 
consideration of the proposal. Supplemental information may be attached to the Proposal 
Tender Form. 

 
1.6 DEVIATIONS FROM REQUESTED PLAN 
 

The contract terms and conditions stipulated in this RFP are those required by the CITY. 
Respondents are required to submit their responses, which complies with the request. Any 
deviations from the request should be clearly noted. Any deviation or incomplete response or 
nonresponse may be deemed as a nonconforming, nonresponsive bid. 

 
1.7 CONFLICT WITH SPECIMEN CONTRACTS 
 

Unless specifically noted to the contrary as a deviation from the RFP, the submission of 
respondent’s specimen contract with a proposal submittal shall not constitute notice of the 
respondent’s intent to deviate from the RFP in a restrictive manner. Unless specifically noted 
otherwise, the attachment of the respondent’s specimen contract shall be deemed to be an offer 
in at least full compliance with the RFP, and the respondent expressly agrees to reform said 
contract to the extent inconsistent in a restrictive manner from the RFP. That is, submission of a 
respondent’s contract shall be deemed solely an offer of supplemental terms and conditions not 
otherwise addressed in the RFP or a broadening of terms and conditions to the benefit of the 
CITY beyond that required by the RFP. 

 
1.8 ERRORS IN SUBMITTALS 
 

Respondents shall fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements and specifications 
before submitting the proposal. Failure to do so will be at the respondent’s own risk, and a 
respondent cannot secure relief on a plea of error. Neither law nor regulations make allowance 
for errors either of omission or commission on the part of the respondent. 

 
1.9 LEGAL AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 
 

The respondent must agree to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations as the same exist and as may be amended from time to time, 
including, but not limited to the Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. In 
accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, the following provisions are included in this 
contract: 

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 
OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY 
TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, CITY CLERK’S OFFICE: 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 6 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 904-247-6250 EXT # 10 
EMAIL ADDRESS: CITYCLERK@JAXBCHFL.NET 
MAILING ADDRESS: 11 NORTH THIRD STREET JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FL 32250 
 
The CONTACTOR shall comply with public records laws of Florida, specifically to: 
1. Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the 

service. 
2. Upon request from the public agency’s custodian of public records, provide the public 

agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in 
this chapter or as otherwise provided by law. 

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the 
duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the 
contractor does not transfer the records to the public agency. 

4. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all public 
records in possession of the contractor or keep and maintain public records required 
by the public agency to perform the service. If the contractor transfers all public 
records to the public agency upon completion of the contract, the contractor shall 
destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements. If the contractor keeps and maintains public 
records upon completion of the contract, the contractor shall meet all applicable 
requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be 
provided to the public agency, upon request from the public agency’s custodian of 
public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology 
systems of the public agency. 

 
1.10 CANCELLATION/NON-RENEWAL/ADVERSE CHANGE/RATE INCREASE NOTICE 
 

The CITY should be given at least 90 days’ notice of cancellation, non-renewal, adverse change 
or increase in rates. (If applicable) 

 
1.11 WAIVER/REJECTION OF PROPOSALS 
 

The CITY reserves the right to waive formalities or informalities in proposals and to reject any 
or all proposals or portions of proposals, or to accept any proposals or portions of proposals 
deemed to be in the best interest(s) of the CITY or to negotiate or not negotiate with the 
respondent. The CITY reserves the right to reject all bids and re-advertise a new RFP for this 
work and project. 

 
1.12 AUTHORIZED OFFER 
 

The person submitting the proposal should indicate the extent of authorization by the Company 
to make a valid offer in the proposal summary that may be accepted by the CITY to form a valid 
and binding contract. 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 7 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
If the person submitting the proposal is not authorized to submit a proposal that can be bound by 
CITY acceptance, such a person should also obtain the signature of an authorized representative 
of the insurer, that may result in a bound contract upon the CITY’s acceptance. 

 
1.13 EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 
 

The CITY will evaluate each proposal based on all the criteria set forth in the RFP. Fees may be 
requested as part of the proposal package. However, if fees are requested, the CITY reserves the 
right at its sole discretion to exclude the fees from the evaluation process. The evaluation process 
will consider all other requested criteria to determine which firm is the most highly qualified to 
perform the required services. 

 
1.14 USE OF PROPOSAL BY OTHER AGENCIES 
 

It is hereby made a part of this RFP that the submission of any proposal response to the 
advertisement request constitutes a proposal made under the same terms and conditions, for the 
same contract price, to other government agencies if agreeable by the submitter and the 
government agency. 

 
At the option of the vendor/contractor, the use of the contract resulting from this solicitation may 
be extended to other governmental agencies including the State of Florida, its agencies, political 
subdivisions, counties and cities. 

 
Each governmental agency allowed by the vendor/contractor to use this contract shall do so 
independent of any other governmental entity. Each agency shall be responsible for its own 
purchases and shall be liable only for goods or services ordered, received and accepted. No 
agency receives any liability by virtue of this RFP and subsequent contract award. 

 
1.15 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES STATEMENT 
 

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for 
a public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to 
a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction 
or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit a proposal on leases of real 
property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, sub-
contractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business 
with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, for 
CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted 
vendor list. 

 
1.16 CONFLICT OF INTEREST CERTIFICATE 
 

All solicitations once advertised, and until the appropriate authority has approved an award 
recommendation, are under the “Cone of Silence”. This limits and requires documentation of 
communications between potential proposers and/or proposers on City solicitations, the City’s 
professional staff, and the City Council members. 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 8 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
Any lobbying by or on behalf of the respondent will result in rejection/disqualification of said 
proposal. Respondents shall refrain from any contact with City Council members and staff or the 
Evaluation Committee regarding this proposal. 

 
DURING THE PERIOD BETWEEN PROPOSAL SUBMISSION DATE AND THE 
CONTRACT AWARD, RESPONDENTS, INCLUDING THEIR AGENTS AND 
REPRESENTATIVES, SHALL NOT DIRECTLY DISCUSS OR PROMOTE THEIR 
PROPOSAL WITH ANY MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OR CITY STAFF EXCEPT 
UPON THE REQUEST OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH PROPERTY AND 
PROCUREMENT DIVISION IN THE COURSE OF CITY-SPONSORED INQUIRIES, 
BRIEFINGS, INTERVIEWS, OR PRESENTATIONS. 

 
This provision is not meant to preclude respondents from discussing other matters with City 
Council members or City staff. This policy is intended to create a level playing field for all 
potential respondents, assure that contract decisions are made in public, and to protect the 
integrity of the RFP process. Its purpose is to stimulate competition, prevent favoritism and 
secure the best work and materials at the lowest practicable price, for the best interests and 
benefit of the taxpayers and property owners. Violation of this provision may result in rejection 
of the respondent's proposal. 

 
1.17 DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE 
 

An entity or affiliate who has been placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit on a 
contract to provide goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract 
with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not 
submit proposals on leases of real property to a public entity, may not award or perform work as 
a contractor, supplier, sub-contractor, or consultant under contract with any public entity, and 
may not transact business with any public entity. 

 
1.18 SAFETY REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS PROVIDING SERVICES TO CITY 
 

A. The Contractor shall comply with all Federal/State Occupational Safety and Health Act 
(OSHA) Standards including 29 CFR 1910 and any other rules and regulations applicable to 
construction and maintenance activities in the State of Florida. The Contractor shall also 
comply with Chapter 442, Florida Statutes (Toxic Substances in the Workplace) and any 
county or city or any other agency’s rules and regulations regarding safety. 

 
B. The Owner’s safety personnel or any supervisor or inspector may, but is not required to, order 

that the work be stopped if a condition of immediate danger is found to exist. Nothing 
contained herein shall be construed to shift responsibility or risk of loss for injuries or damage 
sustained as a result of a violation of this Article from the Contractor to the Owner; and the 
Contractor shall remain solely and exclusively responsible for compliance with all safety 
requirements and for the safety of all persons and property at the project site. 

 
C. The parties hereto expressly agree that the obligation to comply with applicable safety 

provisions is a material provision of this contract and a duty of the contractor. The Owner 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 9 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

reserves the right to require demonstration of compliance with the safety provisions of this 
contract. The parties agree that such failure is deemed to be a material breach of this 
agreement; and the Contractor agrees that upon such breach, all work pursuant to the contract 
shall terminate until demonstration to the Owner that the safety provisions of this agreement 
have been complied with. In no event shall action or failure to act on the part of the Owner be 
construed as a duty to enforce the safety provisions of this agreement nor shall it be construed 
to create liability for the Owner for any act or failure to act in respect to the safety provisions 
of this agreement. 

 
1.19 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

Hold Harmless: The City shall be held harmless against all claims for bodily injury, disease, 
death, personal injury, and damage to property or loss of use resulting there from, to the extent 
caused by the Contractor, unless such claims are a result of the City’s sole negligence. 

 
Defense fees and costs on behalf of the City: The Contractor agrees to pay on behalf of the 
City, the City’s legal defense fees and costs, for all third party claims and actions filed against 
the City arising from or relating to any scope of work or services performed by the Contractor 
as described herein. 

 
Such payment on behalf of the City shall be in addition to all other legal remedies available to 
the City and shall not be considered to be the City’s exclusive remedy. 

 
Loss Control/Safety: Precaution shall be exercised at all times by the Contractor for the 
protection of all persons, employees, and property. The Contractor shall comply with all laws, 
regulations and ordinances related to safety and health, shall make special efforts to detect 
hazardous conditions, and shall take prompt action where loss control and safety measures 
should reasonably be expected. 

 
B. PROOF OF CARRIAGE OF INSURANCE & NAMING CITY AS ADDITIONAL INSURED 

 
The Contractor shall furnish the City with satisfactory proof of carriage of insurance required 
herein. The Contractor shall name the City of Jacksonville Beach (City) as additional insured 
on the Contractor’s, and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor’s Public Liability, Property 
Damage and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance Policies. The additional insured 
shall be provided the same coverage as the primary insured for losses arising from work 
performed by the Contractor or its sub-consultants or sub-contractors. The proof of carriage or 
a copy of all policies shall be required prior to commencement of any work under this 
Contract. 

 
The CITY may order work to be stopped if conditions exist that present immediate danger to 
persons or property. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that such stoppage will not shift 
responsibility for any damages from the CONTRACTOR to the Organization. 

 
C. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 10 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
Basic Coverages Required: During the term of this contract, the Contractor shall procure and 
maintain the following-described insurance and/or self-insurance except for coverage’s 
specifically waived by the City. All policies and insurers must be acceptable to the City. 

 
These insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of the Contractor. The City does not 
represent these types of amounts of insurance to be sufficient or adequate to protect the 
Contractor’s interests or liabilities, but are merely minimums. 

 
All insurers must carry a current A M Best rating of at least A- 

 
Worker's Compensation Coverage is required. 

 
The CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall purchase and maintain worker's 
compensation insurance for all workers’ compensation obligations imposed by state law and 
employer’s liability limits of at least $100,000.00 each accident, $100,000.00 each employee 
and $500,000.00 policy limit for disease. 

 
The CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall also purchase any other coverages required 
by law for the benefit of employees. 

 
General Liability Coverage is required for Contractor and all subcontractors. 

 
Commercial General Liability in Occurrence Form. 

 
Coverage A shall include Bodily Injury and Property Damage coverage for liability claims 
arising from premises, operations, contractual liability, independent Contractors, products and 
complete operations and including but not limited to coverage for claims resulting from 
explosion, collapse, or underground (x,c,u) exposures (if any). 

 
Coverage B shall include personal injury and is required. 

 
Coverage C, medical payments is not required. 

 
Amounts: Bodily Injury:  $1,000,000 each occurrence 

    $1,000,000 Aggregate 
 

  Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence 
    $1,000,000 aggregate 
 

Products and Completed Operations are required for Contractor and all subcontractors. 
 

Amount:    $1,000,000 aggregate 
 

Business Auto Liability Coverage is required for Contractor and all subcontractors. 
 

Business Auto Liability Coverage is to include bodily injury and property damage arising out 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 11 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

of ownership, maintenance or use of any auto, including owned, non-owned and hired 
automobiles and employee non-ownership use. 

 
Amounts: Bodily Injury:  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

    $1,000,000 Aggregate 
 
  Property Damage: $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
        $1,000,000 Aggregate 
 

Professional Liability Not Required 
 

Pollution Liability Required of Contractor and all subcontractors. 
 

The City requires Pollution/Environmental Liability insurance covering cleanup costs 
including on-site discovery and third party liability, on-site and off-site third party pollution 
liability coverage, natural resources damage coverage. 

 
  Limits of Liability:    $1,000,000  Each Pollution Event Limit 
       $1,000,000  Aggregate Policy Limit 
 

Excess or Umbrella Liability Coverage. 
 

Umbrella Liability insurance is preferred, but an Excess Liability equivalent may be allowed. 
Whichever type of coverage is provided, it shall not be more restrictive than the underlying 
insurance policy coverages. 

 
  Limits of Liability:    $1,000,000  Each Occurrence 
      $1,000,000  Aggregate 
 

Claims Made Coverage – No Gap 
 

If any of the required professional or pollution liability insurance is provided on a “claims 
made” form, such coverage shall extend for a period of not less than 36 months following 
completion of the contract. In the event of termination of claims made policy, extended 
coverage may be provided by assurance that extended discovery coverage of at least 36 months 
will be purchased from the expiring insurer, or by assurance that the succeeding insurer will 
provide retroactive coverage with an inception date of at least on or before the effective date of 
this contract. 

 
D. CERTIFICIATES OF INSURANCE OF CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS 

 
Required insurance shall be documented in Certificates of Insurance which provide that the 
CITY shall be notified at least 30 days in advance of cancellation, nonrenewal or adverse 
change. 

 
New Certificates of Insurance are to be provided to the CITY at least 15 days prior to coverage 
renewals. 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 12 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
If requested by the CITY, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish complete copies of the 
CONTRACTOR's insurance policies, forms and endorsements. 

 
For Commercial General Liability coverage, the Contractor shall at the option of the City, 
provide an indication of the amount of claims, payments, or reserves chargeable to the 
aggregate amount of liability coverage. NOTE: Any sub-contractors approved by the City shall 
be required to provide proof of insurance identical in amounts as required by the contact to 
perform related services. All coverages shall name the City as “additional insured”. 

 
Receipt of certificates or other documents of insurance or policies or copies of policies by the 
City, or by any of its representatives, which indicate less coverage than required will not 
constitute a waiver of the successful proposer(s)’ obligation to fulfill the insurance 
requirements herein. 

 
1.20 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS (see specifications for requirements) N/A 
 

A. Simultaneously with his delivery of the executed contract to the CITY, a respondent, to whom 
a contract has been awarded, must deliver to the CITY executed Performance and Payment 
Bonds on the prescribed forms each in an amount of one-hundred percent (100%) of the total 
amount of the accepted Proposal, as security for the faithful performance of the contract and 
for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials or equipment in 
connection therewith. The Performance and Payment Bonds shall have as the surety thereon 
only such surety company or companies as are authorized to write bonds of such character and 
amount under the laws of the State of Florida and with a resident agent in the county in which 
the project is located. The Attorney-in-Fact or other officer who signs the Performance and 
Payment Bonds for a surety company must file with such bonds a certified copy of his Power-
of-Attorney authorizing him to do so. N/A 

 
B. The Performance and Payment Bonds shall remain in force for one (1) year from the date of 

final acceptance of the work as a protection to the CITY against losses resulting from latent 
defects in materials or improper performance of work under contract, which may appear or be 
discovered during that period. N/A 

 
1.21 BANKRUPTCY 
 

No firm will be issued a contract for the work, where a key representative has filed for 
bankruptcy personally or has been an officer or principal of a firm, which has filed bankruptcy in 
the past seven (7) years. Attached is a Non-Bankruptcy Affidavit form. All submitted proposals 
must include this form executed by the proper representative of the respondent company. (See 
attached Form 7). 

 
1.22 NONEXCLUSIVE 
 

Notwithstanding the contract resulting from this RFP, the CITY reserves the right to follow its 
normal purchasing procedures at any time to procure additional services for any of the types of 
work noted in this RFP. Contractor agrees and understands that the contract shall not be 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 13 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

construed as an exclusive arrangement and further agrees that the City may, at any time, secure 
similar or identical services at its sole option. 

 
1.23 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE COMPLIANCE FORM 
 

Attached is a Drug Free Workplace Compliance Form. All submitted proposals must include this 
form executed by the proper representative of your company. (See attached Form 4.) 

 
1.24 WARRANTY 
 

All warranties express and implied shall be made available to the City for goods and services 
covered by this solicitation. All goods furnished shall be fully guaranteed by the successful 
respondent against factory defects and workmanship. At no expense to the City, the successful 
respondent shall correct any and all apparent and latent defects that may occur within the 
manufacturer’s standard warranty. 

 
1.25 PROTEST 
 

Any respondent who perceives themselves aggrieved in connection with a recommended award 
may protest to the Property and Procurement Officer. A written notice of intent to file a protest 
must be filed with the Property and Procurement Officer within three (3) days after receipt by 
the respondent of the Proposal Award Notice, in accordance with the procedures set forth in 
Section XII K., City of Jacksonville Beach Purchasing Manual. Failure to follow the protest 
procedures or failure to meet any deadline set forth herein shall automatically nullify any 
protest or claim brought by an aggrieved bidder/proposer. 

 
In the event of a timely protest, the City shall not proceed further with award of the contract and 
agreement until all administrative remedies are exhausted, or until the City Manager determines 
the award of the contract is immediately necessary to protect the public health, welfare, or safety. 

 
1.26 FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION 
 

Any individual, corporation, or other entity that attempts to meet its contractual obligations with 
the City through fraud, misrepresentation, or material misstatement, may be debarred for up to 
five (5) years. The City, as a further sanction, may terminate or cancel any other contracts with 
such individual, corporation, or entity. Such individual or entity shall be responsible for all direct 
or indirect costs associated with termination or cancellation, including attorney’s fees. 

 
1.27 OMISSIONS IN SPECIFICATIONS 
 

The scope of services or description of items contained within this solicitation describes the 
various functions and classes of work required as necessary for the completion of the project. 
Any omissions of inherent technical functions or classes of work within the specifications and/or 
statement of work shall not relieve the respondent from furnishing, installing, or performing such 
work where required to the satisfactory completion of the project. 

 
  



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 14 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.28 FORCE MAJEURE 
 

The City and the successful respondent are excused from the performance of their respective 
obligations under the contract when and to the extent that their performance is delayed or 
prevented by any circumstances beyond their control, including fire, flood, explosion, strikes or 
other labor disputes, natural disasters, public emergency, war, riot, civil commotion, malicious 
damage, act or omission of any governmental authority, delay or failure or shortage of any type 
of transportation, equipment, or service from a public utility needed for their performance 
provided that: 

a) The non-performing party gives the other party prompt written notice describing the 
particulars of the force majeure, including, but not limited to, the nature of the occurrence 
and its expected duration, and continues to furnish timely reports with respect thereto 
during the period of the force majeure. 

b) The excuse of performance is of no greater scope and of no longer duration than is 
required by the force majeure. 

c) No obligations of either party that arose before the force majeure causing the excuse of 
performance are excused as a result of the force majeure. 

d) The non-performing party uses its best efforts to remedy its inability to perform. 
 

Notwithstanding the above, performance shall not be excused under this section for a period in 
excess of two (2) months, provided that in extenuating circumstances, the City may excuse 
performance for a longer term. Economic hardship of the successful respondent shall not 
constitute a force majeure. The term of the contract shall be extended by a period equal to that 
during which either party’s performance is suspended under this section. 

 
1.29 RFP AWARD NOTICE FORM 
 

Attached is a RFP Award Notice Form. All submitted proposals are to include this form to be 
notified of the recommendation of award. (See attached Form 2). 

 
1.30 INDEMNIFICATION 
 

The Respondent to whom a contract is awarded shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
City as outlined below. 
 
The CONTRACTOR covenants and agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend City, its 
council, officers, employees, agents and servants from any and all claims for bodily injury, 
including death, personal injury, and property damage, including damage to property owned by 
City, and any other losses, damages, and expenses of any kind, including attorney’s fees, court 
costs and expenses, which arise out of, in connection with, or by reason of services provided by 
the CONTRACTOR or any of its Subcontractor(s) in any tier, occasioned by the negligence, 
errors, or other wrongful act or omission of the CONTRACTOR, its Subcontractor(s) in any tier, 
their officers, employees, servants or agents. 
 
In the event that the completion of the project (to include the work of others) is delayed or 
suspended as a result of the CONTRACTOR’s failure to purchase or maintain the required 
insurance, the CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the City from any and all increased expenses 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 15 of 32 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

resulting from such delay. Should any claims be asserted against the City by virtue of any 
deficiency or ambiguity in the plans and specifications provided by the CONTRACTOR, the 
CONTRACTOR agrees and warrants that CONTRACTOR shall hold the City harmless and 
shall indemnify it from all losses occurring thereby and shall further defend any claim or action 
on the City’s behalf. 
 
The first ten dollars ($10.00) of remuneration paid to the CONTRACTOR is consideration for 
the indemnification provided for above. 
 
The extent of liability is in no way limited to, reduced, or lessened by the insurance requirements 
contained elsewhere within this agreement. 
 
This indemnification shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the contract. 
 

1.31 RFP IS NOT A BID 
 

This Request for Proposals is not to be considered a bid. The City will evaluate responses based 
on the criteria set forth in this RFP. The evaluation process is to consider all requested criteria to 
determine which firm is the most responsive, responsible and highly qualified to perform the 
required services. 

 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 16 of 32 
FORMS 

FORM 1: PROPOSAL TENDER FORM (Page 1 of 2) 
 

RFP NUMBER: 06-1920 
TITLE:  GRAFFITI ABATEMENT FOR THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
 
DATE:     , 2020 
 
TO:   THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA 
 
FROM:              
 
             
 
 
GRAFFITI ABATEMENT UNIT LABOR PRICE PER HOUR: $     
 
 
NOTE: Respondent is solely responsible for developing / determining / verifying for this project all 
plans / all methods / all quantities / all measurements and all manufacturers’ requirements / 
recommendations necessary to provide a satisfactory fully completed project under the provisions of the 
RFP, to the CITY’s satisfaction, to include costs for all labor, all equipment, all materials,(except anti-
graffiti coatings, as the City will purchase and provide) all rental / leasing / purchasing of equipment and 
materials, all preparations, all repairs, all safety work, all quality control work, all disposal work, all 
mobilization and demobilization work, all sub-contractor work, all taxes, all insurance, all bonding if 
required, all inspection work, all verification work,  all warranty work, all permitting at all levels of 
government, all contractor overhead, all contractor profit, and any / all other project related work and/or 
cost/expense that is not listed, and all of which shall be the basis for the respondent’s proposal for this 
RFP. 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES: The CITY may request additional services that shall be similar in nature 
or related to the RFP for Graffiti Abatement. Previously negotiated unit pricing under this RFP shall be 
used where possible in determining compensation. Otherwise, a fair negotiated price consistent with the 
type services requested shall be mutually agreed. 
 
COMPANY NAME:             
 
ADDRESS:            
 
CITY, STATE & ZIP:            
 
EMAIL ADDRESS:       Tel #:     
 
SUBMITTED BY:            
   Printed Name     Title 
 
 
Signature:        



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 17 of 32 
FORMS 

FORM 1: PROPOSAL TENDER FORM (Page 2 of 2) 
 
The respondent understands that the CITY reserves the right to: 1) reject all proposals and waive 
informalities in the proposals, and 2) the CITY may award the RFP to up to three (3) qualified 
respondents, and 3) the CITY may assign work detail to the selected CONTRACTORS based on each 
Pay Item or on a combination of Pay Items whichever is in the best interests of the CITY. 
 

ADDENDA RECEIPT VERIFICATION 

Respondent shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda, if any, to the Request for Proposals, by filling in Addenda 
Numbers and dates below. 

Addendum #: ____ Dated:  _____  Addendum #: ____ Dated:  _____ 

Addendum #: ____ Dated:  _____  Addendum #: ____ Dated:  _____ 

PROPOSAL DOCUMENT TURN-IN CHECKLIST 

The following documents are to be completed, signed and submitted as part of the Proposal Submittal Package in 
response to this RFP. Failure to provide the listed documents may be cause for the CITY to consider rejection of the 
submitted proposal. This consideration will be at the sole discretion of the CITY. 
INITIAL 

Check-Off FORM SECTION TITLE 

[  ____  ]  TITLE PAGE 

[  ____  ]  TABLE OF CONTENTS 

[  ____  ]  LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

[  ____  ] 1 PROPOSAL TENDER FORM (completed Pages 16 thru 17) 

[  ____  ] 2 RFP AWARD NOTICE FORM – Mandatory Cover Sheet (completed Page 18) 

[  ____  ] 3 REQUIRED DISCLOSURE FORM (completed Page 19) 

[  ____  ] 4 DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE COMPLIANCE FORM (completed Page 20) 

[  ____  ] 5 NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT (completed Page 21) 

[  ____  ] 6 NON-BANKRUPTCY AFFIDAVIT (completed Page 22) 

[  ____  ]  LOCAL BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT 

[  ____  ]  METHOD OF APPROACH 

[  ____  ]  QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

[  ____  ]  REFERENCES 

[  ____  ]  W-9 (attach completed and signed form, which can be obtained from www.irs.gov) 

NOTE: Please INITIAL Check-Off of each document / activity / requirement that is attached to the Proposal Tender Form 
and/or is required by the RFP and/or Addenda. 

 
By:              
 Signature of Authorized Submitter    Title (typed or neatly printed) 
 
SUBMITTED BY:         DATE:    
   Typed/Printed Name of Authorized Submitter  



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 18 of 32 
FORMS 

FORM 2 
 

RFP AWARD NOTICE FORM 
 

City of Jacksonville Beach 
1460A Shetter Avenue, Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250, (904) 247-6229 

 

Mandatory Cover Sheet 
 
NOTICE: Items 1 to 6 are to be completed by the Respondent. The Respondent is to submit 

the form to the CITY along with the Proposal Tender Form and other required 
documents. 

 
1. Company Name:  ____________________________________________ 
 
2. Address Name:  ____________________________________________ 
 
3. City, State and Zip  ____________________________________________ 
 
4. Attention:   ____________________________________________ 
 
5. Phone:   ___________________________ Fax: ________________________ 
 
6. E-mail address:  __________________________________________________________ 
 

PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY 
 

****************************************************************************** 
ITEMS BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

****************************************************************************** 
 
Proposals were received and evaluated, and the following recommendation will be presented to the City 
Council for award of RFP No. 06-1920 per the attached Proposal Tabulation form(s). 
 
A written notice of intent to file a protest must be filed with the Purchasing Administrator within three (3) 
days after receipt by the respondent or proposer of the RFP Award Notice from the Purchasing 
Administrator in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section XII K., City of Jacksonville Beach 
Purchasing Manual. 
 
If awarded RFP or combination of Pay Items, please do not proceed with any work prior to receiving an 
official City of Jacksonville Beach Purchase Order and/or Notice-to-Proceed letter. 
 
Thank you for your proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
/s/Luis F. Flores 
Property and Procurement Division  



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 19 of 32 
FORMS 

FORM 3 
 

REQUIRED DISCLOSURE FORM 

The following disclosure is of all material facts pertaining to any felony conviction or any pending 

felony charges in the last three (3) years in this State or any other state or the United States against (1) 

respondent, (2) any business entity related to or affiliated with respondent, or (3) any present or former 

owner of respondent or of any such related or affiliated entity. This disclosure shall not apply to any 

person or entity which is only a stockholder, which person or entity owns twenty (20) percent or less of 

the outstanding shares of a respondent whose stock is publicly owned and traded: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Signed:       Title:        
 
Contractor:       



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 20 of 32 
FORMS 

FORM 4 
 

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE COMPLIANCE FORM 
 
IDENTICAL TIE PROPOSALS - Preference shall be given to businesses with drug-free workplace 
programs. Whenever two or more proposals, which are equal with respect to price, quality and service, 
are received by the State or by any political subdivision for the procurement of commodities or 
contractual services, a proposal received from a business that certifies that it has implemented a drug-
free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process. Established procedures for 
processing tie proposals will be followed if none of the tied vendors have a drug-free workplace 
program. In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall: 
 
1) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 

possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the 
actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition. 

 
2) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business’s policy of 

maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee 
assistance programs and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 

 
3) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under 

proposal a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 
 
4) In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working 

on the commodities or contractual services that are under proposal, the employee will abide by 
the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere to, any violation of Chapter 893 or of any controlled substance law of the United 
States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such 
conviction. 

 
5) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or 

rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee’s community, by any employee who is 
so convicted. 

 
6) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of 

this section. 
 
As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the above 
requirements. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
       Vendor’s Signature 
(Word/Drug Free) 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 21 of 32 
FORMS 

FORM 5 
 

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
 
_______________________________________________, being first duly sworn deposes and says that: 
 
1. He (it) is the ____________________________________________________________, of 

_________________ the respondent that has submitted the attached Proposal; 
 
2. He is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Proposal and of all 

pertinent circumstances respecting such Proposal; 
 
3. Such Proposal is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Proposal; 
 
4. Neither the said respondent nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, 

employee, or parties in interest, including this affidavit, have in any way, colluded, conspired, 
connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other respondent, firm or person to submit a 
collusive or sham Proposal in connection with the Contract for which the attached Proposal has 
been submitted; or to refrain from responding in connection with such Contract; or have in any 
manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication, or 
conference with any respondent, firm, or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Proposal 
or of any other respondent, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost elements of the Proposal price 
or the Proposal price in any other respondent, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, 
connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested 
in the proposed Contract; 

 
5. The price or prices quoted in the attached Proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any 

collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the respondent or any 
other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including his 
affidavit. 

 
 
By: ________________________________________________ 
 
 
Sworn and subscribed to before me this _____________ day of ____________________________, 
 
20___, in the State of __________________________________, County of 
________________________. 
 
___________________________________________ Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: __________________________________ 
  



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 22 of 32 
FORMS 

FORM 6 
 

NON-BANKRUPTCY AFFIDAVIT 
 
 
STATE OF ____________________) 
 
 
COUNTY OF ___________________) 
 
______________________________________________________ is an officer and member of the firm 
of ______________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and states that; 
 

1. The subsequent certification statement is a true and accurate statement as of the date shown 
below. 

 
2. The affiant understands that the intentional inclusion of false, deceptive or fraudulent statements 

on this Non-Bankruptcy Affidavit constitutes fraud; and, that the City of Jacksonville Beach, 
Florida, considers such action on the part of the affiant to constitute good cause for denial, 
suspension, revocation, disqualification, or rejection of affiant’s participation in RFP #06-1920. 

 
3. Certification Statement: This is to certify that the aforementioned firm has not filed for 

bankruptcy in the past seven (7) years and that no owner/officer or principal of the 
aforementioned firm has filed for bankruptcy personally in the past seven (7) years or has been 
an owner/officer or principal of a firm which has filed for bankruptcy in the past seven (7) years. 

 
 
________________________________ 
Affiant Signature 
 
 
 
Sworn to before me this _______ day of ___________, 20_____ by _____________. 
(Name of affiant) 
 
He/She is personally known to me or has produced _______________________as identification. 
 
________________________________ 
Signature of Notary 
 
________________________________       
Notary’s Printed Name   Expiration of Notary’s Commission 
 
Affix Seal Here: 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 23 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS, EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND PROPOSAL 
REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. DEFINITION 
 

For the purposes of this solicitation, graffiti abatement means the removal of undesired applications 
of various compositions on various surfaces throughout the City. Surfaces may include, but are not 
limited to: Aluminum, Brick, Glass, Marble, Masonry, Metal, Pavers, Vinyl or Wood. 

 
2. SCOPE OF WORK 
 

The Contractor shall provide ALL labor, equipment, vehicles, tools, services and special skills 
including but not limited to pressure washer(s), sand and soda blasters, as well as furnishing all 
transportation, fuel, power, water and essentials necessary for the provision of graffiti removal, 
applying graffiti coatings, and pressure cleaning maintenance services. 

 
Environmentally safe chemicals, solvents, and materials should be used to remove graffiti. A copy 
of Material Safety Data Sheets (“MSDS”) and sample labels shall be submitted for approval to the 
City for all products and chemicals prior to use. Contractor shall submit to City a list of required 
chemicals, anti-graffiti coatings to be used prior to abatement. The City will ONLY purchase the 
required anti-graffiti coatings and provide the same to the Contractor. 

 
Chemical cleaning shall only be used when other methods of removal are not effective and/or 
recommended. The Contractor will be responsible for any damages that result from improper 
chemical use or negligent when using chemical removal methods. 

 
Contractor shall exercise care to avoid damages to existing improvements. Existing improvements 
damaged by the Contractor shall be repaired at the Contractor’s sole expense and to the satisfaction 
of the City. 

 
Power washing may be used to remove graffiti and hard-to clean substances from sidewalks, block 
walls and/or similar surfaces, and must be approved by City staff. Power washing may only be used 
in low pedestrian traffic areas and/or at times of low pedestrian volumes unless otherwise approved. 
Best Management Practices shall be used during pressure washing activities. The Contractor shall 
capture all water runoff from pressure washing and steam cleaning operations. 

 
Warning signs and protective barriers must be used to warn/shield pedestrians, vehicles, ornamental 
street furniture, windows, and any other sensitive surfaces from potential overspray. The protective 
barrier may consist of plastic sheeting and/or painter's cloth. The Contractor will be responsible for 
any damages that result from improper or negligent power washing methods. 

 
Sand Blasting may be used when power washing is not sufficient in removing graffiti and is 
approved by City staff. The Contractor will be responsible for any damages that result from 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 24 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

improper or negligent sand blasting methods. Waste water and debris from sand blasting shall not 
enter the storm drain system and is to be collected, removed from the work site and legally disposed. 

 
Soda Blasting may be used when power washing is not sufficient in removing graffiti and is 
approved by City staff. The Contractor will be responsible for any damages that result from 
improper or negligent soda blasting methods. Waste water and debris from soda blasting shall not 
enter the storm drain system and is to be collected, removed from the work site and legally disposed. 

 
Contractor will carry tools and materials necessary to prepare surfaces in a manner that will result in 
an acceptable bonding of any applied paint to and paint over graffiti at sites where it cannot be 
removed by other means. Contractor will apply paint that reasonably matches the existing base 
surface color and in a manner that completely eradicates the graffiti. Painting will not follow the 
graffiti pattern, and no pattern such as that of the letters or shapes will remain upon completion. If 
the graffiti is on a wall, the contractor shall paint from the top to the bottom of the wall and square 
off both sides so they are perpendicular to the top and bottom of the wall. 

 
Prior to work commencing, the Contractor shall inspect the location(s) and propose the method of 
graffiti abatement that will maintain the integrity of the surface and proceed only at the agreement of 
City staff. 

 
3. DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 

The Contractor shall contact the City staff timely each week at an agreed upon date and time to 
discuss the Contractor’s schedule for the day, pending work orders, areas to be maintained and areas 
to be inspected for approval. Weekend work orders (if any) will be assigned on Friday. 

 
The Contractor may receive work orders from the City staff via electronic mail or facsimile, as 
agreed upon by the City staff and the Contractor. 

 
The Contractor shall provide services within twenty-four (24) hours of issuance of work orders. In 
the event that a site cannot be abated within twenty-four (24) hours due to inclement weather, size of 
the site or any other reason, the Contractor shall notify the City staff with the status of the site prior 
to the end of the twenty-four (24) hour timeline. 

 
Work may be assigned as a targeted area graffiti removal. As directed by the City staff, the 
Contractor shall be assigned to scheduled visits to specified sites, neighborhoods or corridors. The 
Contractor may be required to work with a site, neighborhood or corridor liaison in addition to the 
City staff. 

 
The Contractor shall meet with the City staff at least once a week to discuss work program status 
and issues. 

 
The City staff or the Jacksonville Beach Police Department may designate sites as needing an 
emergency response. An emergency work order will be issued immediately. Emergency response 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 25 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

sites will have first priority and may require abatement on the same day. During emergency 
abatements, additional work orders may be assigned to the Contractor in second position. 

 
The Contractor shall deliver completed work orders to the City staff via electronic mail, facsimile, 
mail or in person on or prior to the first working day of the month following the assignment of the 
work order. Accommodations for special projects may be made. 

 
The Contractor shall send one crew to each job site. Additional crews may be assigned to a work site 
only with prior written approval from City staff. In the event of an emergency, City staff may 
verbally authorize the use of more than one crew at any one site. 

 
Work on private property shall not be performed without a Consent Form signed by the owner 
unless authorized by the City staff. The Contractor shall obtain the signature of the property owner 
on the consent form prior to beginning work. Original consent forms shall be returned to the City 
staff on a weekly basis and are property of the City. The City will maintain a database of Consent 
Forms. 

 
In the event that the Contractor identifies graffiti in close proximity to the site designated on the 
work order or in the targeted area graffiti removal boundaries, the Contractor shall attempt to contact 
the City staff for abatement approval. In the event that the Contractor is unable to reach the City 
staff, the Contractor shall abate the graffiti and submit documentation and an invoice for the work as 
if in possession of a work order. 

 
The method of removal shall not leave shadows or ghosts and shall not follow the pattern of the 
graffiti such that letters or shapes remain apparent on the surface after the graffiti markings have 
been removed. 

 
Unless otherwise approved by City staff, graffiti shall be removed so that the area surrounding it 
constitutes a box, circle or other geometric shape to minimize the appearance of shadows or ghosts. 

 
The Contractor shall protect the surfaces adjacent to the area to be abated. 

 
The Contractor shall abate the entire surface in the event that the graffiti covers a significant area of 
the surface. The City staff shall determine whether or not an entire surface will be abated on a case-
by-case basis. 

 
In the event that the Contractor arrives on site to find the graffiti has been abated, the Contractor 
shall notify the City staff and submit photos of the abated location. 

 
The Contractor shall ensure protection of the work area at all times including, but not limited to: 
 Barricading the area of work at distances, so as not to allow persons who are not involved 

with the abatement into the area. 
 Barricading area for work performed within the public right-of-way. 
 Using warning signs and sidewalk and street cones to inform the public of work being 

conducted. 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 26 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 Immediately correcting damages to the work site. 
 Leaving work in undamaged condition. 
 Providing signs to protect the finishes and the public. 

 
The Contractor shall remove all equipment and materials from each site and leave the site broom 
clean at the end of each workday. 

 
The Contractor shall dispose of all material containers and excess materials in accordance with all 
applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, codes and any other legislative or statutory requirements. 
Material rinse residue shall be collected and disposed of appropriately. 

 
The Contractor is responsible for obtaining any water necessary for abatement. Water is available at 
fire hydrants throughout the City. The City will provide access to hydrants and a meter for the 
requested services at no cost to the contractor. 

 
Photographic Documentation of Work 

 
The Contractor shall produce photographs of the location before work is performed and after work 
has been completed. Photographs shall be electronically labeled with the date the photos are taken. 

 
Photographs may be submitted to the City staff in one of two forms: 

 
Via electronic mail. 
Hard copies secured to a hardback surface and labeled with the work order information. 

 
Personnel 

 
Contractor shall designate one specific individual to oversee and inspect work performed by 
Contractor’s personnel assigned to this contract. The designated representative shall be immediately 
available during work activities to receive communications from the City staff. 

 
Contractor shall make the designated representative available to accompany the City staff to inspect 
sites and/or work upon twenty-four (24) hour notice. 

 
An alternate representative shall also be available within the City of Jacksonville Beach in the event 
that the primary representative is unreachable in the event of an emergency. 

 
The Contractor shall utilize only trained, competent employees in the performance of this contract. 
At the request of the City, the Contractor shall remove from assignment to this contract any 
incompetent, abusive or disorderly employee, whether supervisory or non-supervisory. 

 
The Contractor’s crews shall be in possession of a copy of the resulting contract and the MSDS for 
each product used in the performance of work at all times. 

 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 27 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

Any person assigned to this contract found to be in possession of and / or under the influence of 
intoxicants or narcotics shall be removed from assignment to this contract. This person may be 
subject to arrest and criminal prosecution. 
Personnel employed by the Contractor shall be screened and are not to perform services under the 
contract without prior approval from City staff. All employees performing services must undergo a 
criminal background investigation prior to performing services under this contract. 

 
4. EQUIPMENT 
 

The Contractor’s vehicles and equipment shall be neat in appearance and easily identified. 
 

The Contractor shall maintain its vehicles and equipment in safe and mechanically sound condition. 
 

The Contractor shall provide all personnel, vehicles, materials, supplies and equipment necessary to 
perform services with the exception of anti-graffiti coatings that will be provided by the City. 

 
5. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 

Contractor shall perform all requirements under this contract in strict observance of and compliance 
with all applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, codes and any other legislative or statutory 
requirements. 

 
 Contractor warrants that the performance of services under this contract shall be compliant with 
the current requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and as it may be 
amended or updated throughout the term of this contract. 

 
6. USE OF PRODUCTS 
 

Contractor shall ensure that all employees have immediate access to the Material Safety Data Sheets 
(MSDS) for each product used in the performance of this contract. 

 
Contractor shall be in compliance with all provisions of the Federal Hazard Communication Act. 

 
All products used by the Contractor shall be manufactured products specifically intended for the 
purpose for which they are being used. Contractor shall not devise any products of his/her own 
making for use under this contract. The use of all products shall be in strict conformance with the 
manufacturer’s specifications. 

 
7. PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC AND DAMAGES TO EXISTING STRUCTURES 
 

The Contractor shall exercise caution at all times for the protection of persons and property. All 
fines, penalties and/or repair charges resulting from the Contractor’s actions shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Contractor. 

 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 28 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

The Contractor shall not permit placing or use of equipment in such a manner as to block vehicle 
traffic lanes or create safety hazards. The Contractor shall be responsible for the use of all 
appropriate warning devices. 

 
The Contractor shall avoid damage to existing structures. In the event that a structure is damaged in 
the course of work, the Contractor shall be solely responsible for its repair or replacement. 

 
8. INVOICES 

The invoice submitted by the Contractor shall include the following: 
a. Contract number 
b. Purchase order number 
c. Contractor’s invoice number 
d. Abatement site address 
e. Work order number  
f. “Before” and “after” photographs 
g. Unit cost, subtotals and total for invoice 

 
9. MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 

Subject to availability, the City will provide the Contractor with colors of paint for use on City 
property as defined by City staff. 

 
In the event that a private property owner provides matching paint, the Contractor shall use the paint 
provided by the property owner at the owner’s property. 

 
The Contractor shall not paint previously unpainted surfaces and finishes such as slump stone, split 
face masonry, stone, brick or concrete block unless painting is specifically requested by the property 
owner or City staff. These specific requests shall be noted on the work order for the site. 

 
All chemical graffiti removal products shall be biodegradable and environmentally safe. 

 
The Contractor shall perform all abrasive removal techniques so that the abatement area is blended 
into the adjacent surface. 

 
10. PRICE ADJUSTMENTS 
 

The CITY reserves the sole right to reject responses in which the prices are obviously unbalanced. 
 

The Unit Price submitted on the Proposal Tender Form shall remain in effect through the first 
three (3) years of the contract term. 

 
The Contractor and / or the CITY may initiate adjustments to the current Unit Price during the final 
two (2) years of the contract term. The basis for these adjustments shall be - the not seasonally 
adjusted Consumer Price Index (CPI) for All Urban Consumers, Area: South – Size Class B/C, Item: 
Services - published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, or its successor 
publication if discontinued. The CITY reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to utilize a different 
approach and will receive comments from the CONTRACTOR accordingly. 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 29 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
The Unit Price, subject to negotiations, may be increased / decreased in a percentage not to exceed 
100% of the CPI change (with a goal of no more than 75%), since the initial term Unit Price or 
previous adjustment of Unit Price, whichever is applicable. The computations for the price 
adjustment may be based on the CPI change for the intervening period. The CITY reserves the right, 
at its sole discretion, to determine the length of the period to be utilized for the CPI adjustment 
consideration and will receive comments from the Contractor accordingly. The request for Unit 
Price adjustment is to be submitted not later than sixty (60) days prior to the end of the third year. 

 
The CITY may also consider a unique request for price adjustment based on unusually high increase 
or decrease in service costs. If considered warranted by the CITY, a fuel cost adjustment request, an 
increase or decrease, may be negotiated separately, when mutually agreed. 

 
The Unit Price adjustments shall be negotiated and agreed in writing by both parties. Unit Price 
adjustment(s) shall be effective on the first full month after both the CITY and the Contractor sign the 
Unit Price adjustment agreement document or as stated in the Unit Price adjustment agreement, 
whichever is later. 

 
11. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

a. The City is not responsible for the U.S. Mail or private couriers regarding receipt of a 
proposal. 

b. The City reserves the right to waive informalities or irregularities in proposals, to reject 
any or all proposals, and to negotiate further with the firm selected. 

c. The City reserves the right to continue Professional Services as set forth in the State of 
Florida Statutes, as amended. 

d. The submission of a proposal shall be considered prima facia evidence that the firm has 
full knowledge of the scope, nature, quantity, and quality of work to be performed, the 
requirements of the specifications, and the conditions under which the work is to be 
performed. 

e. The firm shall furnish the City with any additional information that may be reasonably 
required. 

f. The City reserves the right to conduct personal interviews with any or all firms prior to 
the final selection. The City will not be liable for any costs incurred by the firm in 
connection with an interview. 

g. The City reserves the right to waive minor irregularities in this RFP. 
h. All materials submitted in response to this Request for Proposal shall become the 

property of the City of Jacksonville Beach. 
i. All expenses incurred by a firm to respond to this RFP shall be the obligation of the firm 

and shall not be a liability of the City. 
j. The City reserves the right to use its resources, facilities, capabilities, and materials for 

services requested in the RFP. All materials and work products produced by the firm for 
the City shall become the exclusive property of the City and shall not be disclosed or 
otherwise used in any manner whatsoever, without the prior written approval of the City. 

  



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 30 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

12. EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 

The award of the contract will be based on certain objective and subjective considerations listed 
below. The maximum points that shall be awarded for each of these categories are detailed below: 

 
Evaluation Factor     Point Range 

 
 Method of Approach      25% 
 Qualifications and Experience    25% 
 References       25% 
 Price Proposal       25% 

 
13. EVALUATION PROCESS 
 

An evaluation committee of qualified City staff or other persons selected by the City will conduct 
evaluations of proposals. It may be a two-step process. In step one; the committee will evaluate 
all responsive proposals based upon the information and references contained in the proposals as 
submitted. The committee will score and rank all responsive proposals and determine a minimum 
of three (3), if more than three (3) proposals are responsive, to be finalists for further consideration. 
In the event there are less than three (3) responsive proposals, the committee will give further 
consideration to all responsive proposals received. In step two, the committee may then conduct 
discussions (oral presentations), for clarification purposes only, with the finalists and re-score and 
re-rank the finalists’ proposals. The evaluation committee may then make a recommendation, 
resulting from this process, to the City Manager for award of a contract. 

 
The City reserves the right to shortlist the respondents on any or all of the stated criteria. However, 
the City may determine that shortlisting is not necessary. 

 
The City reserves the right to conduct interviews with some or all of the respondents at any point 
during the evaluation process. However, the City may determine that interviews are not necessary. 
In the event interviews are conducted, information provided during the interview process shall be 
taken into consideration when evaluating the stated criteria. The City shall not reimburse the 
respondent for the costs associated with the interview process. 

 
The City reserves the right to make such additional investigations as it deems necessary to 
establish the competence and financial stability of any respondent submitting a proposal. 

 
Experiences with the City and entities that evaluation committee members represent may be taken 
into consideration when evaluating qualifications and experience. 

 
To provide adequate contract coverage, at the City’s sole discretion, multiple awards may be made. 

 
The City may require visits to customer installations or demonstrations of product by respondents, 
as part of the evaluation process. 

 
The City reserves the right, before awarding the contract, to require a respondent to submit any 
evidence of its qualifications as the City may deem necessary, and to consider any evidence 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 31 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

available of financial, technical and other qualifications and capabilities, including performance 
experience with past and present users. 

 
The City reserves the right to request additional clarifying information and request an oral 
presentation from any and all respondents prior to determination of award. 

 
The City reserves the right to award the contract to the respondent who will best serve the 
interests of the City. The City reserves the right based upon its deliberations and in its opinion, 
to accept or reject any or all proposals. The City also reserves the right to waive minor 
irregularities or variations to the specifications and in the bidding process. 

 
14. REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIC TO EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 

The narrative portion and the materials presented in response to this Request for Proposals 
should be submitted in the same order as requested and must contain, at a minimum, the 
following: 

 
1. Method of Approach: 

 
Describe in detail your methods including materials to be used for removing graffiti from the 
following surfaces: 

a. Previously painted surfaces 
b. Brick and mortar surfaces 
c. Traffic signs 
d. Padmount transformers 
e. Unpainted wood 
f. Unpainted concrete block 

 
Describe the manner in which you will protect surfaces adjacent to the abatement area. 

 
2. Qualifications and Experience: 

 
Provide a brief history of the business. 

 
Provide resumes and/or biographies for all key personnel, who will be assigned to this 
contract. 

 
If the use of subcontractors is proposed, provide information about the subcontractor and 
what service they will be providing. 

 
3. References: 

 
Provide a minimum of five (5) references of similar work completed within the last three 
years. References must include: 
Company Name; 
Company Address; 
Contact Person; 



City of Jacksonville Beach - Public Works Department RFP #06-1920 
Streets Division 
06/09/20 

Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 

Page 32 of 32 
EXHIBIT “A” 

Contact Person Telephone Number; 
Date and brief description of work performed; 
Dollar Amount. 

 
4. Price Proposal: 

 
Provide a price proposal as indicated on the Proposal Tender Form as outlined on page 16 of 
the Forms Section. Pricing should be for one hourly labor rate to include all necessary 
equipment for any abatement method. The hourly rate shall not include the anti-graffiti 
coatings as the City will purchase and provide the coatings. 

 
15. RESPONSE FORMAT 
 

Responses should include one (1) original, four (4) copies and one (1) electronic version (such as CD) 
of the proposal returned in a sealed envelope bearing the name and address of the respondent. 

 
The City requires comprehensive responses to every section within this RFP.  To facilitate the review 
of the responses, firms shall follow the described proposal format.  The intent of the proposal format 
requirements is to expedite review and evaluation. It is not the intent to constrain firms with regard to 
content, but to assure that the specific requirements set forth in this RFP are addressed in a uniform 
manner amenable to review and evaluation. 

 
The RFP shall be signed by the firm’s representative who is authorized to contractually bind the firm.  
All proposal packages are to include the following components: 

 
1. Title Page - Include the RFP number and name, address, telephone number of firm, 

contact person and date of proposal. 
2. Table of Contents. 
3. Letter of Transmittal. 
4. Form 1: Proposal Tender Form. 
5. Form 2: Award Notice Form. 
6. Form 3: Required Disclosure Form. 
7. Form 4: Drug-Free Workplace Compliance Form. 
8. Form 5: Non-Collusion Affidavit. 
9. Form 6: Non-Bankruptcy Affidavit. 
10. Method of Approach. 
11. Qualifications and Experience. 
12. References. 
13. Any additional information to be determined by the respondent. 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES 
 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 8th day of September, 2020 by and between the 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, a municipality organized and existing under 
the laws of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as CITY, and BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, 
INC., hereinafter referred to as CONTRACTOR, for CONTRACTOR to provide CITY with 
graffiti abatement services: 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
CITY and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree 
as follows: 
 
Article 1: Scope of Graffiti Abatement Services. 
CONTRACTOR shall provide and complete all work as specified or indicated in the Contract 
Documents that include this Agreement and all Request for Proposal No. 06-1920 documents and 
CONTRACTOR’s proposal to same, and any related CITY approved Change Orders. The work 
contemplated by this Agreement is generally described as follows: 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) NO. 06-1920 GRAFFITI ABATEMENT FOR THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR A PERIOD OF 36 MONTHS 

FROM THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT. 
 

All of CONTRACTOR’s services shall be performed in accordance with the RFP Specifications 
prepared by the CITY Public Works Department. Services shall be for all materials, equipment 
and services, including labor to perform Debris Monitoring Services, of which the requirements 
and scope of services are more specifically detailed in: Attachment “A”: RFP No. 06-1920. 
 
Article 2: CITY’s Responsibility. 
Access to Work Area: The CITY shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable access to all areas 
in which CONTRACTOR’s services and obligations under this Agreement are to be performed 
and executed. 
 
Article 3: Terms of Agreement. 
This Agreement shall be effective from the date of City Council action, September 8, 2020, and 
will continue in effect for three calendar years. This Agreement may be extended for additional 
terms, from one year through two years in length each, for a total contract length not to exceed 
five years. 
 
Article 4: Nonexclusive Contract. 
Nothing herein is intended nor shall be construed as creating any exclusive arrangement with 
CONTRACTOR. This Agreement does not restrict the CITY from acquiring similar, equal or like 
goods and/or services from other entities or sources. The CITY makes no guarantee of amount of 
work for CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.  
 
  



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 2 of 12 

Article 5: Payment To CONTRACTOR. 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide services as described in the Contract Documents and comply 
with the terms therein. 
 

5.1 For Basic Services: CITY shall pay CONTRACTOR for contractual services performed 
or furnished under RFP No. 06-1920 (Attachment “A”), as set forth in 
CONTRACTOR’s Proposal Packet (Attachment “B”) submitted by CONTRACTOR in 
response to: RFP No. 06-1920 and associated PROPOSAL TENDER FORM. 

 
5.2 For Additional Services: Notwithstanding the scope of work enumerated in Attachment 

“A”: RFP No. 06-1920, CONTRACTOR will, upon written request from the CITY, 
provide any and all other services normally falling within the services offered by 
CONTRACTOR. In advance of performance of additional services, CITY and 
CONTRACTOR shall agree in writing to the additional services and negotiated price, 
consistent with the type of services requested. CONTRACTOR shall not perform 
additional services without prior written agreement on the services and price by the CITY. 

 
5.3 Invoices. 

A. Preparation of Invoices: Invoices will be prepared in accordance with 
CONTRACTOR’s standard invoicing practices and will be submitted to the CITY by 
CONTRACTOR, unless otherwise agreed. The amount billed in each invoice will be 
calculated as set forth herein. Invoices are to be issued by the 10th of the month for 
services rendered in the previous month. 

 
B. Payment of Invoices: Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt. 

 
C. Disputed Invoices: In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, only that portion so 

contested may be withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be paid. 
 

5.4 Payment Upon Termination: In the event of termination, CONTRACTOR will be entitled 
to be paid for all services performed or furnished through the effective date of termination. 

 
5.5 Records of CONTRACTOR’s cost: Records of CONTRACTOR’s cost pertinent to 

CONTRACTOR’s compensation under this Agreement shall be kept in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices. Upon the CITY’s request, copies of such records 
will be made available by CONTRACTOR to the CITY, at no cost to the CITY.  
CONTRACTOR’s costs records are public record. 

 
Article 6: Standards of Performance. 
CONTRACTOR and CITY shall comply with applicable laws, regulations, and CITY mandated 
performance standards and regulations. This Agreement is based on these requirements as of its 
Effective Date and includes Attachment “A”: RFP No. 06-1920.  Changes to these 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 3 of 12 

requirements after the Effective Date may be the basis for modifications to CONTRACTOR’s 
scope of work, times of performance, or compensation. 
 
Article 7: CONTRACTOR as Independent Contractor. 
It is expressly agreed and understood that CONTRACTOR is in all respects, an independent 
contractor as to the work and is in no respect an agent, servant, or employee of the CITY. This 
Agreement and the Contract Documents specify the work to be done by CONTRACTOR. The 
method to be employed to accomplish the work is the responsibility of CONTRACTOR. 
 
Article 8: Subcontracting. 
CONTRACTOR may subcontract services to be performed hereunder with prior approval of the 
CITY. No such approval will be construed as making the CITY a party of or to such subcontract, 
or subjecting the CITY to liability of any kind to any subcontract. No subcontract shall, under any 
circumstances, relieve CONTRACTOR of its liability and obligation under this Agreement.  
Despite any such subcontracting, the CITY shall deal through CONTRACTOR, and 
subcontractors will be dealt with as workers and representatives of CONTRACTOR. 
 
Article 9: Authorized Project Representatives. 
Upon the execution of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR and CITY shall designate specific 
individuals to act as representatives with respect to the services to be performed or furnished by 
CONTRACTOR and responsibilities of CITY under this Agreement. Such individuals shall have 
authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative to the work 
on behalf of each respective party. 
 
Article 10: Inspection of Work. 
CONTRACTOR shall furnish the CITY or the CITY’s representative with every reasonable 
opportunity for determining whether or not the work is performed in accordance with the 
requirements of this Agreement. The CITY may appoint persons to inspect CONTRACTOR’s 
operations, equipment, and performance, and CONTRACTOR shall permit these persons to make 
such inspections. 
 
Article 11: Right To Require Performance. 
The failure of either the CITY or CONTRACTOR at any time to require performance by the other 
party of any provisions hereof shall in no way affect the right of the performing party thereafter to 
enforce the same. Nor shall waiver by such party of any breach of any provision hereof be taken 
or held to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of any provision 
itself. 
 
Article 12: Extraordinary Occurrences. 
It is agreed that in no event shall the CITY or CONTRACTOR be liable or responsible to each 
other or to other persons for damages resulting from deficiencies or delays in the work herein 
provided for, where such deficiencies or delays result from Acts of God, fire, natural disaster, or 
any other cause not within reasonable control of the CITY or CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 4 of 12 

recognizes the essential nature of the services to be performed hereunder and will use its best 
efforts to discharge its functions despite such extraordinary occurrences. 
 
Article 13: Insurance. 

13.1 Hold Harmless: The CITY shall be held harmless against all claims, actions, and suits for 
bodily injury, disease, death, personal injury, and damage to property or loss of use 
resulting there from, to the extent caused by CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, unless 
such claims are a result of the CITY’S sole negligence. 

 
13.2 Payment on Behalf of the CITY: CONTRACTOR agrees to pay on behalf of the CITY, 

the CITY’s legal defense, for all claims, actions, and suits resulting from CONTRACTOR 
or its subcontractors’ work under this Agreement. Such payment on behalf of the CITY 
shall be in addition to all other legal remedies available to the CITY and shall not be 
considered to be the CITY’s exclusive remedy. 

 
13.3 Loss Control/Safety: Precaution shall be exercised at all times by CONTRACTOR for the 

protection of all persons, employees, and property. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all 
laws, regulations and ordinances related to safety and health, shall make special efforts to 
detect hazardous conditions, and shall take prompt action where loss control and safety 
measures should reasonably be expected. 

 
13.4 Proof of Carriage of Insurance & Naming CITY as Additional Insured. CONTRACTOR 

shall furnish the CITY with satisfactory proof of carriage of insurance required herein.  
CONTRACTOR shall name the CITY as additional insured on CONTRACTOR’S, and 
any sub-consultant’s or subcontractor’s Public Liability, Property Damage and 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance Policies. The additional insured shall be 
provided the same coverage as the primary insured for losses arising from work performed 
by CONTRACTOR or its sub-consultant’s or subcontractor’s.  The proof of carriage or a 
copy of all policies shall be required prior to commencement of any work under this 
Agreement. 

 
 The CITY may order work to be stopped if conditions exist that present immediate danger 

to persons or property. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that such stoppage will not shift 
responsibility for any damages or losses from CONTRACTOR to the CITY. 

 
13.5 Insurance Requirements. Basic Coverage’s Required:  During the term of this Agreement, 

CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain the following-described insurance and/or 
self-insurance except for coverage’s specifically waived by the CITY. All policies and 
insurers must be acceptable to the CITY. 

 
 These insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of CONTRACTOR. The CITY 

does not represent these types of amounts of insurance to be sufficient or adequate to 
protect CONTRACTOR’s interests or liabilities, but are merely minimums. 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 5 of 12 

A. Workers Compensation Coverage is required. 
CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall purchase and maintain worker’s 
compensation insurance for all workers compensation obligations imposed by state 
law with employers’ liability limits of at least $100,000 each accident, $100,000 each 
employee and $500,000 policy limit for disease. 

 
CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall also purchase any other coverage’s 
required by law for the benefit of employees. 

  
B. General Liability Coverage is required for all CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors. 

Commercial General Liability in Occurrence Form. 
 

Coverage A shall include Bodily Injury and Property Damage coverage for liability 
claims arising from premises, operations, contractual liability, independent 
Contractors, products and complete operations and including but not limited to 
coverage for claims resulting from explosion, collapse, or underground (x,c,u) 
exposures (if any). 

 
Coverage B shall include personal injury and is required 

 
Coverage C, medical payments is not required. 

 
Amounts: Bodily Injury:  $1,000,000 each occurrence 
      $1,000,000 Aggregate 
   Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence 
      $1,000,000 aggregate 

 
C. Products and Completed Operations are required for CONTRACTOR and all 

Subcontractors. 
 

Amounts:    $1,000,000     aggregate 
 

D.  Business Auto Liability Coverage is required for CONTRACTOR and all 
Subcontractors. 
Business Auto Liability coverage is to include bodily injury and property damage 
arising out of ownership, maintenance, or use of any vehicle, including owned, non-
owned and hired vehicles, and employee non-ownership use. 

 
Amounts: Bodily Injury:  $1,000,000 each occurrence 
      $1,000,000 Aggregate 
   Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence 
      $1,000,000 aggregate 

 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 6 of 12 

E. Professional Liability is not required. 
 
F. Pollution Liability required of CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors. 

The CITY requires Pollution/Environmental Liability insurance covering cleanup 
costs including on-site discovery and third party liability, on-site and off-site third 
party pollution liability coverage, natural resources damage coverage. 
 
Limits of Liability:   $1,000,000  Each Pollution Event Limit 
       $1,000,000 Aggregate Policy Limit  

 
G.   Excess or Umbrella Liability Coverage. 

Umbrella Liability insurance is preferred, but an Excess Liability equivalent may be 
allowed.  Whichever type of coverage is provided, it shall not be more restrictive than 
the underlying insurance policy coverage. 

 
H. Claims Made Coverage – No Gap 

If any of the required liability insurance is provided on a “claims made” form, such 
coverage shall extend for a period of not less than 36 months following completion 
of the Agreement.  In the event of termination of a claims made policy, extended 
coverage may be provided by assurance that extended discovery coverage of at least 
36 months will be purchased from the expiring insurer, or by assurance that the 
succeeding insurer will provide retroactive coverage with an inception date of at least 
on or before the effective date of this Agreement. 

 
I. Certificates of Insurance 

Required insurance shall be documented in Certificates of Insurance which provide 
that the CITY shall be notified at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of 
cancellation, non-renewal, or adverse change. 

 
New Certificates of Insurance are to be provided to the CITY at least fifteen (15) 
calendar days prior to coverage renewals. 

 
If requested by the CITY, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish complete copies of the 
CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies, forms, and endorsements. 

 
For Commercial General Liability coverage, CONTRACTOR shall at the option of 
the CITY, provide an indication of the amount of claims, payments, or reserves 
chargeable to the aggregate amount of liability coverage. NOTE: Any subcontractors 
approved by the CITY shall be required to provide proof of insurance identical in 
amounts as required by the contact to perform related services. All coverage’s shall 
name the CITY as “additional insured”. 

 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 7 of 12 

Receipt of certificates or other documents of insurance or policies or copies of 
policies by the CITY, or by any of its representatives, which indicate less coverage 
than required will not constitute a waiver of the CONTRACTOR’s obligation to 
fulfill the insurance requirements herein. 

 
Article 14: Termination. 
The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated: 
 

14.1 For cause. By either the CITY or CONTRACTOR upon 30 days written notice in the 
event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms 
hereof through no fault of the terminating party. 

 
14.2 For convenience. By the CITY, effective upon the receipt of notice by CONTRACTOR.  

The CITY’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon 
an annual appropriation by the City Council. 

 
Article 15: Indemnification. 
A: General Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall hold 
harmless, indemnify and pay on behalf of the CITY, CITY’s officers, directors, partners, agents, 
contractors, and employees from and against any and all costs, losses, and damages, including 
claims for bodily injury, disease, death, personal injury and damage to property or loss of use 
resulting therefrom, and for professional liability, (including, but not limited to all fees and charges 
of contractors, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court, arbitration, or other 
resolution costs) caused by the negligent acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or 
CONTRACTOR’s officers, directors, partners, agents, contractors, employees, and 
CONTRACTOR’s consultants, agents, and contractors in the performance and furnishing of 
CONTRACTOR’s services under this Agreement, unless such claims are a result of the CITY’s 
sole negligence. Such payments on behalf of the CITY shall be in addition to all other legal 
remedies available to the CITY and shall not be considered to be the CITY’s exclusive remedy.  
 
B: Copyright and Intellectual Property Rights. At CONTRACTOR’s expense as described 
herein, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold CITY and its affiliates and their 
respective directors, officers, employees, and contractors and agents harmless from and against 
any claims that any of the professional services allegedly infringe a patent, copyright, trademark, 
trade secrets or other intellectual property right by defending against such claim and paying all 
amounts that a court awards or that CONTRACTOR agrees to in settlement of such claim. 
CONTRACTOR shall also reimburse the CITY for all reasonable expenses incurred by the CITY 
in respect of each claim. To qualify for such defense and payment, CITY must: (i) give 
CONTRACTOR prompt written notice of such claim; and (ii) allow CONTRACTOR to control, 
and fully co-operate with CITY in the defense and all related negotiations. CONTRACTOR’s 
obligation under this Section in conditional upon CITY’s agreement that, if the professional 
services become, or in CONTRACTOR’s opinion (as stated in writing to CITY by 
CONTRACTOR) is likely to become the subject of an infringement claim, then CITY shall permit 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 8 of 12 

CONTRACTOR, at CONTRACTOR’s expense, either to procure the right for CITY to continue 
to use such intellectual property contained in the professional services or to replace or modify it 
so that it becomes non-infringing and retains in all material respects comparable functionality in 
the CITY’S environment. CONTRACTOR shall have no obligation with respect to any claim to 
the extent it is based on (i) CITY’s use of the intellectual property contained in the professional 
services in violation of this Agreement; (ii) modifications or user controlled features not authorized 
by CONTRACTOR; (iii) custom programming for which CONTRACTOR does not develop the 
specifications or where the code at issue is supplied by CITY. This subsection states 
CONTRACTOR’s entire obligation regarding intellectual property right infringement. 
 
Article 16: Notices. 
Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, addressed to the appropriate party at 
its address on the signature page and given personally, or by registered or certified mail postage 
prepaid, or by a commercial courier service. All notices shall be effective upon date of receipt. 
 
Article 17: Survival. 
All express representations, indemnifications, or limitations of liability included in this Agreement 
will survive its completion or termination for any reason. 
 
Article 18: Severability. 
Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any laws or 
regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and 
binding upon the CITY and CONTRACTOR, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to 
replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes 
as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 
 
Article 19: Waiver. 
Non-enforcement of any provision by either party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, 
nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement. 
 
Article 20: Headings. 
The headings used in this Agreement are for general reference only and do not have special 
significance. 
 
Article 21: Contract Documents. 
The Contract Documents which comprise the entire Agreement between the CITY and 
CONTRACTOR consist of the following, which are made a part thereof: 
 

21.1 Contract Agreement for Graffiti Abatement Services (pages 1 to 12, inclusive). 
 

21.2 Attachment “A”: RFP No. 06-1920 in total. 
 

21.3 Attachment “B”: Bid Proposal Packet submitted by CONTRACTOR in response to RFP 
No. 06-1920, including, but not limited to: 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 9 of 12 

 
A.  CONTRACTOR’s PROPOSAL TENDER FORM. 
B.  CONTRACTOR’s DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE COMPLIANCE FORM. 
C.  CONTRACTOR’s NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT. 
D. CONTRACTOR’s NON-BANKRUPTCY AFFIDAVIT. 

 
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 21. The Contract 
Documents may only be altered, amended, or repealed in accordance with the Terms and 
Conditions. 
 
Article 22: Governing Law. 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Both parties agree that the 
courts of the State of Florida shall have jurisdiction of any claim arising in connection with this 
Agreement.  In the event of litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to the award of attorney’s fees and costs at both the trial and appellate level. 
 
Article 23: Materials and Services. 
The professional fees for CONTRACTOR’s services are set forth on the “Fee Schedule” as 
contained in CONTRACTOR’s submitted proposal and made part hereof. 
 
Article 24: General Terms. 
CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless and defend the CITY, its officers, agents, and employees 
from and against all losses and all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, recoveries, and 
judgments of every nature and description and all costs, including attorney fees, arising under this 
Agreement, including claims for property damage and claims for injury to or death of persons 
arising out of or occurring as a result of any act or omission of the CITY, its officers, agents, or 
employees in the performance of its obligation to the CITY, other than claims arising from the 
intentional or negligent acts or omissions of the CITY, its officers, agents, or employees. 
 
CONTRACTOR, without exception, shall indemnify and hold harmless the CITY, its officers, 
agents, and employees from liability of any nature or kind, including costs and expenses for, or on 
account of, any copyrighted, patented, or unpatented invention, process, or article manufactured 
or used in the performance of this Agreement, including use by the CITY. 
 
The CITY is a government agency, therefore, the CITY is exempt from any sales tax.  The CITY, 
however, agrees to reimburse CONTRACTOR for any other taxes, duties, or other fees that 
CONTRACTOR may be required to pay when performing services or producing material on behalf 
of the CITY. 
 
It is agreed that all materials and information furnished to CONTRACTOR by the CITY or to the 
CITY by CONTRACTOR shall remain confidential, except to the extent that such materials and 
information have become a matter of public record, and such materials and information shall not 
be divulged except as required under this Agreement or by the Laws of the State of Florida. 
 
  



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 10 of 12 

Article 25. Public Records Law Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. 
The Parties acknowledge that the CITY is a governmental entity subject to the Florida Public 
Records Law, as governed by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  In accordance with Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes, the following provisions are included in this contract: 
 

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, 
TO CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT 
THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, CITY CLERK’S OFFICE: 

 TELEPHONE NUMBER: 904-247-6250 EXT # 11 
 EMAIL ADDRESS: CITYCLERK@JAXBCHFL.NET 
 MAILING ADDRESS: 11 NORTH THIRD STREET 
     JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FL 32250 
 
CONTRACTOR must keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the 
services.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges that upon request from the CITY, CONTRACTOR must 
provide the CITY with a copy of the requested records or allow the record to be inspected or copied 
within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  CONTRACTOR must ensure that public records that 
are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not 
disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement term and following 
completion of the Agreement if CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to the CITY.  Upon 
completion of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall transfer, at no cost to the CITY, all public 
records in its possession OR keep and maintain all public records required by the CITY to perform 
the service contemplated herein.  If CONTRACTOR transfers all public records to the CITY upon 
completion of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  If 
CONTRACTOR keeps and maintains the public records upon completion of the Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.  All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the CITY, upon request from the CITY, in a format that 
is compatible with the CITY’s information technology systems. 
 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges that a request to inspect or copy public records relating to a 
CITY’S Agreement for services must be made directly to the CITY.  If the CITY does not possess 
the requested records, the CITY shall immediately notify CONTRACTOR of the request, and 
CONTRACTOR must provide the records to the CITY or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time.  If CONTRACTOR fails to provide the public records to the 
CITY within a reasonable time it may be subject to penalties under Section 119.10, Florida 
Statutes.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges its potential liability pursuant to Section 119.0701(4), 
Florida Statutes, if the CITY has to seek legal action to compel CONTRACTOR to produce public 
records relating to a CITY’S Agreement for services. 

mailto:CITYCLERK@JAXBCHFL.NET




CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND BIOTRAITS CHEMICAL, INC. 

    
 

Page 12 of 12 

AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 
 
 
CITY:       CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
Address for Giving Notices: Address for Giving Notices: 
 
City of Jacksonville Beach    Biotraits Chemical, Inc.    
 
Department of Public Works                           3208 East Colonial Drive, Suite 253   
 
1460A Shetter Avenue    Orlando, FL 32803           
 
Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250         
 
Designated Representative Designated Representative 
(Article 9): (Article 9): 
 
Name: Dennis Barron, Jr., MBA                     Name: Pete A. Wengert    
 
Title: Director of Public Works                       Title: President/Owner               
 
Phone Number (904) 247-6219                       Phone Number:(904) 400-2343   













































CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES 
 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 8th day of September, 2020 by and between the 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, a municipality organized and existing under 
the laws of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as CITY, and KRYSTAL COMPANIES, 
LLC, d/b/a KRYSTAL KLEAN, hereinafter referred to as CONTRACTOR, for 
CONTRACTOR to provide CITY with graffiti abatement services: 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
CITY and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree 
as follows: 
 
Article 1: Scope of Graffiti Abatement Services. 
CONTRACTOR shall provide and complete all work as specified or indicated in the Contract 
Documents that include this Agreement and all Request for Proposal No. 06-1920 documents and 
CONTRACTOR’s proposal to same, and any related CITY approved Change Orders. The work 
contemplated by this Agreement is generally described as follows: 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) NO. 06-1920 GRAFFITI ABATEMENT FOR THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR A PERIOD OF 36 MONTHS 

FROM THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT. 
 

All of CONTRACTOR’s services shall be performed in accordance with the RFP Specifications 
prepared by the CITY Public Works Department. Services shall be for all materials, equipment 
and services, including labor to perform Debris Monitoring Services, of which the requirements 
and scope of services are more specifically detailed in: Attachment “A”: RFP No. 06-1920. 
 
Article 2: CITY’s Responsibility. 
Access to Work Area: The CITY shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable access to all areas 
in which CONTRACTOR’s services and obligations under this Agreement are to be performed 
and executed. 
 
Article 3: Terms of Agreement. 
This Agreement shall be effective from the date of City Council action, September 8, 2020, and 
will continue in effect for three calendar years. This Agreement may be extended for additional 
terms, from one year through two years in length each, for a total contract length not to exceed 
five years. 
 
Article 4: Nonexclusive Contract. 
Nothing herein is intended nor shall be construed as creating any exclusive arrangement with 
CONTRACTOR. This Agreement does not restrict the CITY from acquiring similar, equal or like 
goods and/or services from other entities or sources. The CITY makes no guarantee of amount of 
work for CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.  
 
  



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 2 of 12 

Article 5: Payment To CONTRACTOR. 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide services as described in the Contract Documents and comply 
with the terms therein. 
 

5.1 For Basic Services: CITY shall pay CONTRACTOR for contractual services performed 
or furnished under RFP No. 06-1920 (Attachment “A”), as set forth in 
CONTRACTOR’s Proposal Packet (Attachment “B”) submitted by CONTRACTOR in 
response to: RFP No. 06-1920 and associated PROPOSAL TENDER FORM. 

 
5.2 For Additional Services: Notwithstanding the scope of work enumerated in Attachment 

“A”: RFP No. 06-1920, CONTRACTOR will, upon written request from the CITY, 
provide any and all other services normally falling within the services offered by 
CONTRACTOR. In advance of performance of additional services, CITY and 
CONTRACTOR shall agree in writing to the additional services and negotiated price, 
consistent with the type of services requested. CONTRACTOR shall not perform 
additional services without prior written agreement on the services and price by the CITY. 

 
5.3 Invoices. 

A. Preparation of Invoices: Invoices will be prepared in accordance with 
CONTRACTOR’s standard invoicing practices and will be submitted to the CITY by 
CONTRACTOR, unless otherwise agreed. The amount billed in each invoice will be 
calculated as set forth herein. Invoices are to be issued by the 10th of the month for 
services rendered in the previous month. 

 
B. Payment of Invoices: Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt. 

 
C. Disputed Invoices: In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, only that portion so 

contested may be withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be paid. 
 

5.4 Payment Upon Termination: In the event of termination, CONTRACTOR will be entitled 
to be paid for all services performed or furnished through the effective date of termination. 

 
5.5 Records of CONTRACTOR’s cost: Records of CONTRACTOR’s cost pertinent to 

CONTRACTOR’s compensation under this Agreement shall be kept in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices. Upon the CITY’s request, copies of such records 
will be made available by CONTRACTOR to the CITY, at no cost to the CITY.  
CONTRACTOR’s costs records are public record. 

 
Article 6: Standards of Performance. 
CONTRACTOR and CITY shall comply with applicable laws, regulations, and CITY mandated 
performance standards and regulations. This Agreement is based on these requirements as of its 
Effective Date and includes Attachment “A”: RFP No. 06-1920.  Changes to these 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 3 of 12 

requirements after the Effective Date may be the basis for modifications to CONTRACTOR’s 
scope of work, times of performance, or compensation. 
 
Article 7: CONTRACTOR as Independent Contractor. 
It is expressly agreed and understood that CONTRACTOR is in all respects, an independent 
contractor as to the work and is in no respect an agent, servant, or employee of the CITY. This 
Agreement and the Contract Documents specify the work to be done by CONTRACTOR. The 
method to be employed to accomplish the work is the responsibility of CONTRACTOR. 
 
Article 8: Subcontracting. 
CONTRACTOR may subcontract services to be performed hereunder with prior approval of the 
CITY. No such approval will be construed as making the CITY a party of or to such subcontract, 
or subjecting the CITY to liability of any kind to any subcontract. No subcontract shall, under any 
circumstances, relieve CONTRACTOR of its liability and obligation under this Agreement.  
Despite any such subcontracting, the CITY shall deal through CONTRACTOR, and 
subcontractors will be dealt with as workers and representatives of CONTRACTOR. 
 
Article 9: Authorized Project Representatives. 
Upon the execution of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR and CITY shall designate specific 
individuals to act as representatives with respect to the services to be performed or furnished by 
CONTRACTOR and responsibilities of CITY under this Agreement. Such individuals shall have 
authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative to the work 
on behalf of each respective party. 
 
Article 10: Inspection of Work. 
CONTRACTOR shall furnish the CITY or the CITY’s representative with every reasonable 
opportunity for determining whether or not the work is performed in accordance with the 
requirements of this Agreement. The CITY may appoint persons to inspect CONTRACTOR’s 
operations, equipment, and performance, and CONTRACTOR shall permit these persons to make 
such inspections. 
 
Article 11: Right To Require Performance. 
The failure of either the CITY or CONTRACTOR at any time to require performance by the other 
party of any provisions hereof shall in no way affect the right of the performing party thereafter to 
enforce the same. Nor shall waiver by such party of any breach of any provision hereof be taken 
or held to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of any provision 
itself. 
 
Article 12: Extraordinary Occurrences. 
It is agreed that in no event shall the CITY or CONTRACTOR be liable or responsible to each 
other or to other persons for damages resulting from deficiencies or delays in the work herein 
provided for, where such deficiencies or delays result from Acts of God, fire, natural disaster, or 
any other cause not within reasonable control of the CITY or CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 4 of 12 

recognizes the essential nature of the services to be performed hereunder and will use its best 
efforts to discharge its functions despite such extraordinary occurrences. 
 
Article 13: Insurance. 

13.1 Hold Harmless: The CITY shall be held harmless against all claims, actions, and suits for 
bodily injury, disease, death, personal injury, and damage to property or loss of use 
resulting there from, to the extent caused by CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, unless 
such claims are a result of the CITY’S sole negligence. 

 
13.2 Payment on Behalf of the CITY: CONTRACTOR agrees to pay on behalf of the CITY, 

the CITY’s legal defense, for all claims, actions, and suits resulting from CONTRACTOR 
or its subcontractors’ work under this Agreement. Such payment on behalf of the CITY 
shall be in addition to all other legal remedies available to the CITY and shall not be 
considered to be the CITY’s exclusive remedy. 

 
13.3 Loss Control/Safety: Precaution shall be exercised at all times by CONTRACTOR for the 

protection of all persons, employees, and property. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all 
laws, regulations and ordinances related to safety and health, shall make special efforts to 
detect hazardous conditions, and shall take prompt action where loss control and safety 
measures should reasonably be expected. 

 
13.4 Proof of Carriage of Insurance & Naming CITY as Additional Insured. CONTRACTOR 

shall furnish the CITY with satisfactory proof of carriage of insurance required herein.  
CONTRACTOR shall name the CITY as additional insured on CONTRACTOR’S, and 
any sub-consultant’s or subcontractor’s Public Liability, Property Damage and 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance Policies. The additional insured shall be 
provided the same coverage as the primary insured for losses arising from work performed 
by CONTRACTOR or its sub-consultant’s or subcontractor’s.  The proof of carriage or a 
copy of all policies shall be required prior to commencement of any work under this 
Agreement. 

 
 The CITY may order work to be stopped if conditions exist that present immediate danger 

to persons or property. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that such stoppage will not shift 
responsibility for any damages or losses from CONTRACTOR to the CITY. 

 
13.5 Insurance Requirements. Basic Coverage’s Required:  During the term of this Agreement, 

CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain the following-described insurance and/or 
self-insurance except for coverage’s specifically waived by the CITY. All policies and 
insurers must be acceptable to the CITY. 

 
 These insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of CONTRACTOR. The CITY 

does not represent these types of amounts of insurance to be sufficient or adequate to 
protect CONTRACTOR’s interests or liabilities, but are merely minimums. 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 5 of 12 

A. Workers Compensation Coverage is required. 
CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall purchase and maintain worker’s 
compensation insurance for all workers compensation obligations imposed by state 
law with employers’ liability limits of at least $100,000 each accident, $100,000 each 
employee and $500,000 policy limit for disease. 

 
CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall also purchase any other coverage’s 
required by law for the benefit of employees. 

  
B. General Liability Coverage is required for all CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors. 

Commercial General Liability in Occurrence Form. 
 

Coverage A shall include Bodily Injury and Property Damage coverage for liability 
claims arising from premises, operations, contractual liability, independent 
Contractors, products and complete operations and including but not limited to 
coverage for claims resulting from explosion, collapse, or underground (x,c,u) 
exposures (if any). 

 
Coverage B shall include personal injury and is required 

 
Coverage C, medical payments is not required. 

 
Amounts: Bodily Injury:  $1,000,000 each occurrence 
      $1,000,000 Aggregate 
   Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence 
      $1,000,000 aggregate 

 
C. Products and Completed Operations are required for CONTRACTOR and all 

Subcontractors. 
 

Amounts:    $1,000,000     aggregate 
 

D.  Business Auto Liability Coverage is required for CONTRACTOR and all 
Subcontractors. 
Business Auto Liability coverage is to include bodily injury and property damage 
arising out of ownership, maintenance, or use of any vehicle, including owned, non-
owned and hired vehicles, and employee non-ownership use. 

 
Amounts: Bodily Injury:  $1,000,000 each occurrence 
      $1,000,000 Aggregate 
   Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence 
      $1,000,000 aggregate 

 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 6 of 12 

E. Professional Liability is not required. 
 
F. Pollution Liability required of CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors. 

The CITY requires Pollution/Environmental Liability insurance covering cleanup 
costs including on-site discovery and third party liability, on-site and off-site third 
party pollution liability coverage, natural resources damage coverage. 
 
Limits of Liability:   $1,000,000  Each Pollution Event Limit 
       $1,000,000 Aggregate Policy Limit  

 
G.   Excess or Umbrella Liability Coverage. 

Umbrella Liability insurance is preferred, but an Excess Liability equivalent may be 
allowed.  Whichever type of coverage is provided, it shall not be more restrictive than 
the underlying insurance policy coverage. 

 
H. Claims Made Coverage – No Gap 

If any of the required liability insurance is provided on a “claims made” form, such 
coverage shall extend for a period of not less than 36 months following completion 
of the Agreement.  In the event of termination of a claims made policy, extended 
coverage may be provided by assurance that extended discovery coverage of at least 
36 months will be purchased from the expiring insurer, or by assurance that the 
succeeding insurer will provide retroactive coverage with an inception date of at least 
on or before the effective date of this Agreement. 

 
I. Certificates of Insurance 

Required insurance shall be documented in Certificates of Insurance which provide 
that the CITY shall be notified at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of 
cancellation, non-renewal, or adverse change. 

 
New Certificates of Insurance are to be provided to the CITY at least fifteen (15) 
calendar days prior to coverage renewals. 

 
If requested by the CITY, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish complete copies of the 
CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies, forms, and endorsements. 

 
For Commercial General Liability coverage, CONTRACTOR shall at the option of 
the CITY, provide an indication of the amount of claims, payments, or reserves 
chargeable to the aggregate amount of liability coverage. NOTE: Any subcontractors 
approved by the CITY shall be required to provide proof of insurance identical in 
amounts as required by the contact to perform related services. All coverage’s shall 
name the CITY as “additional insured”. 

 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 7 of 12 

Receipt of certificates or other documents of insurance or policies or copies of 
policies by the CITY, or by any of its representatives, which indicate less coverage 
than required will not constitute a waiver of the CONTRACTOR’s obligation to 
fulfill the insurance requirements herein. 

 
Article 14: Termination. 
The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated: 
 

14.1 For cause. By either the CITY or CONTRACTOR upon 30 days written notice in the 
event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms 
hereof through no fault of the terminating party. 

 
14.2 For convenience. By the CITY, effective upon the receipt of notice by CONTRACTOR.  

The CITY’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon 
an annual appropriation by the City Council. 

 
Article 15: Indemnification. 
A: General Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall hold 
harmless, indemnify and pay on behalf of the CITY, CITY’s officers, directors, partners, agents, 
contractors, and employees from and against any and all costs, losses, and damages, including 
claims for bodily injury, disease, death, personal injury and damage to property or loss of use 
resulting therefrom, and for professional liability, (including, but not limited to all fees and charges 
of contractors, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court, arbitration, or other 
resolution costs) caused by the negligent acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or 
CONTRACTOR’s officers, directors, partners, agents, contractors, employees, and 
CONTRACTOR’s consultants, agents, and contractors in the performance and furnishing of 
CONTRACTOR’s services under this Agreement, unless such claims are a result of the CITY’s 
sole negligence. Such payments on behalf of the CITY shall be in addition to all other legal 
remedies available to the CITY and shall not be considered to be the CITY’s exclusive remedy.  
 
B: Copyright and Intellectual Property Rights. At CONTRACTOR’s expense as described 
herein, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold CITY and its affiliates and their 
respective directors, officers, employees, and contractors and agents harmless from and against 
any claims that any of the professional services allegedly infringe a patent, copyright, trademark, 
trade secrets or other intellectual property right by defending against such claim and paying all 
amounts that a court awards or that CONTRACTOR agrees to in settlement of such claim. 
CONTRACTOR shall also reimburse the CITY for all reasonable expenses incurred by the CITY 
in respect of each claim. To qualify for such defense and payment, CITY must: (i) give 
CONTRACTOR prompt written notice of such claim; and (ii) allow CONTRACTOR to control, 
and fully co-operate with CITY in the defense and all related negotiations. CONTRACTOR’s 
obligation under this Section in conditional upon CITY’s agreement that, if the professional 
services become, or in CONTRACTOR’s opinion (as stated in writing to CITY by 
CONTRACTOR) is likely to become the subject of an infringement claim, then CITY shall permit 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 8 of 12 

CONTRACTOR, at CONTRACTOR’s expense, either to procure the right for CITY to continue 
to use such intellectual property contained in the professional services or to replace or modify it 
so that it becomes non-infringing and retains in all material respects comparable functionality in 
the CITY’S environment. CONTRACTOR shall have no obligation with respect to any claim to 
the extent it is based on (i) CITY’s use of the intellectual property contained in the professional 
services in violation of this Agreement; (ii) modifications or user controlled features not authorized 
by CONTRACTOR; (iii) custom programming for which CONTRACTOR does not develop the 
specifications or where the code at issue is supplied by CITY. This subsection states 
CONTRACTOR’s entire obligation regarding intellectual property right infringement. 
 
Article 16: Notices. 
Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, addressed to the appropriate party at 
its address on the signature page and given personally, or by registered or certified mail postage 
prepaid, or by a commercial courier service. All notices shall be effective upon date of receipt. 
 
Article 17: Survival. 
All express representations, indemnifications, or limitations of liability included in this Agreement 
will survive its completion or termination for any reason. 
 
Article 18: Severability. 
Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any laws or 
regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and 
binding upon the CITY and CONTRACTOR, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to 
replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes 
as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 
 
Article 19: Waiver. 
Non-enforcement of any provision by either party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, 
nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement. 
 
Article 20: Headings. 
The headings used in this Agreement are for general reference only and do not have special 
significance. 
 
Article 21: Contract Documents. 
The Contract Documents which comprise the entire Agreement between the CITY and 
CONTRACTOR consist of the following, which are made a part thereof: 
 

21.1 Contract Agreement for Graffiti Abatement Services (pages 1 to 12, inclusive). 
 

21.2 Attachment “A”: RFP No. 06-1920 in total. 
 

21.3 Attachment “B”: Bid Proposal Packet submitted by CONTRACTOR in response to RFP 
No. 06-1920, including, but not limited to: 



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 9 of 12 

 
A.  CONTRACTOR’s PROPOSAL TENDER FORM. 
B.  CONTRACTOR’s DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE COMPLIANCE FORM. 
C.  CONTRACTOR’s NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT. 
D. CONTRACTOR’s NON-BANKRUPTCY AFFIDAVIT. 

 
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 21. The Contract 
Documents may only be altered, amended, or repealed in accordance with the Terms and 
Conditions. 
 
Article 22: Governing Law. 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Both parties agree that the 
courts of the State of Florida shall have jurisdiction of any claim arising in connection with this 
Agreement.  In the event of litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to the award of attorney’s fees and costs at both the trial and appellate level. 
 
Article 23: Materials and Services. 
The professional fees for CONTRACTOR’s services are set forth on the “Fee Schedule” as 
contained in CONTRACTOR’s submitted proposal and made part hereof. 
 
Article 24: General Terms. 
CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless and defend the CITY, its officers, agents, and employees 
from and against all losses and all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, recoveries, and 
judgments of every nature and description and all costs, including attorney fees, arising under this 
Agreement, including claims for property damage and claims for injury to or death of persons 
arising out of or occurring as a result of any act or omission of the CITY, its officers, agents, or 
employees in the performance of its obligation to the CITY, other than claims arising from the 
intentional or negligent acts or omissions of the CITY, its officers, agents, or employees. 
 
CONTRACTOR, without exception, shall indemnify and hold harmless the CITY, its officers, 
agents, and employees from liability of any nature or kind, including costs and expenses for, or on 
account of, any copyrighted, patented, or unpatented invention, process, or article manufactured 
or used in the performance of this Agreement, including use by the CITY. 
 
The CITY is a government agency, therefore, the CITY is exempt from any sales tax.  The CITY, 
however, agrees to reimburse CONTRACTOR for any other taxes, duties, or other fees that 
CONTRACTOR may be required to pay when performing services or producing material on behalf 
of the CITY. 
 
It is agreed that all materials and information furnished to CONTRACTOR by the CITY or to the 
CITY by CONTRACTOR shall remain confidential, except to the extent that such materials and 
information have become a matter of public record, and such materials and information shall not 
be divulged except as required under this Agreement or by the Laws of the State of Florida. 
 
  



CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 10 of 12 

Article 25. Public Records Law Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. 
The Parties acknowledge that the CITY is a governmental entity subject to the Florida Public 
Records Law, as governed by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  In accordance with Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes, the following provisions are included in this contract: 
 

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, 
TO CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT 
THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, CITY CLERK’S OFFICE: 

 TELEPHONE NUMBER: 904-247-6250 EXT # 11 
 EMAIL ADDRESS: CITYCLERK@JAXBCHFL.NET 
 MAILING ADDRESS: 11 NORTH THIRD STREET 
     JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FL 32250 
 
CONTRACTOR must keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the 
services.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges that upon request from the CITY, CONTRACTOR must 
provide the CITY with a copy of the requested records or allow the record to be inspected or copied 
within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  CONTRACTOR must ensure that public records that 
are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not 
disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement term and following 
completion of the Agreement if CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to the CITY.  Upon 
completion of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall transfer, at no cost to the CITY, all public 
records in its possession OR keep and maintain all public records required by the CITY to perform 
the service contemplated herein.  If CONTRACTOR transfers all public records to the CITY upon 
completion of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  If 
CONTRACTOR keeps and maintains the public records upon completion of the Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.  All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the CITY, upon request from the CITY, in a format that 
is compatible with the CITY’s information technology systems. 
 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges that a request to inspect or copy public records relating to a 
CITY’S Agreement for services must be made directly to the CITY.  If the CITY does not possess 
the requested records, the CITY shall immediately notify CONTRACTOR of the request, and 
CONTRACTOR must provide the records to the CITY or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time.  If CONTRACTOR fails to provide the public records to the 
CITY within a reasonable time it may be subject to penalties under Section 119.10, Florida 
Statutes.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges its potential liability pursuant to Section 119.0701(4), 
Florida Statutes, if the CITY has to seek legal action to compel CONTRACTOR to produce public 
records relating to a CITY’S Agreement for services. 

mailto:CITYCLERK@JAXBCHFL.NET




CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR GRAFFITI ABATEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND KRYSTAL COMPANIES, LLC, D/B/A KRYSTAL KLEAN 

    
 

Page 12 of 12 

AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 
 
 
CITY:       CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
Address for Giving Notices: Address for Giving Notices: 
 
City of Jacksonville Beach    Krystal Companies, LLC    
 
Department of Public Works                           P.O. Box 51289   
 
1460A Shetter Avenue    Jacksonville, FL 32240           
 
Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250         
 
Designated Representative Designated Representative 
(Article 9): (Article 9): 
 
Name: Dennis Barron, Jr., MBA                     Name: Jeremy Morgan    
 
Title: Director of Public Works                       Title: Quality & Sales Manager               
 
Phone Number (904) 247-6219                       Phone Number:(904) 838-8003   



















































































   
                                

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:    Mike Staffopoulos, City Manager 

FROM:   Allen Putnam,  Director, Beaches Energy Services 

SUBJECT: Beaches Energy Services Supervisory Control and Data 

Acquisition (SCADA) Server Upgrade (Hardware and Software) 

DATE: August 31, 2020 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) is a system for remote 
monitoring and control that operates with coded signals over communication 
channels (using typically one communication channel per remote station). It is 
the type of computer-based system that allows users to be aware of the current 
status of the Beaches Energy Services (BES) Transmission and Distribution 
System for power supply and delivery of power to our customers. The current 
SCADA System hardware and software were installed in 2008 and will be out 
of warranty in the near future. In addition, support has been difficult at times 
because the software used by BES is several versions behind what is currently 
available.  
 
The current vendor for the SCADA system is Advanced Control Systems (ACS) 
and is sole source for any hardware or software upgrades. This upgrade 
complies with all current North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) 
Critical Infrastructure Protection (CIP) standards. Funding for this expenditure 
was included in the Beaches Energy FY2020 CIP, the funds will be spent from 
the following account: 410-12-1212-531-64-564002 E20S02.  

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Approve/Disapprove a purchase order in the amount of $158,346 with a 20% 
contingency for a total of $190,015.20 to fund the upgrade of our Advanced 
Control Systems Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System hardware 
and software.  

Beaches Energy  

Services 

1460-A Shetter Ave 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL  32250 

Phone: 904.247.6281 

 
www.beachesenergy.com 

 



Sole Source Request

January 2019 Property and Procurement Division

Pursuant to Section VII and XII of the City of Jacksonville Beach Purchasing Manual, when
requesting a sole source purchase from a vendor, please complete this form to justify your
request and submit to the Property and Procurement Division with applicable attachments.

“Sole Source items are any materials, supplies, or services that can only be obtained from one vendor or 
manufacturer, eliminating any possibility of securing a second competitive quote.

When it is determined that certain materials, supplies, or services are only available from a sole source, 
every effort must be made by the Department to secure documentation of sole source availability from the 
supplier, vendor, or manufacturer.”

Requesting agency (Department/Division):

Name of Vendor or Supplier:

Amount of purchase/project (attach quote):

Provide a summary (brief description) of the scope of goods/services to be provided and
detailed justification as to why the requested goods/services can only be efficiently and
effectively procured through the recommended sole source provider:

Assert that you have researched the availability of the requested goods/services from
other sources in applicable markets and have discussed and evaluated the same with
COJB’s property and procurement division (attach sole source letter – signed, on
company letterhead):

Submitted by:
Name Title

Date:

Requesting Agency Director’s Signature:

Property and Procurement Approval:

Any purchase in excess of the $25,000 Bid Threshold Amount must have prior City Council approval or 
must be approved and signed by the City Manager

City Manager:
Date

Beaches Energy Services - Operations

Advanced Control Systems (ACS)

$158,346

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) hardware and software
upgrade to current version and to bring into warranty compliance.

I assert that I have researched the availability of the requested goods/services
from other sources in applicable markets and have discussed and evaluated
the same with COJBs property and procurement division.

Kevin Stewart System Ops Supervisor

August 31. 2020

9-1-2020



 



 

 
2755 Northwoods Parkway | Peachtree Corners, GA 30071 | 770.446.8854 | www.minsait-acs.com 

 

August 31, 2020        

To: Beaches Energy Services  

 1460 Shetter Avenue 

 Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

 

Attn: Kevin Stewart 

 (904) 386-6310 

kstewart@beachesenergy.com 

 

Offer Number: PR-2008-5518 

Description: PRISM System Upgrade 

 

Dear Mr. Stewart, 

Minsait ACS is pleased to present to Beaches Energy Services this revised offer to perform an 

upgrade of your PRISM system to our newest release of the core software, PRISM 11, as well an 

option for an interface to the existing OMS system.  

Our records indicate that your current system is running PRISM 10. To continue to effectively 

support your system and ensure that you have the latest features and performance capability that 

Minsait ACS has to offer; it is important that you consider a PRISM upgrade currently. 

PRISM 11 is Minsait ACS’ first true 64-bit version of our system software. This affords many 

advantages over your existing software, but chief among them is the increased system 

performance – including the ability to process 10x more database changes/sec than prior version. 

The new release also provides enhanced alarm/event functionality and security features, among 

other improvements. You can find details on the changes made in the accompanying 

documentation. 

If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please let me know. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Kurt Nolte 

Sales Director 

(678) 591-1898 

kurt.nolte@acspower.com 

 

 



 

 
2755 Northwoods Parkway | Peachtree Corners, GA 30071 | 770.446.8854 | www.minsait-acs.com 

 

 

 

Beaches Energy Services 

 

 

 

 

PRISM System Upgrade 

Firm Offer 

 

Offer No.: PR-2008-5518 

Rev.: 07 

Date.: August 31, 2020 

 

 

 

Originated by: Matt Roberts 

 

 

 

 

 

This document contains proprietary information 



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 3 

 

Table of Contents 
1 Introduction ............................................................................................................................. 5 

2 Solution Description ................................................................................................................ 6 

2.1 PRISM Designer ............................................................................................................... 8 

2.1.1 Before & After ............................................................................................................ 8 

2.2 SwitchPlan (Included with PRISM Upgrade) ..................................................................... 9 

2.3 Upgrade Considerations ..................................................................................................10 

2.3.1 Software Requirements .............................................................................................10 

2.3.2 Hardware Requirements ...........................................................................................11 

2.4 System Upgrade Cost and System Considerations .........................................................11 

2.5 PRISM Web Services Gateway .......................................................................................12 

2.5.1 System Configuration ................................................................................................12 

2.5.2 Prerequisites and Assumptions .................................................................................13 

2.6 PRISM System Monitor ...................................................................................................14 

2.6.1 What can PSM do? ...................................................................................................14 

2.6.2 Functionality ..............................................................................................................15 

2.6.3 Requirements ............................................................................................................15 

2.6.4 Exclusions .................................................................................................................15 

2.6.5 Professional Services ................................................................................................15 

2.7 CMI Training Simulator ....................................................................................................15 

2.8 Option – Training Classes ...............................................................................................16 

2.8.1 Linux Administration ..................................................................................................16 

2.8.2 Database and Display Editor .....................................................................................17 

2.8.3 NTX Series Service and Operation............................................................................18 

3 Scope of Supply .....................................................................................................................19 

3.1 PRISM System Upgrade ..................................................................................................19 

3.1.1 System Hardware ......................................................................................................19 

3.1.2 System Software .......................................................................................................20 

3.1.3 Project Services ........................................................................................................21 

3.2 PRISM Web Services Gateway .......................................................................................22 



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 4 

 

3.2.1 System Hardware ......................................................................................................22 

3.2.2 System Software .......................................................................................................22 

3.2.3 Project Services ........................................................................................................22 

4 Pricing ....................................................................................................................................23 

4.1 PRISM System Upgrade and PRISM Web Services Gateway .........................................23 

4.2 Option – Training Classes ...............................................................................................23 

4.3 Pricing Notes ...................................................................................................................23 

5 Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................................24 

5.1 Terms of Payment ...........................................................................................................24 

5.2 Shipping & Handling ........................................................................................................24 

6 Delivery ..................................................................................................................................25 

7 Validity ...................................................................................................................................25 

8 Exclusions from Offer .............................................................................................................25 

9 Supporting Documentation .....................................................................................................25 

 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 5 

 

1 Introduction 

Minsait ACS is pleased to present this offer in response to your request for the upgrade of the 

existing PRISM system. With this upgrade, Beaches Energy Services will receive Minsait ACS’ 

newest PRISM system. With this latest release of PRISM, we include our new BluePrint 

Methodology. 

The BluePrint is a new delivery methodology in which software for Minsait ACS applications will 

already reside on each system that is delivered. This step allows Minsait ACS and its customers 

to be confident that the correct software is installed on each system in a standard way. From 

here each customer will have their software configured appropriately for the needs of their 

system and consumers. For customers who may have custom applications or customs changes 

that differentiate it from a standard delivery, these customizations will be implemented under 

specific Custom folders already located in the standard delivery model. Also included in the 

BluePrint methodology is the ever-current system, which means that Minsait ACS will be 

releasing application updates for Red Hat and PRISM applications on a periodic basis to be 

sure each customer is running the latest and greatest of our software. 

 

We very much appreciate that you and other staff members invest your time and effort in reviewing 

our submittal.  

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 6 

 

2 Solution Description 

PRISM 11 has been designed with enhanced processing capabilities and expanded capacities to 

meet your needs. The PRISM system upgrade will help you be more agile and responsive when 

it comes to effectively managing the electrical network and infrastructure as shown below: 

 

 
PRISM 10 PRISM 11 

Performance (RTDB changes/sec) 5,000 50,000 

Max. Number of Stations  

Points / Category 
10,000 100,000 

Control Queue - Buffer Size 512 5,000 

Max. Number of Graphical Operator 

Interface (GOI) Windows 
160 300 

 

Following are the primary benefits this upgrade will provide to your system: 

 Improved system performance and speed: During a major storm or other outage event, 

your system must be able to perform at its best. Previous versions of PRISM processed real-

time information at a maximum rate of 5,000 database changes/second. The upgraded 

PRISM will increase the processing capability tenfold, enabling your system to process up to 

50,000 network events per second in order to deliver mission-critical performance. 

 Increased platform for system expansion: With the proliferation of IEDs and other 

automated devices and sensors being deployed on today’s grid, a modern automation system 

requires almost unlimited expansion capability. The upgraded system will now support up to 

100,000 stations with up to 100,000 points per category. 

 

 Enhanced alarm/event functionality: The upgraded PRISM system will include many new 

features and enhancements to improve ease-of-use for operators. 

 

 Expanded reporting functionalities: New functionalities have been added in Greport, the 

reporting tool accessed via the PRISM GOI, to enhance its capabilities. The upgraded PRISM 

system has an integrated spreadsheet-based reporting tool, LibreOffice incorporating more 

features and improvements than the previous OpenOffice. 

 



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 7 

 

 Heightened situational awareness for operators: Previous PRISM versions support up to 

160 Graphical Operator Interface (GOI) devices. The upgraded system will now support up to 

300 devices, enabling you to deliver increased situational awareness with more connections 

to PRISM system displays and reporting devices, whether locally, remotely, or on large multi-

display video walls. 

 

 Increased control capability: Historically, the number of controls issued in a SCADA system 

was relatively low and did not push the queue limit of 512 concurrent controls. This limit has 

now been increased to 5,000 to support the increased use of controls required by applications 

such as Integrated Volt/VAR Control (IVVC), which also utilizes a “keep alive” mechanism.  

 

 Enhanced system security features: A security hole can endanger your 

utility. Exploiting security vulnerabilities in programs to deliver malware is 

a common method employed by cybercriminals. We designed PRISM 11 

to enhance the security of your system against serious attacks. The 

cryptographic network protocol Secure Shell (SSH) will be the standard 

when it comes to remote login, making backups, and remote file transfer 

via scp or sftp. 

 

 Increased efficiency and profitability: The upgraded system will even better manage the 

electrical network and infrastructure, increasing the overall profitability and efficiency. 

 

In order to get the best performance from your PRISM system, and most importantly, to stay 

protected against cyber-attacks and malicious threats, we strongly recommend an upgrade to 

PRISM 11 for all utilities currently running PRISM 10.x or earlier versions.  

The latest release of PRISM also includes are best VDE developed yet, PRISM Designer. 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 8 

 

2.1 PRISM Designer 

PRISM Designer is the latest visual display editor Minsait ACS has released. PRISM Designer 

offers a more user-friendly approach to the creation of displays. Our VDE will allow Beaches 

Energy Services enhanced customization of their displays. Users will now be able to hide and 

move the toolbar with simple click and drag mouse movements. The toolbar is now capable to be 

moved to anywhere on the drawing window, the toolbar can also be placed outside of the drawing 

window as seen below. For larger drawings where window space is scare, toolbars can now be 

hidden, creating a larger window for easier user access.  

 

2.1.1 Before & After 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Multiple displays can now be opened up 

concurrently and shared on the same 

window, allowing for enhanced controls of 

all displays. For ease, Minsait ACS has 

created hotkeys to open, close, and save 

displays.  

Additionally, the tool palette has been 

expanded to include the following 

elements: 

Line, Arc, Polyline, Polycurve, Rectangle 

Frame, Rounded Rectangle Frame, 



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 9 

 

2.2 SwitchPlan (Included with PRISM Upgrade) 

PRISM SwitchPlan is designed to allow operators and engineers to create and test switch plans 

in advanced to their implementation. SwitchPlan is designed to enforce and to document the audit 

trail of the life cycle of a switch plan/procedure, as it transitions through a utility’s structured 

internal process. The life cycle process supported by SwitchPlan includes the following: 

1. Request Phase 

2. First Approval 

3. Schedule 

4. Final Approval 

5. Own / Execute 

6. Release 

7. Complete and Archive 

Additional process steps can be applied during execution by the designated operator owner of 

the plan for ad-hoc alterations such as: 

1. Void a step 

2. Add a step 

3. Reapprove changes 

SwitchPlan is integrated with all the DMS applications that produce switch plans. SwitchPlan is 

a unified application for all DMS and OMS switching plans regardless of the source of the plans. 

The advanced network analysis applications that generate switching actions are normally 

controlled, time tagged, verified and executed under operator supervision. Some are configured 

for fully automatic closed loop control without operator approval or supervision. Either way they 

will still archive their plans in SwitchPlan for auditing purposes if not for execution control and 

visualization. Please note, due to no DASmap model, certain functionality may be unavailable. 

 

Typical SwitchPlan Cover Sheet  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 10 

 

2.3 Upgrade Considerations 

2.3.1 Software Requirements 

Software License Requirements 

PRISM 11.3 – 64 bit  O.S: Linux (64-bit)  

 Version: Red Hat Enterprise Linux Server/Desktop 7.4 or later 

versions of RHEL  

Red Hat 5.x and 6.x 

nodes 

 PRISM systems should NOT contain a mix of Red Hat 5.x and 

6.x nodes.  This creates maintenance issues and complicates 

support and future upgrades.  

Important Note: 

- Minsait ACS standard servers are now HP Gen 10 and they can only run RedHat v7.x.  

 

- All nodes must be the same RedHat Enterprise/PRISM version. 

 

- Existing PRISM 10 (which is 32-bit) can be re-installed on new Red Hat v6 hardware. 

 
Disclaimer:  
PRISM 11 is not compatible with RHEL v5.x and lower versions. Therefore, Minsait ACS 
cannot resolve any issues related to PRISM 11.3 when running on these operating systems.  
 
Other Software requirements 

o DASdb 6.0 or later (if applicable) 

o Oracle 12C R1 or higher if genHDA 

o Customer applications using the Minsait ACS application programming interface 

(API) will require re-compilation with 64-bit libraries 

For systems with eAlarm, the following is assumed: 

o Mail server properly configured by the utility  
o IP address of the mail server available  
o Customer’s SCADA has an open pathway (port) to their existing mail server- No 

authentication required. 
o Dedicated AOA in the database by the utility  
o Individual data points in the database configured by the utility 

 

 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 11 

 

2.3.2 Hardware Requirements 

Hardware Requirements 

Server/ Memory  HP ProLiant DL380 G10 Server or later versions should 
replace all previously deployed Linux servers 

 64 GB minimum for systems with maps and servers – the 
more the better 

Workstation 
/Memory 

 HP Z6 PC workstation should replace all previously deployed 
Linux workstations 

 32 GB minimum recommended for workstations 
 32 GB minimum for workstation-based masters  

Older HP Hardware  
HP ProLiant DL380 
G9 
HP ProLiant DL380 
G8 
HP z640 workstation 
HP z620 workstation 

 Certified for RHEL v7.4 
 Discontinued by HP/ Not supported anymore 
 To be handled on a case -by-case basis  
 More memory required 
 

Important Note:  
- If PRISM 11 is deployed on older generations of servers or workstations not supported 

anymore by the original manufacturer, any issues will have to be replicated on the 

newer generation to exclude any hardware related issues. 

 

- Minsait ACS standard server and workstation should be used to avoid system 

maintenance issues and complicated support 

 

- PRISM 11 utilizes Sound Server as an audio source, certain audio may be affected by 

this 

2.4 System Upgrade Cost and System Considerations 

 The license upgrade to PRISM 11 is covered under the Minsait ACS Full Subscription Support 

and Long-Term Support Agreement (LTSA) programs. Therefore, all existing Minsait ACS 

software licenses under the programs will be upgraded to the latest revision at no license cost.  

 Minsait ACS has developed an automated tool to guarantee consistent, qualification of both 

the core Linux OS and all PRISM files and applications on the target system. 

 Documented processes and project management tools are used to help ensure a smooth 

system transition with minimal, if any, downtime. 

Please refer to Attachment C - PRISM 11 Features and Capabilities for the list of additions and 

enhancements provided with the latest version of the PRISM system. 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 12 

 

2.5 PRISM Web Services Gateway 

The PRISM Web Services Gateway solution is a robust integration application that is designed 

around the core PRISM SCADA services that enable a 3rd party application to easily integrate 

real-time information for various needs. This interface is based on Service Oriented Architecture 

and is MultiSpeak 4.x compliant.  

The MultiSpeak name is a registered trademark of the National Rural Electric Cooperative 

Association. The MultiSpeak specification is a standard for the exchange of data among 

enterprise application software commonly applied in utilities. MultiSpeak defines data objects and 

specifies the message structures so vendors or utilities can write a single, common interface that 

facilitates communications with another type of software. This specification defines what data 

needs to be exchanged between software applications in order to support the business processes 

commonly applied at utilities. In order to accomplish this, the specification makes use of three 

components: 

 Definitions of common data semantics    

 Definitions of message structure (syntax)    

 Definition of which messages are required to support specific business process steps.  

This standard is developed by the National Rural Electric Cooperative Association (NRECA) to 

define common interfaces for typical applications used by the electric utilities. 

2.5.1 System Configuration 

For this solution, the PRISM system will interface with an existing Outage Management system 

via MultiSpeak. The MultiSpeak specifications outline a client and server web-service interfaces. 

The client application access the server application in two ways as detailed below: 

1. Request/Response: The OMS application client requests information from the SCADA 

web service server for one or more points. The request for one or all point(s) can be made 

at any time – for a demand read(s), or for data integrity checks, and can be initiated even 

when the real-time interface updates are active. 

2. Real-time: The SCADA web service provides the point updates on an exception basis – 

i.e.: when the value changes in SCADA. 

The PRISM Web Service Gateway can send all configured points in the SCADA Real-time 

database when requested by the outage management system. 

The PRISM Server (Node) and the PRISM Web Services Gateway cannot exist on the same 

server. Therefore, the application will be loaded on a dedicated workstation. 

The Minsait ACS standard on deploying a MultiSpeak interface is that the PRISM node will pull 

the information from the real-time database and sends it to the PRISM Interface Workstation. 

This workstation then packages the information from SCADA into a format per the MultiSpeak 

standard for the system to receive. 



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 13 

 

2.5.2 Prerequisites and Assumptions 

For this interface to be successfully implemented, the following must be in place: 

 LAN connectivity between the systems with a minimum bandwidth of 100Mb/s 

 Network Requirements: TCP/IP connectivity, and a MultiSpeak compatible interface on 3rd 

Party Vendor System 

 MultiSpeak version and type of interface: v4.x to vendor system 

Minsait ACS assumes the OMS system is capable of the following MultiSpeak web service 

methods: 

 PingURL 

 GetMethods From OMS to SCADA 

 GetAllSCADAPoints from OMS to SCADA 

 SCADAStatusChangedNotification from SCADA to OMS 

 GetSCADAStatusBySCADAPointID from OMS to SCADA 

 InitiateStatusReadByPointID from OMS to SCADA 

 StatusChangedNotificationByPointID from SCADA to OMS 

 SCADAAnalogChangedNotification from SCADA to OMS 

 GetSCADAAnalogBySCADAPointID from OMS to SCADA 

 InitiateAnalogReadByPointID from OMS to SCADA 

 AnalogChangedNotificationByPointID from SCADA to OMS 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 14 

 

2.6 PRISM System Monitor 

If a purchase order is placed 

prior to September 30, Minsait 

ACS will include our PRISM 

System Monitor with the PRISM 

System Upgrade for the 10 

nodes. 

PRISM System Monitor (PSM) 

is an application that enables 

organizations to identify and 

resolve SCADA infrastructure 

problems before they affect 

critical business processes. 

Designed with scalability and 

flexibility in mind, our PSM 

solution gives you the peace of 

mind that comes from knowing 

your operations won’t be 

affected by unknown 

outages/disruptions related to 

your control system. PSM is a powerful solution that provides you with instant awareness of 

your system operations infrastructure, including SCADA, DMS, OMS and EMS applications. 

PSM allows for proactive detection of problems and mitigation of future issues before they can 

affect your real-time operations. 

2.6.1 What can PSM do? 

 Monitor your system infrastructure 

 Spot problems before they occur 

 Know immediately when problems arise 

 Share availability data with stakeholder systems 

 Detect security breaches 

 Help with planning and budgeting for upgrades 

 Reduce system downtime and business losses storm situations 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 15 

 

2.6.2 Functionality 

 Monitor Linux machines: CPU load, memory usage, disk usage, logged-in users, running 

processes  

 Passive checks: request/response from a remote agent  

 Active checks: agent sends values for a list of check attributes  

 Monitor SNMP status information: depending on the network appliance  

 Monitor public services: HTTP, POP3, IMAP, FTP, and SSH  

 Database monitoring  

 Any clients: Linux/UX/Windows VMware virtual machine monitoring  

 Extensibility: custom agent checks via script/parameters Provide graphics and trends for 

monitored data  

 3rd-party mobile applications available (not provided/ supported by Minsait ACS) 

2.6.3 Requirements 

PSM requires certain ports to be available for the solution to function correctly; the baseline 

ports that are required are: 161, 10050, 10051. Depending on the device being monitored, there 

may be other ports that will require access through any firewalls. For PSM notifications to 

function, the company mail server must be accessible from the SCADA LAN. 

Other system requirements: 

 RHEL 7.x or later 

 SNMP devices (V2 or V3 are preferable) 

2.6.4 Exclusions 

Any devices that are not part of the SCADA LAN or within the defined Electronic Security 

Perimeter will not be part of the monitored solution; this is required for security and compliance 

with the NERC CIP standards. 

2.6.5 Professional Services 

Minsait ACS will provide the professional services and licenses to install the PSM software on 

each PRISM node. 

2.7 CMI Training Simulator 

Minsait ACS will take the existing CMI simulator scripts delivered with job E38100452 and edit 

the scripts to work with a newly created one-line training diagram. Please note, the newly 

created one-line diagram will mirror an existing one-line diagram currently on the system. 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 16 

 

2.8 Option – Training Classes 

2.8.1 Linux Administration 

This 5–day course expands the details of system management and shows you how to 

administer your Linux–based PRISM system effectively. This course is essential for all 

system administrators who have Linux servers. 

Prerequisites 

Linux/PRISM Fundamentals.  

Who Should Attend 

Anyone responsible for the management of the PRISM system on Linux servers. 

Benefits 

 Add to your overall knowledge of the PRISM system. 

 Get intensive, hands–on training in the most commonly used administration areas. 

 Acquire the Linux system administration knowledge needed to manage your PRISM 

system. 

 Master the skills needed to configure and maintain your Linux–based PRISM system. 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 17 

 

2.8.2 Database and Display Editor  

This intensive, 5–day hands–on class teaches you the fundamentals of building and 

maintaining a system database. Create vector graphic displays using ACS–defined and 

user–defined objects to display data from the database. The class labs provide applied 

active experience building and troubleshooting a working database under the guidance 

of ACS experts. 

Prerequisites 

Linux/PRISM Fundamentals. An understanding of SCADA concepts is also strongly 

recommended. 

Who Should Attend 

This program is essential for anyone building or maintaining the PRISM system,  

including anyone creating system displays. A must for all system administrators. 

System operators will also benefit from this program.  

Benefits 

 Learn to harness the powerful features bundled into your system.  

 Gain practical experience that can be directly applied to your system. 

 Build database files that define stations and their associated points. 

 Learn from HelpDesk experts how to avoid the most common mistakes, so you can build 

your database right the first time. 

 Get your station online with a real NTX intelligent controller or Connex substation 

manager. 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 18 

 

2.8.3 NTX Series Service and Operation 

This 5–day course provides instruction on each of the primary models of the NTX series 

Substation Controllers. Communication protocols are covered, as well as SCADA interfaces. 

Thorough overviews of the NTX-20, NTX-200, NTX-220, NTX-240 and NTX260 installation and 

troubleshooting are included. All aspects of NTX configuration are covered, including local I/O 

and IED point mapping and set-up. 

Prerequisites 

Review of the NTX series user manuals. Familiarity with communications pertaining to SCADA 

is helpful, but not required. 

Who Should Attend 

Anyone who is required to install/maintain NTX Substation Controllers. Those responsible for 

building or maintaining the real–time SCADA database will also find this course beneficial. 

Benefits 

 Review NTX units’ step–by–step, from basic functionality and configuration through advanced 

troubleshooting, including drawing packages for each. 

 Learn–by–doing in a controlled environment, without the fear of making expensive or 

dangerous mistakes. 

 Get insight into real–world situations and solutions with the extensive hands–on exercises. 

 Learn step–by–step configuration methods using classroom Windows 7 PCs or using your 

own laptop PC. 

 Learn diagnostic monitoring. 

 Configure and test NTX units for use with IEDs. 

 Explore communications over Ethernet, serial RS–232 and RS–485. 

 Understand binary, analog, counter, and control functions. 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 19 

 

3 Scope of Supply 

3.1 PRISM System Upgrade 

3.1.1 System Hardware 

For this solution, Minsait ACS will reuse the existing HP Aruba Network Switches and VPN 

Diagnostic Router. 

Beaches Energy Services will provide Samsung CF791 Series C34F791WQN monitors for each 

operator workstation. With the use of this monitor, the following items need to be noted: 

 The HP Z6 operator workstation’s video card is equipped with four miniDisplayPort 

(DisplayPort 1.4) connections. Beaches Energy will be responsible for any adapters that may 

be required for this monitor. 

 The monitors resolution will be adjusted to match the resolution support both by the 

workstation’s video card and the PRISM System. 

 Beaches Energy will be responsible for an audio speakers that may connect to the workstation 

 Minsait ACS request that one monitor is shipped to Minsait ACS for configuration during the 

project. 

Item 

Main 

Site 

Qty. 

DR 

Site 

Qty. 

Description 

1  

2 

 

1 

PRISM Master Server 

HPE DL380 G10 8SFF CTO Server Configured with: 

 HPE Xeon-Gold 5115 2.4GHz 10C FIO PROC 

 32 GB (2 x 16GB) RDIMM DDR4-2666 Memory 

 HPE Universal Media Bay 

 HP 9.5mm SATA DVD-RW 

 1.2 TB (2 x 600GB) 12G 15K SAS SFF SC DS HDD 

 HPE P408i-A 12G SAS Controller 

 HPE SAS Cable Kit 

 2 x HPE 800W FLEC Slot PLAT Power Supply 

 2 x HP Power Cord 

 HP 2U SFF Easy Rail Kit 

 HP 2U CMA For Rail Kit 

 HP Raid 1 Drive 1 FIO Setting 

 Linux Installer Kit 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 20 

 

Item 

Main 

Site 

Qty. 

DR 

Site 

Qty. 

Description 

2  

6 

 

1 

Operator Workstation (Distributed Node) 

HP Z6 G4 1000W Workstation configured with: 

 Intel Silver 4108 1.8GHz 8C PROC 

 32GB (4 x 8GB) DDR4-2666 Memory 

 Two (2) 600GB 15k SAS SFF disk drives 

 HP Microsimi Smart HBA2100 4i4E SAS Controller 

 HP 9.5 Slim DVD Writer 

 HP Intel I210-T1 GBE NIC Card 

 NVIDIA Quad P600GFX 2GB Graphics 

 HP USB Business Slim Keyboard & Mouse 

3  

2 

2 

2 

4 

2 

2 

 

2 

2 

2 

4 

2 

2 

PCI Host Processor Upgrade (Or Equivalent) 

PCI Host Processor Module 

PCI Host Processor Module Rear Card 

Computer Flash Card 

Blank Panel 4HP 

Overlay HP 

Document Holder 

3.1.2 System Software 

Per the current Support Agreement, the following existing software licenses will be upgraded to 

the latest revision of Minsait ACS software at no license cost. The software licenses will be 

installed on the new hardware before shipping to customer site.  

Item Qty. Description 

4  

1 

2 

3 

1 

7 

1 

2 

10 

Existing Software to be Upgraded 

PRISM Master Server-based License 

PRISM Master Redundant System License 

ePRISM Remote User Access 5 Users 

Distributed Database/IO Architecture – System License 

Distributed Database/IO Architecture – Client License 

PRISM ICCP – Non-Redundant License 

PRISM ICCP – Redundant License 

Red Hat Enterprise Linux 

5  

1 

New PRISM Software 

SwitchPlan 

 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 21 

 

3.1.3 Project Services 

Item Qty. Description 

6  

 

Lot 

Design and Consultation 

Review existing drawings and update as necessary to make certain that 

they accurately depict the current system, ensuring that Minsait ACS is 

aware of any prior configuration changes and existing interfaces that 

could impact system design. Review any outstanding issues and 

special customer requirements, identifying the appropriate solutions. 

7  

 

Lot 

Engineering and Documentation 

Equipment manufacturing & testing, system engineering and integration 

testing of the staged equipment at Minsait ACS’ facilities. Provide new 

product documentation and hardware & software manuals where 

required. Minsait ACS will provide a detailed trip report upon completion 

of the project.   

8  

Lot 

On-Site Engineering Services 

Minsait ACS has included the time that will be required to install and 

test the SCADA Master system and PRISM software  

9  

Lot 

Post Installation, Testing and Configuration 

After installation and start-up services, the Customer Engineer will test 

the re-configured system and adjust as needed to ensure that the 

system is performing as expected.  The Engineer will make backup 

images for the customer and for Minsait ACS and hold a closeout 

meeting prior to departure. 

10  

Lot 

Additional Services 

Customer will receive 24x7 HelpDesk Phone support for seven (7) 

consecutive days upon completion of installation. Customer will receive 

follow-up from Quality Assurance and Customer Service to verify that 

the upgraded system continues to function properly. 

11  

1 

Display 

CMI Simulator Scripting 

Minsait ACS will take the existing CMI simulator scripts delivered with 
job E38100452 and edit the scripts to work with a newly created one-
line training diagram. Please note, the newly created one-line diagram 
will mirror an existing one-line diagram currently on the system. 

 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 22 

 

3.2 PRISM Web Services Gateway 

3.2.1 System Hardware 

Item Qty Description 

12  

1 

PRISM Web Services Gateway Workstation 

HP Z6 G4 1000W Workstation configured with: 

 Intel Silver 4108 1.8GHz 8C PROC 

 32GB (4 x 8GB) DDR4-2666 Memory 

 Two (2) 600GB 15k SAS SFF disk drives 

 HP Microsimi Smart HBA2100 4i4E SAS Controller 

 HP 9.5 Slim DVD Writer 

 HP Intel I210-T1 GBE NIC Card 

 NVIDIA Quad P600GFX 2GB Graphics 

 HP USB Business Slim Keyboard & Mouse 

13  

1 

1 

Workstation Accessories 

HP e243i Monitor 

HP S100 Speaker Bar 

3.2.2 System Software 

Item Qty Description 

14  

1 

PRISM Software 

PRISM Web Services Gateway – Non-Redundant (Schneider 

Responder) 

15  

1 

Operating System 

Red Hat Enterprise Linux Version 7 

3.2.3 Project Services 

Item Qty Description 

16  

Lot 

Project Services 
Project Services include: 
 Minsait ACS Project Management 

 System Software Installation/Configuration 

 Material Inventory Control/Shipping 

 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 23 

 

4 Pricing 

4.1 PRISM System Upgrade and PRISM Web Services Gateway 

Item(s) Description Price 

1-3, 12-13 System Hardware $75,678 

4-5, 14-15 System Software $8,375 

6-11, 16 Project Services $74,293 

 Total Price $158,346 

4.2 Option – Training Classes 

This option is to provide virtual training to Beaches personnel during a regularly scheduled 

training time. This price is inclusive for up to three students. 

 Description Price 

 Linux Administration $2,700 

 Display and Database Editor $2,700 

 NTX Series Service and Operation $2,700 

4.3 Pricing Notes 

All above pricing is based on standard ACS configuration and is defined under the following 

conditions: 

 Firm, in USD, for the validity of the Offer 

 All taxes are excluded from price 

 Prices quoted are F.O.B Norcross, GA 

 Limited to the Scope of Supply 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 24 

 

5 Terms and Conditions 

The terms and conditions governing this offer are set forth in Attachment A – ACS General Terms 

and Conditions of Sales. 

5.1 Terms of Payment 

Minsait ACS will invoice in accordance with the payment milestone(s) described below. Payments 

not received within this period will be subject to interest charges. 

Milestone 
System 

Hardware 

System 

Software 
Project Services 

Receipt of Order 0% 100% 10% 

Receipt of 

Hardware at ACS 

Facilities 

100% 0% 10% 

Conversion of 

Beaches Energy 

Services’ PRISM 

Database 

0% 0% 30% 

Completion of In-

House Factory 

Acceptance Test 

0% 0% 30% 

Delivery of System 0% 0% 10% 

Completion of 

PRISM Upgrade 
0% 0% 10% 

 

5.2 Shipping & Handling 

Standard shipping within the continental US is typically 5-7 business days. 

A shipping & handling fee of $35 will be added to each small package shipment. No separate 

freight invoice will be submitted. Packages exceeding $35 freight charges will be billed at cost, 

or fixed pre-quoted cost if applicable. 

Charges for premium shipping (next day morning delivery, afternoon delivery, etc.) will be billed 

at cost. 

  



 

PR-2008-5518 PRISM System Upgrade  

August 31, 2020 Beaches Energy Services Page | 25 

 

6 Delivery 

The delivery is expected to be 150 days after project start date. Project start date will be agreed 

upon at time of order (subject to further agreements). All travel and living expenses will be billed 

at cost. 

Please note, the scheduled site work may be subject to change due to federal, local, and/or 

organizational restrictions in place in response to COVID-19. 

Customer purchase orders need to include the ACS Offer Number, the ACS Terms of Payment 

(as stated in section 5.1 of offer), and the Customer’s Billing and Shipping Information. 

All purchase orders should be sent to the address below.  

Advanced Control Systems, Inc.  

2755 Northwoods Parkway Norcross, Georgia 30071  

Attn: Order Entry Team 

FAX: 01-770-448-0957 

Email: ACSOrderEntryTeam@acspower.com 

7 Validity 

This Offer is valid for 90 days from the date of this proposal. 

To receive PRISM System Monitor with the PRISM Upgrade, a purchase order needs to be made 

prior to September 30, 2020. 

8 Exclusions from Offer 

The following points must be considered as explicitly excluded from the offer: 

 Any equipment or service not explicitly mentioned in this offer 

9 Supporting Documentation 

Attachment A – ACS General Terms and Conditions of Sales 

Attachment B – ACS Software License Maintenance Agreement 

 



 
General Terms and Conditions of Sale   
 

Page 1 of 3 
  SOP 93CD 1 Rev14 

  

2755 Northwoods Parkway  Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30071  TEL: 770.446.8854  indracompany.com   acspower.com 

Definitions.   
ACS: Advance Control Systems, Incorporated in Georgia owned by Indra 
USA. 
ACS Software: means the Object Code versions of the baseline 
computer software programs developed by or for ACS.  ACS Software 
does not include, and this Agreement does not grant Licensee a license 
to the Source Code for ACS Software.; 
Contract: Specific contract between purchaser and ACS, Purchase 
Order from Purchaser to ACS. 
General Terms and Conditions of Sale:  The legally binding terms 
applicable to sale of product and services from ACS.   
Product: Any ACS designed and manufactured RTU product or part. (i.e. 
NTX); 
System: Any ACS deliverable involving project delivery of ACS or Third-
Party Software (i.e. PRISM); 
Third-Party Software: means Object Code versions of the computer 
software programs licensed by ACS from third parties and sublicensed to 
Licensee.  Third-Party Software does not include, and this Agreement 
does not grant Licensee a license to the source code for such Third-Party 
Software.; 
 
These General Terms and Conditions (“T&Cs”) applies to the present 
Proposal and will govern the services to be rendered by ACS - 
Advanced Control Systems, Inc. (“ACS”), a Georgia Corporation, with 
headquarters at  2755 Northwoods Parkway, Peachtree Corners, GA, 
30071, USA, to Purchaser (“Purchaser”). 
 
The following terms and conditions of sale shall apply to any sale of 
goods and services by Advanced Control Systems, Inc., an Indra 
company (hereinafter called “ACS”). Purchaser shall be deemed to have 
full knowledge of the terms and conditions herein and such terms and 
conditions shall be binding if either the goods and services referred to 
herein are delivered to and accepted by  Purchaser,  or  if  Purchaser  
does  not  within  five  days  from  the  date hereof deliver to ACS written 
objection to said terms and conditions or any part thereof. 
 
Entire Agreement.  All services to be performed by ACS under the 
Proposal will be governed by the provisions of these General Terms and 
Conditions (“T&Cs”), which will prevail over any other terms and 
conditions established or mentioned in any document or communication, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the parties. 
 
Documents.  Unless otherwise agreed to, brochures, catalogs and other 
marketing materials are not binding.  Designs, drawings, technical 
documentation and data contained in software or other electronic or 
paper medium are binding insofar as they form an integral part of this 
Contract.  ACS retains all rights to designs, drawings, documents, 
technical documents and software.  Purchaser acknowledges these 
rights and shall not make such designs, drawings, documents and 
software available to any third party, either in whole or part, nor use them 
for any purposes other than the agreed purposes without prior written 
consent of ACS.  If the Deliverables includes software, Purchaser is 
hereby granted the non-exclusive and non-transferable right to use the 
software for the agreed purpose subject to any other license agreement 
to which Purchaser may become a party.     
 
Premises. All deadlines, values, final products and conditions foreseen 
in the Proposal for the execution of the services are conditioned to the 
materialization of the premises used in its preparation, which were 
obtained from Purchaser. Therefore, all information given by Purchaser 
must be correct, complete and duly disclosed to ACS. 
 
Title and risk. Unless otherwise agreed, risk of loss shall immediately 
pass upon delivery of any of the Deliverables. Notwithstanding the same, 
ACS shall retain title of the Deliverables until receipt of full payment from 
Purchaser.     
 
Intellectual Property Rights. Purchaser recognizes and accepts that all 
intellectual property (including, but not limited to know-how, ideas, 
methodologies, templates, concepts and computer programs) developed 
by ACS previously or during the course of this project will remain the sole 
property of ACS. ACS grants Purchaser a perpetual, non-exclusive, non-
transferable license (without the right to sublease or sublicense) to use 
and copy for use the work product for Purchaser’s own operations, 
except for software licenses, if any, which terms to be observed will be in 
one or more specific software license agreement(s). Neither party may 
use name, logo, mark or other identifying marks of the other party outside 

their organizations without that party’s prior written consent. However, the 
Purchaser allows ACS to mention the Purchaser’s name and the services 
eventually rendered by this Proposal for the exclusively purpose of 
reference to third parties, observing all confidential disposition defined 
herein by the Parties. 
 
Required Licenses. Purchaser is responsible for licensing any software 
related to services rendered by ACS and for the acquisition of the 
corresponding hardware as well, if necessary, unless otherwise agreed, 
when a ACS proprietary software could be required, under specific 
licensing terms. Purchaser also will be responsible for data storage or 
cloud capacity. Software, data storage/cloud capacity and hardware must 
be available in the beginning day of ACS’s activity. 
 
Delivery.  The Purchaser shall inspect the Deliverables within two (2) 
days of receipt on Purchaser’s premises and shall immediately notify 
ACS of any defects.  If Purchaser fails to notify ACS of the same, within 
two (2) days delivery of conforming goods will be deemed to have 
occurred. 
 
Non-exclusivity. Nothing in the Proposal can be invoked by Purchaser 
in order to preclude, injure or in any manner restrict ACS to render 
services to third parties in projects that are equal or similar of this one 
and/or develop projects to thirds parties that the final results are equal or 
similar. 
 
Acceptance.  Services rendered pursuant to Proposal will be subject of 
evaluation and acceptance by Purchaser. In case Purchaser does not 
manifest its acceptance or rejection within ten (10) days after its delivery 
by ACS, the services will be presumed as accepted without reserves. 
Purchaser must present all objections it may have in connection with the 
service deliverables in one sole opportunity, within the time frame set 
forth above, being vetoed any further claims under any title after this 
representation is made.   
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Acceptance of a System shall be deemed 
to have occurred if Purchaser puts the System to use or agrees to 
acceptance. 
 
Term and Termination.  If either party materially breaches any material 
obligation in the proposed contract and fails to remedy such breach (if 
such breach can be remedied) within thirty (30) days of receipt of written 
notice of such breach, the other party may terminate the agreement. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent such material breach cannot 
be remedied through efforts of the breaching party, the other party has 
the right to terminate the agreement on less than thirty (30) days’ written 
notice. Notice to ACS of an alleged breach of warranty will not constitute 
a notice of termination of the agreement. In the event the agreement is 
terminated, Purchaser will pay ACS for all the services rendered and 
expenses incurred prior to the date of termination.    
 
Cancelation.  If ACS cancels or intends to cancel this Contract, it shall 
immediately inform Purchaser and thereafter, ACS shall be entitled, and 
Purchaser shall pay to ACS for all Deliverables (plus reasonable 
overhead and profit) which have already been produced or delivered to 
Purchaser.  Purchaser shall have no recourse for any damages under 
this provision and ACS waives no rights to seek other damages it may be 
entitled for breach of this Contract. 
   
Prices, Payment and Review of Commercial Conditions.  All prices 
are net US Dollars.  Any and all additional costs, such as freight, 
insurance, export fees, transportation, import and other permits or 
certifications shall be borne by Purchaser.  Taxes, including without 
limitation value added tax, levies, fees, income, sales or any other taxes 
shall be borne solely by Purchaser.  Any exchange rate risk is borne by 
the purchaser.  Purchases which apply to shipments and/or services will 
be made at the time of occurrence with payment due upon receipt of the 
invoice.  Late payments are subject to a late charge of 1.5% per month. 
 
If the services object of the Proposal are effectively contracted, ACS will 
invoice Purchaser for all services and applicable charges on a monthly 
basis, as ACS renders the services or Purchaser incurs the charges, as 
applicable. Purchaser will pay each ACS invoice within 30 days of the 
date of invoice. Late payments will be subject to a late charge equal to 
the lesser of: (i) 1.5% per month; and (ii) the highest rate permitted by 
applicable law. The parties agree to review the commercial terms defined 



 
General Terms and Conditions of Sale   
 

Page 2 of 3 
  SOP 93CD 1 Rev14 

  

2755 Northwoods Parkway  Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30071  TEL: 770.446.8854  indracompany.com   acspower.com 

in the Proposal in case of future events that impact the economic balance 
of the conditions defined herein. 
 
Taxes. If the services object of the Proposal are effectively contracted, 
Purchaser will be responsible for paying all taxes (except for taxes based 
on ACS’s net income or capital stock) relating to any services provided 
and payments made hereunder. Applicable tax amounts (if any) are not 
included in the fees set forth in the Proposal. In each instance, ACS will 
invoice Purchaser for applicable tax amounts and such invoices are due 
upon Purchaser’s receipt thereof. 
 
Expedited Delivery.  Any request for expedited delivery shall incur a 
premium charge to Customer which shall be addressed on a case by 
case basis for determination of the applicable premium for such delivery. 
 
Product Returns.   Product returns are accepted by ACS under the 
following conditions: (i) Deliverables must have never been installed and 
returned in their original packaging; (ii) Customer has obtained and 
included a return authorization number from ACS; (iii) all expenses 
associated with the return are borne by Customer including all freight, 
handling, insurance and other applicable charges; and (iv) Customer 
pays a minimum restocking fee on the returned Deliverable of twenty five 
percent (25%).   
 
Confidentiality. Each party may be given access to information identified 
by the disclosing party as confidential information ("Confidential 
Information"). The receiving party agrees to protect the Confidential 
Information of the disclosing party in the same manner that it protects its 
own proprietary and confidential information of like kind, but in no event 
will it exercise less than reasonable care. Nothing in these T&Cs prohibits 
or limits either party's use of information: (i) previously known by 
Receiving Party; (ii) independently developed by Receiving Party; (iii) 
obtained by Receiving Party from a third party which is not, to its 
knowledge, under an obligation of confidence with respect to such 
information; and/or (iv) which is or becomes publicly available through no 
breach of the Proposal’s confidentiality obligations. Any of the Parties 
may disclose Confidential Information in the event it receives any 
administrative or judicial demand requesting such disclosure, and as far 
as it is necessary to its accomplishment, as long the other Party is 
previously notified. 
 
Confidentiality of the Proposal. The Proposal was elaborated for the 
exclusive use of the Purchaser; therefore, Purchaser may not reproduce 
or present it outside its organization without ACS prior written 
authorization. 
 
Data Privacy. Considering that ACS is part of a global organization, and 
that data received or identified during the execution of the services 
relating to Purchaser or its customers may be transferred between the 
various entities of ACS, and, in certain countries, the local law requires 
that the access, transfer, copy or use of such data is previously 
authorized by Purchaser, the latter hereby authorizes ACS to respect the 
confidentiality of such data, and within the limits of the data privacy policy 
of ACS. 
 
Indemnification. Purchaser shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
ACS against all damages, claims, liabilities, penalties, fines, costs and 
expenses (including legal fees) arising out of or resulting in any way from 
any act or omission, of Purchaser, its agents, employees, or 
subcontractors, or from any breach of its obligations of this agreement.  
 
Change Orders.  The parties may agree make additions, deletions, or 
other revisions by written Change Order without invalidating the Contract. 
Any and all Change Orders shall be agreed by both parties and set forth 
in writing signed by both parties.  
 
Limited Warranty. ACS warrants that its services will be performed in a 
good and workmanlike manner and according to their respective 
technical specification and ACS undertakes to re-perform any work not in 
compliance with this warranty brought to its attention within ninety (90) 
days, after that work is performed and delivered by ACS and accepted by 
the Purchaser. The preceding is ACS’s only warranty regarding the 
services in lieu of all other warranties and representations, expressed or 
implied. 
 
Warranty.  ACS warrants its System to be free from defects in materials 
and workmanship for a period of 12 months from the date of shipment. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following deliverables shall be free 
from defects in materials and workmanship as follows: (1) System 
upgrades are warranted for a period of 12 months from the date of 
shipment; (2) ACS warrants to Licensee that the ACS Software will 
perform without Documented Defects (“ACS Software Warranty”) for a 
period three months following delivery of the ACS Software to Licensee 
(the "Warranty Period").  Warranties related to any Third-Party Software 
and hardware shall be subject to OEM’s terms; (3) Services are provided 
on an “as is” bases. ACS's warranty shall not apply to (i) any Deliverables 
damaged by misuse, neglect, or accident caused by Purchaser or its 
agents, contractors, employees or the like; (ii) any event of Force 
Majeure (as defined herein); or (iii) any Deliverables which have been 
improperly installed, operated, maintained, repaired, or modified, by 
persons other than ACS, its employees, or subcontractors. Should any 
information or documentation provided by Purchaser be inaccurate and 
the same leads to a defect in materials and workmanship, the warranty 
shall be void.  
 
ACS repairs provided under warranty may utilize, after being tested to a 
standard consistent with ACS performance and quality requirements, 
refurbished parts. Upon usage, such parts shall be clearly labeled as 
“refurbished”.  
 
ACS warrants its NTX produced product line, to only include the NTX-20, 
NTX-200, NTX-220, NTX-240, NTX-260, NTX-U20 & NTX-U57, to be 
free from defects in materials and workmanship for a period of 10 years 
for all NTX series and their respective modules from the date of 
shipment. This warranty only applies to ACS manufactured NTX products 
and is governed by the following guidelines: Repairs shall be warranted 
for an additional period of ninety (90) days from the date of shipment or 
for the duration of the original warranty, whichever is greater, Customer is 
required to obtain an RMA from ACS prior to the return of any part or 
product, Customer shall be solely responsible for shipping and returning 
the repaired product to ACS for repair or replacement in accordance with 
warranty terms and conditions outlined herein.  ACS reserves the right to 
substitute refurbished parts and components for any and all repair work, 
ACS reserves the right to utilize refurbished products as replacements. 
 
The Warranties for the NTX product line set forth herein are the only 
warranties made by ACS in connection with the specified NTX products. 
ACS cannot and does not make any implied warranties with respect to 
the product line, and disclaims all other warranties, including, but not 
limited to, any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular 
purpose. Product line sold by ACS is sold only to the specifications 
specifically set forth by ACS in writing. Other than the limited warranty set 
forth herein, ACS makes no other warranties, express or implied. ACS’ 
sole obligation under this warranty shall be repair or replacement of 
nonconforming specified NTX products, or at the option of ACS, return of 
the product and a refund of the purchase price. Buyer assumes all risk 
whatsoever as to the result of the use of the products purchased, 
whether used singularly or in combination with any other products or 
substances. 
 
DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES FOR NTX PRODUCT LINE. ACS’ 
specified NTX Products must be stored, handled, installed, used and 
maintained in accordance with instructions provided by ACS, and this 
Limited Warranty is conditioned upon compliance with all such 
instructions. Copies of the ACS User Manual are available from ACS. 
This WARRANTY does not cover defects caused by: 1) Non-compliance 
with ACS’ User Manuals. Such Failures include, but are not limited to, 
[exposure to physical abuse, including, but not limited to extreme climate 
conditions, chemical abuse, (e.g. harsh cleansers and solvents), thermal 
abuse or shock (e.g. excessive heat or cold) or misuse]; 2) Improper 
storage, installation, handling, use and/or fabrication of the product; 3) 
Damage not resulting from manufacturing defects that occur while the 
product is in the customer’s possession; 4) Unreasonable or unintended 
use of product; 5) Products installed with known or visible manufacturing 
defects at the time of installation, including, but not limited to physical 
damage, products not properly marked and/or identified as the product 
required; 6) Failure or dissatisfaction with the appearance of the product. 
 
OTHER THAN THE PRECEDING LIMITED WARRANTY, ACS DOES NOT MAKE AND 

SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 

ANY KIND, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF  
 



 
General Terms and Conditions of Sale   
 

Page 3 of 3 
  SOP 93CD 1 Rev14 

  

2755 Northwoods Parkway  Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30071  TEL: 770.446.8854  indracompany.com   acspower.com 

MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  OTHER THAN AS 

EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, PURCHASER ASSUMES FULL 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE SELECTION, POSSESSION, PERFORMANCE AND USE OF THE 

DELIVERABLES.   
 
Limitation of Liability.  THE LIABILITY OF ACS TO PURCHASER AND/OR 
THIRD PARTIES FOR CLAIMS BROUGHT AGAINST THE PURCHASER AS A 
RESULT OF THE SERVICES PROVIDED BY ACS, REGARDING THE 
EXECUTION OR NON-EXECUTION OF THE PROPOSAL, IN NO EVENT 
MAY, DURING THE PROPOSAL’S TERM, EXCEED THE FEE THAT 
PURCHASER ACTUALLY PAID TO ACS FOR THE SERVICES.  IN NO 
EVENT WILL ACS BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT DAMAGES, CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES, LOSS OF PROFITS OR MORAL DAMAGES, EVEN IF ACS HAS 
BEEN INFORMED ABOUT THE POSSIBLITY OF ITS EXISTENCE. 
 
Force Majeure. Parties will not be responsible for any force majeure events or 
acts of the king, which might postpone, harm or prevent the execution of the 
scope of this Proposal or the services object thereof. The prejudiced party must 
notify the other party as soon as possible after the acknowledgement of the 
occurrence of a force majeure or an act of God event. After referred notice, if 
the parties do not agree on an alternative solution to remedy the case within 
thirty (30) days, the prejudiced party may choose to immediately terminate the 
Proposal independently of any indemnification, penalty or encumbrance for any 
of the parties. If the force majeure event threatens to put or effectively put in risk 
ACS’s personnel safety or security, ACS is authorized, at its discretion, to 
remove its personnel the risk area until the conflict is solved.  
 
Choice of Personnel. ACS has the exclusive right to determine the personnel 
that will perform the proposed services. 
 

General.  If any provision of these General Terms and Conditions of Sale is 
held to be unenforceable, the other provisions shall nevertheless remain in full 
force and effect. This document and all appendices attached hereto constitute 
the entire understanding between the Parties and may only be amended or 
modified by a writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each party. 
For the purposes of interpretation, the priority of the documents shall be in 
accordance with the following sequence: (y) Document general terms and 
conditions; (z) the appendices. This document may be executed by facsimile or 
electronic mail. This Document may be signed in any number of counterparts.  
This Document replaces and supersedes any prior verbal or written 
understandings, communications, and representations between the Parties 
regarding the subject matter contained herein.  This Document shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of ACS and 
Purchaser.  Purchaser shall not assign any rights or obligations under this 
Document without the express written authorization of ACS. 
 
Non-Solicitation of Employees. The parties establish, by mutual agreement, 
that they will not, without the prior written consent of the other party, present job 
offers to any professional of the other party that possesses an employment 
agreement in force with the other party and that is engaged in the project object 
of the Proposal, provided it is duly executed by the parties, whether the 
professional is an employee of either party. The parties agree that the non-
solicitation commitment set forth above shall remain in force during the period 
that ACS is providing services pursuant to the Proposal and for a period of one 
(1) year following the completion of such services. The parties also agree that 
the commitment in question does not apply in the event either party’s job 
opportunity is published in specialized media, in the Company’s or in ACS’s 
website or in the Internet and the professional applies for the job opening 
published by the other party through one of those channels. 
 
Choice of Law, Interpretation. These T&Cs will be governed by and construed 
under the laws of the State of Georgia, as applicable to agreements executed 
and wholly performed therein, but without regard to the choice of law provisions 
thereof.



 

ACS SLMA Document Nr. TP 93CD 4 

GENERAL MANAGEMENT Issue Date 4/23/2018 

Software License Maintenance Agreement  Revision Date Rev 5   3/26/2019 

 

             2

 
“Third-Party Software” means Object Code versions of the 
computer software programs licensed by ACS from third 
parties and sublicensed to Licensee as specified in 
Appendix A of this agreement. Third-Party Software does 
not include, and this Agreement does not grant Licensee a 
license to the source code for such Third-Party Software. 
 
“ACS Software” means the Object Code versions of the 

baseline computer software programs developed by or for 

ACS and specified in a Contract, and all improvements, and 

Modifications provided by ACS to Licensee pursuant to the 

terms of this Agreement.  ACS Software does not include, 

and this Agreement does not grant Licensee a license to the 

Source Code for ACS Software. 

2. LICENSE. 
2.1 Grant of License.  Subject to the terms, conditions 

and restrictions set forth in this Agreement and any Order 

legally binding the Parties, ACS grants to Licensee: (a) a 

limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, perpetual license to 

use and copy, as per section 2.4, for use the Licensed 

Software for Licensee’s own internal business operations as 

set forth In Appendix A of this agreement.  ACS does not 

grant Licensee a license to the Source Code of the ACS 

Software or to the Third-Party Software.  The computer 

readable media containing the Licensed Software may also 

contain software for which Licensee is not granted a license 

to use.  Licensee may not make any use of any software for 

which Licensee is not expressly obtaining a license for use 

under this Agreement. Any rights not expressly granted in 

this Agreement are expressly reserved.   

2.2 Restrictions.   
  (a) Licensed Software.  Licensee shall not, or 

permit any third party to, directly or indirectly:  (i) reverse 

engineer, disassemble, or decompile the Licensed Software 

or any portion thereof, unless otherwise permitted under this 

Agreement; (ii) sublicense, rent, lease or otherwise transfer 

the Licensed Software, or any portion thereof; (iii) use the 

Licensed Software for any third-party use including, but not 

limited to, training (Section 2.4 covers copies for training 

Licensee personnel), facilities management, time-sharing, 

service bureau use, data processing, or publish any results 

of benchmark tests run on the Licensed Software; or (iv) use 

any Third-Party Software except solely in conjunction with 

the ACS Software and except in accordance with any 

applicable Third Party Software licensor terms and 

conditions, which terms and conditions are hereby 

incorporated by reference and set forth in an applicable 

Appendix C.. 

(b) Access to / Use of Licensed Software.  Access to, 

and use of, certain modules of Licensed Software may be 

limited by restrictions set forth in the applicable Order 

documents and Exhibit(s) to this License which shall include 

terms and conditions provided in the ACS Customer Care 

Services Guide, Third-Party licenses terms and conditions, 

which may include, without limitation: (i) a specific number of 

named Users or other type of Users; (ii) providing Services 

as may be defined, including and not limited to, as provided 

in the Customer Care Services Guide to a limited number of 

Active Accounts; or (iii) a specified number of production or 

non-production Servers. Licensee shall not utilize any device 

or program to enable access to the Licensed Software in a 

manner such that a User, other type of user or Active 

Accounts accessing the Licensed Software is not counted as 

a user.  Licensee shall be responsible and liable for the acts 

and omissions of its employees, agents and representatives 

who are users arising from the access to the Licensed 

Software.  The Licensed Software may contain license 

protection procedures that limit access to the Licensed 

Software to that use permitted under this Agreement.  

Licensee shall not circumvent or render inoperative any such 

protection procedures. 

(c) Installation.   Licensed Software will be installed 

only on Licensee’s Equipment.  Licensee may transfer the 

Licensed Software to other Licensee Equipment and shall 

provide prompt written notice of such transfer to ACS.  

Licensee shall be responsible for all costs related to any such 

transfer.  In conjunction with any such transfer, all Licensed 

Software must be promptly deleted in its entirety from the 

initial Equipment, and from each back-up copy existing for 

the initial Equipment. Licensee shall include, and shall under 

no circumstances remove, ACS and its licensors' copyright, 

trademark, service mark, and other proprietary notices on 

any complete or partial copies of the Licensed Software or 

Documentation in the same form and location as the notice 

appears on the original work.  All proprietary and intellectual 

property rights including copyright in and to the original and 

all copies of the Licensed Software and Documentation or 

any changes or Modifications thereto shall be and do remain 

that of ACS or its licensors as the case may be.  ACS shall 

not be responsible for updating any changes to any of the 

Documentation made by Licensee. 

2.3 Delivery.  Unless otherwise specified in the 

Contract, Licensed Software will be shipped prepaid FOB 

ACS shipping location. 

2.4 Copies.  Licensee may make a reasonable number 

of backup copies of the Licensed Software as is consistent 

with Licensee's normal periodic backup procedures or as set 



 

ACS SLMA Document Nr. TP 93CD 4 

GENERAL MANAGEMENT Issue Date 4/23/2018 

Software License Maintenance Agreement  Revision Date Rev 5   3/26/2019 

 

             3

forth on the applicable Order.  Licensee shall maintain a log 

of the number and location of all originals and copies of the 

Licensed Software.  Licensee may reproduce or copy any 

portion of the Documentation into machine-readable or 

printed form for its internal use and only as required to 

exercise its rights hereunder.  Licensee shall include, and 

shall under no circumstances remove, ACS’s and its 

licensors' copyright, trademark, service mark, and other 

proprietary notices on any complete or partial copies of the 

Licensed Software or Documentation  in the same form and 

location as the notice appears on the original work.  All 

proprietary and intellectual property rights including copyright 

in and to the original and all copies of the Licensed Software 

and Documentation or any changes or Modifications thereto 

shall be and remain that of ACS or its licensors as the case 

may be.  ACS shall not be responsible for updating any 

changes to any of the Documentation made by Licensee. 

2.5 Certification.  On ACS’s request, but not more than 

once per year, Licensee shall furnish ACS with a signed 

certification verifying that Licensee’s use of the Licensed 

Software is consistent with the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, which certification shall include information 

reasonably requested by ACS. 

3. MAINTENANCE SERVICES. 
 
3.1 Maintenance Services.  Licensee may elect to 
receive support and services as set forth in Exhibit to this 
Agreement, (“Maintenance Services”) and referenced in 
ACS Customer Services Guide. Beginning on the Effective 
Date, ACS shall provide Maintenance Services for the 
period of time set forth in Exhibit ___. (the “Maintenance 
Period”).  Any such Maintenance Services will be provided 
by ACS or its affiliates or subcontractors using commercially 
reasonable efforts and subject to the terms of this 
Agreement as further modified by ACS’s applicable 
maintenance and support policies in effect at the beginning 
of the then-current Maintenance Period.  ACS’s obligation to 
provide Licensee with Improvements for Third Party 
Software is limited to providing Licensee with the 
Improvements that the applicable third-party licensor 
provides to ACS.  If Licensee elects to receive Maintenance 
Services, Licensee may not exclude any of the Licensed 
Software from Maintenance Services.  Unless Maintenance 
Services cancelled by either party by written notice no less 
than ninety (90) days prior to the end of the then-current 
Maintenance Period, Licensee agrees that the Maintenance 
Period shall automatically extend for one (1) year, except as 
otherwise set forth on an applicable order document.  In the 
event Licensee declines or terminates Maintenance 
Services (including following initial delivery of the Licensed 
Software), and Maintenance Services are subsequently 
ordered or reinstated, Licensee shall pay: (i) an additional 
Maintenance reinstatement fee in addition to Maintenance 
Services fees for the current Maintenance Services period. 

ACS Customer Care Services Guide is attached as 
Appendix A regarding Services. 
 
3.2 Licensee’s Obligations.  Licensee shall be 
responsible for installing any Improvements provided by 
ACS.  Licensee shall cooperate with ACS in providing 
access to the Equipment to the extent required to diagnose 
or resolve issues identified by Licensee concerning the 
Licensed Software. 
 
4.      PAYMENT. 
 
4.1 Fees.  In consideration of the licenses granted 
under this Agreement, Licensee shall pay to ACS the license 
fees set forth in each Order.  Licensee shall pay to ACS the 
Maintenance Services fees as set forth in each Order or any 
Maintenance Services agreement between the parties. 
Additional Maintenance Services fees may apply for any 
Maintenance Services provided for Licensed Software that 
has been installed, implemented, customized, modified, 
enhanced or altered by any third-party service provider that 
is not a ACS certified service provider.  Additional fees may 
be required for Services not considered in the initiating 
Order.  Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Order 
documents, all fees are due upon the Effective Date of the 
applicable Order and are payable to ACS in U.S. dollars 
within fifteen (15) days of the date set forth on each invoice 
issued by ACS.  All orders and license fees are non-
cancelable and non-refundable, including, without limitation, 
upon termination of this Agreement.  Any fees payable by 
Licensee hereunder that are not paid when due shall accrue 
interest at a rate equal to the lesser of (a) of 1.5% per month, 
or (b) the maximum amount allowed by applicable law.  
Licensee agrees to pay to ACS all reasonable costs and 
expenses of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and court costs, incurred by ACS to collect payments due 
under this Agreement. 
 
4.2 Taxes.  Licensee is liable for any and all sales, use, 
excise, value added, customs fees, or other similar taxes 
ACS must pay relating to the Licensed Software.  If Licensee 
is exempt from the payment of any such taxes, Licensee 
must provide ACS with a valid tax exemption certificate; 
otherwise, absent proof of Licensee’s direct payment of 
such taxes to the applicable taxing authority, ACS will 
invoice Licensee for and Licensee will pay to ACS all such 
taxes.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
section, ACS shall be solely responsible for all taxes based 
on its income. 
 
5.     PROPRIETARY RIGHTS. 
 
5.1 Ownership.  Licensee acknowledges and agrees 
that:  (a) ACS owns all right, title and interest in and to all 
ACS Software and related Documentation and ACS 
Confidential Information (and the media containing such 
Confidential Information) including, without limitation, all 
patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret, and other 
intellectual property rights related thereto; and (b) ACS’s 
licensors own all right title and interest in and to all Third 



 

ACS SLMA Document Nr. TP 93CD 4 

GENERAL MANAGEMENT Issue Date 4/23/2018 

Software License Maintenance Agreement  Revision Date Rev 5   3/26/2019 

 

             4

Party Software and related Documentation including, 
without limitation, all patent, trademark, copyright, trade 
secret, and other intellectual property rights related thereto. 
 
5.2 Modifications.  Licensee’s right, if any, to make 
Modifications does not include the right to create new 
modules of ACS Software.  Licensee agrees to assign to 
ACS without any additional consideration, and hereby does 
assign to ACS, all right, title and interest in and to all 
Modifications made by Licensee.  All such Modifications 
shall be deemed ACS Software and the use of such 
Modifications by Licensee shall be subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  ACS shall not be responsible 
for providing Maintenance Services for any Modifications 
made by Licensee.  
 
5.3 Protection of Confidential Information.  Each party 
to this Agreement may furnish the other party with 
Confidential Information.  The parties agree that, during the 
term of this Agreement and thereafter, each party will hold 
Confidential Information in a fiduciary capacity for the benefit 
of the other party and shall not (a) directly or indirectly use, 
copy, reproduce, distribute, manufacture, duplicate, reveal, 
report, publish, disclose or cause to be disclosed, or 
otherwise transfer any Confidential Information of the other 
party to any third party, or (b) utilize Confidential Information 
for any purpose, except as expressly contemplated by this 
Agreement or authorized in writing by the other party.  
Licensee will limit the disclosure of ACS’s Confidential 
Information, to Employees with a need-to-know and who 
have been advised of the confidential nature thereof, or third 
party consultants with a need-to-know and who has been 
contractually obligated to maintain such confidentiality 
through signature of a nondisclosure agreement 
acknowledging the non-disclosure obligations of this 
Agreement and naming ACS as an intended third-party 
beneficiary.  Licensee shall provide copies of these 
agreements upon the written request of ACS.  Licensee shall 
be liable for any breach by any Employee or third party 
consultant of the confidentiality obligations contained herein. 
 
5.4 Required Disclosures.   In the event a party is 
required under applicable law, rule, regulation, court or 
administrative order to disclose Confidential Information of 
the other party, the first party shall use commercially 
reasonable efforts to: (a) give at least ten (10) days prior 
written notice of such disclosure to the other party; (b) limit 
such disclosure to the extent practicable; and (c) make such 
disclosure only to the extent so required.       
  
6. LIMITED WARRANTY; DISCLAIMER. 
 
6.1 Limited Warranty.  ACS warrants to Licensee that, 
subject to this Section 6, the ACS Software will perform 
without Documented Defects (“ACS Software Warranty”) 
for a period three (3) months following delivery of the ACS 
Software to Licensee (the "Warranty Period").     Warranties 
related to any Third Party Software shall be specified in the 
applicable Supplement. 
 

6.2 Obligations of Licensee.  Licensee shall notify ACS 
in writing of any claim under the ACS Software Warranty 
during the Warranty Period (the “Warranty Notice”).  The 
Warranty Notice will be given with sufficient access, 
including remote access, to the ACS Software and the 
Equipment, and sufficient information and time, to allow 
ACS to duplicate the Documented Defect.   
 
6.3 Obligations of ACS.  For any claim under the ACS 
Software Warranty, ACS’s sole obligation shall be, at ACS’s 
expense, to provide corrections of, or avoidance procedures 
for, Documented Defect(s) identified in the Warranty Notice 
or provide a mutually acceptable plan for correction.  In the 
event ACS’s obligation to provide avoidance procedures for 
or corrections of the Documented Defect(s) is not 
commercially feasible, ACS in its sole discretion may elect, 
upon written notice to Licensee, to terminate  the license to 
use the defective module(s) and pay Licensee a refund 
equal to the license fees paid for the defective module(s) of 
ACS Software.   
 
6.4 Limitations.   The ACS Software Warranty shall not 
apply:  (a) to any Modifications; (b) if the Licensed Software 
is not used on the Equipment or in accordance with the 
Documentation or this Agreement; (c) if the Licensed 
Software has been installed, implemented, customized, 
modified, enhanced or altered by Licensee or any third party 
that is not an ACS certified service provider; (d) if Licensee 
is not using the most recent Improvements of the Licensed 
Software; (e) to any error or defect caused by Licensee, an 
Employee, any third party, or any third-party software that is 
not provided by ACS as a part of the solution under 
Deliverables; or (f) to any error or defect arising as a result 
of drawings, designs or specifications provided by Licensee.  
ACS shall have no obligation or liability under the Warranty 
in the event that Licensee has not paid the applicable license 
or Maintenance Services fees when due. 
 
6.5 Disclaimer.  EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY STATED 
IN THIS SECTION 6, ACS MAKES NO 
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, 
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WITH RESPECT TO 
THIS AGREEMENT, THE LICENSED SOFTWARE OR 
ANY MAINTENANCE SERVICES PROVIDED BY ACS TO 
LICENSEE INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR 
NONINFRINGEMENT AND ACS EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS 
ANY SUCH WARRANTIES.  ACS DOES NOT WARRANT 
THAT: (a) THE LICENSED SOFTWARE WILL OPERATE 
UNINTERRUPTED; (b) ALL LICENSED SOFTWARE 
ERRORS CAN BE CORRECTED; OR (c) THE 
APPLICATIONS CONTAINED IN THE LICENSED 
SOFTWARE ARE DESIGNED TO MEET ALL OF 
LICENSEE’S BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS.   
 
6.6 Exclusive Remedy. NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANYTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, 
THIS SECTION 6 SETS FORTH LICENSEE’S SOLE AND 



 

ACS SLMA Document Nr. TP 93CD 4 

GENERAL MANAGEMENT Issue Date 4/23/2018 

Software License Maintenance Agreement  Revision Date Rev 5   3/26/2019 

 

             5

EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF THE 
WARRANTY SET FORTH IN SECTION 6.1 ABOVE. 
 
7. INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
7.1 Infringement Indemnification.  Subject to the terms 
of this Section 7, ACS shall indemnify and defend Licensee 
against any claim brought against Licensee in the Territory 
by third parties alleging the use of the ACS Software or 
Documentation (a) infringes a United States patent, 
copyright or trademark registered as of the date ACS 
provides Licensee with the Licensed Software or  Release 
thereof, or (b) misappropriates any third party trade secret 
(collectively, an “Infringement Claim”); provided, however, 
that (i) Licensee gives ACS prompt notification in writing of 
any such Infringement Claim and reasonable assistance, at 
ACS’s expense, in the defense of such Infringement Claim; 
(ii) ACS has the sole authority to defend or settle such 
Infringement Claim; and (iii) Licensee must make no 
admissions without ACS’s consent.  Infringement 
indemnification for any Third-Party Software shall be 
specified in the applicable Supplement.  
 
7.2 Indemnification Limitations.  ACS shall have no 
obligation for any Infringement Claim arising out of or 
relating to: (a) a Modification created by or at the direction of 
Licensee or a third party, (b) use of the ACS Software other 
than in accordance with the Documentation or the terms of 
this Agreement; (c) use of a Release no longer supported by 
ACS; (d) use of the Licensed Software without Licensee’s 
implementation of all applicable Maintenance; (e) any Third-
Party Software; or (f) use of the ACS Software in 
combination with any other hardware, software or other 
materials where absent such combination, the ACS 
Software would not be the subject of the Infringement Claim.   
 
7.3 Effect of Infringement Claim.  If an Infringement 
Claim is or, in ACS’s reasonable belief, is likely to be 
asserted, (a) ACS may require Licensee to discontinue use 
of the ACS Software immediately and Licensee shall comply 
with such requirement; and (b) ACS will, at its sole option, 
either (i) procure for Licensee the right to use and exercise 
its rights with respect to the ACS Software or Documentation 
or affected part thereof as provided in this Agreement; (ii) 
replace the ACS Software or Documentation or affected part 
thereof with other non-infringing products or modify the ACS 
Software or Documentation or affected part thereof to make 
it not infringing while retaining substantially similar 
functionality; or (c) if the remedies set forth in clauses (b)(i) 
and (b)(ii) are not commercially feasible, as determined by 
ACS in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, and the licenses granted pursuant to it, and 
pay to Licensee a pro rata refund of the license fees paid by 
Licensee for the infringing ACS Software, depreciated on a 
five-year straight line basis. 
 
7.4 Exclusive Remedy.  THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 
SECTION 7 STATE THE SOLE, EXCLUSIVE, AND 
ENTIRE LIABILITY OF ACS TO LICENSEE, AND IS 
LICENSEE'S SOLE REMEDY WITH RESPECT TO, ANY 

CLAIM OF INFRINGEMENT OR MISAPPROPRIATION OR 
ALLEGED INFRINGEMENT OR MISAPPROPRIATION OF 
ANY THIRD-PARTY PATENT, COPYRIGHT, 
TRADEMARK, TRADE SECRET OR OTHER 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHT. 
 
8. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY. 
 
8.1 NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS 
AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, EXCEPT FOR 
DAMAGES RESULTING FROM BREACHES OF SECTION 
5.3, ACS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE IN ANY AMOUNT FOR 
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR 
INDIRECT DAMAGES, LOSS OF GOODWILL OR 
BUSINESS PROFITS, WORK STOPPAGE, DATA LOSS, 
COMPUTER FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION, OR 
EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, HOWEVER 
ARISING, EVEN IF IT HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 
 
8.2 NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS 
AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, UNDER NO 
CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL ACS OR ITS LICENSORS BE 
LIABLE TO LICENSEE OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR 
ENTITY FOR AN AMOUNT OF DAMAGES IN EXCESS OF 
THE FEES PAID BY LICENSEE TO ACS HEREUNDER 
DURING THE TWELVE (12) MONTHS PRECEDING THE 
DATE SUCH CLAIM AROSE. 
 
8.3 If a number of events of default give rise to 
substantially the same loss, they shall be regarded as giving 
rise to only one claim under this Agreement 
 
8.4 Neither party may initiate any claim against the 
other arising out of this agreement or relating to the Licensed 
Software or Maintenance Services provided herein more 
than two years after the cause of action has arisen.  
 
9. TERM AND TERMINATION. 
 
9.1 Term.  This Agreement and the licenses granted 
hereunder shall become effective as of the Effective Date 
and shall continue in effect perpetually, and as long as fees 
payable to Licensor are current, specific renewal terms will 
be indicated on subsequent order documents with respect 
to renewal terms following the Initial Support Term agreed 
to under this Agreement. 
 
9.2 Termination.  This Agreement and the licenses 
granted hereunder shall terminate upon the earliest to occur 
of the following:  (a) thirty (30) days after one party gives the 
other party notice of the other party’s material breach of any 
provision of the Agreement, unless such other party has 
cured such breach during such thirty (30) day period; or (b) 
immediately if Licensee becomes insolvent, makes an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, appoints (or has 
appointed on its behalf) a trustee, receiver or similar officer, 
or commences a proceeding seeking reorganization, 
liquidation or similar relief under any bankruptcy, insolvency 
or similar debtor-relief statute.  



 

ACS SLMA Document Nr. TP 93CD 4 

GENERAL MANAGEMENT Issue Date 4/23/2018 

Software License Maintenance Agreement  Revision Date Rev 5   3/26/2019 

 

             6

 
9.3 Effect of Termination.  Upon termination of this 
Agreement for any reason: (a) all amounts due and owing 
by Licensee to ACS under this Agreement and all Orders will 
be immediately payable; (b) use of the Licensed Software 
will immediately cease; (c) Licensee will delete and/or 
remove all Licensed Software from all Equipment and from 
any other computer hardware and storage media within 
Licensee’s possession or control; and (d) all of ACS’s 
Maintenance Service obligations will cease.  In the event 
that ACS terminates this Agreement due to Licensee’s 
breach, in addition to any other remedy or claim, ACS shall 
be entitled to retain any and all fees paid or payable by 
Licensee. Within thirty (30) days after termination of this 
Agreement, Licensee shall destroy or return to ACS all 
copies of the Licensed Software and any other ACS 
Confidential Information in any form, including but not limited 
to partial copies thereof, and will certify to ACS that all 
copies and portions thereof have been destroyed or 
returned.  The terms of this Agreement that by their nature 
should survive termination of this Agreement shall survive 
termination of this Agreement including, without limitation, 
the provisions concerning protection of Confidential 
Information, proprietary rights, disclaimers, indemnification 
and limitations of liability. 
 
10. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
10.1 Assignment.  Licensee may not assign any of its 
rights or obligations under this Agreement, and any attempt 
at such assignment will be void without the prior written 
consent of ACS.  Licensee acknowledges that ACS’s 
applicable transfer, assignment or other fees may be 
payable.  For purposes of this Agreement, “assignment” 
shall include a merger, acquisition or other consolidation by, 
with or of Licensee, including any new or surviving entity that 
results from such merger, acquisition or other consolidation 
or by operation of law. 
 
10.2 Right to Injunctive Relief.  Licensee acknowledges 
that Licensee’s breach of Sections 2 or 5 may likely cause 
irreparable injury to ACS and may entitle ACS to seek 
injunctive or other equitable relief in the event of any such 
material breach.   
 
10.3 Dispute Resolution Process.  Except as set forth in 
Section 10.2 herein, neither party may start arbitration, 
litigation or any proceedings with respect to this Agreement, 
unless and until the parties have first complied with the 
following dispute resolution process.  A party claiming that a 
dispute has arisen must notify the other party in writing.  
Within 7 days after written notice of a dispute, each party 
must provide the name of an authorized representative to 
settle the dispute on its behalf.  The authorized 
representatives of each party will use best efforts to resolve 
the dispute or agree on a process to resolve all or part of the 
dispute without arbitration or court proceedings within 20 
days after written notice of the dispute. The existence, 
subject, evidence, information, documents, proceedings, 
and decisions resulting from the dispute resolution 

proceedings shall be deemed Confidential Information in 
accordance with Section 5.3 herein, and shall not be used 
except to attempt to resolve the dispute.  Each party must 
bear its own costs of resolving a dispute under this provision, 
and the parties must bear equally the costs of any appointed 
person used for resolving or attempting to resolve the 
dispute.  Upon expiration of the 20 day period after written 
notice of the dispute, either party may terminate the dispute 
resolution process set forth herein by written notice to the 
other party. If either party does not comply with the dispute 
resolution process set forth herein, the other party will not 
be obligated to adhere to this provision. 
 
10.4 Arbitration.  Except with respect to equitable 
remedies and disputes related to the ownership and 
protection of Licensed Software, the parties agree that any 
dispute, claim or controversy relating in any way to this 
Agreement shall be fully and finally settled by binding 
arbitration in Atlanta, Georgia, in accordance with the then 
current Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association, as modified herein. The arbitration 
panel shall include only persons with experience in 
information technology or computer software licensing or 
implementation matters.  Each party shall choose one 
arbitrator, and the two arbitrators so selected shall choose 
the third arbitrator.  Determinations of the arbitrators will be 
final and binding upon the parties, and judgment upon the 
award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in any 
court having jurisdiction. The existence, subject, evidence, 
proceedings, and ruling resulting from the arbitration 
proceedings shall be deemed Confidential Information in 
accordance with Section 5.3 herein, and shall not be 
disclosed by any party, their representatives, or the 
arbitrators except as ordered by any court of competent 
jurisdiction or as required to comply with any applicable 
governmental statute or regulation. All arbitration 
proceedings and submissions, and the arbitration award, 
shall be in the English language. The arbitrators shall apply 
the governing law of this Agreement (without giving effect to 
its conflict of law principles) to all aspects of the dispute, 
including but not limited to the interpretation and validity of 
this Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties, the 
mode of performance and the remedies and consequences 
of the breach of the Agreement. 
 
10.5 Restricted Rights.  The Licensed Software and any 
accompanying documentation were developed at private 
expense and are deemed to be a “commercial item,” as that 
term is defined in 48 C.F.R. 2.101, consisting of “commercial 
computer software” and “commercial computer software 
documentation,” as such terms are used in 48 C.F.R. 
12.212.  Use, duplication, and disclosure by civilian 
agencies of the U.S. Government shall be in accordance 
with FAR 52.227-19(c) or other agency data rights 
provisions, as may be applicable.  Use, duplication and 
disclosure by DOD agencies are subject solely to the terms 
of this Agreement as stated in DFAR 227.7202.  All U.S. 
Government Users license the Licensed Software with only 
those rights set forth herein, including, without limitation, the 
following:  Licensed Software may be transferred to the U.S. 



 

ACS SLMA Document Nr. TP 93CD 4 

GENERAL MANAGEMENT Issue Date 4/23/2018 

Software License Maintenance Agreement  Revision Date Rev 5   3/26/2019 

 

             7

government only with the prior written consent of an officer 
of ACS and solely as restricted computer software as 
provided in FAR 52.227-19 or subsequent citation (or DFAR 
227-7202 or subsequent citation if the transfer is to a 
defense-related agency). 
 
10.6 Export Control Notice.  Licensee acknowledges the 
Licensed Software, or any part thereof, is being released or 
transferred to Licensee in the United States and is therefore 
subject to United States export control laws.  Licensee 
acknowledges its exclusive obligation to ensure that its 
exports are in compliance with all applicable export control 
laws.  Licensee shall defend, indemnify, and hold ACS and 
its licensors harmless from and against any and all claims, 
judgments, awards, and costs (including reasonable legal, 
including attorneys’ fees) arising out of Licensee's 
noncompliance with applicable export laws with respect to 
the use or transfer of the Licensed Software outside the 
United States by Licensee. 
 
10.7 Third Party Beneficiaries.  Third Party Software 
licensors shall be third party beneficiaries to this Agreement 
for purposes of enforcing their rights with respect to the 
applicable Third Party Software. 
 
10.8 Audit Rights.  Licensee will maintain books and 
records in connection with its installation and use of the 
Licensed Software.  ACS shall have the right during the term 
of this Agreement and for up to one (1) year after the 
termination of this Agreement or the licenses granted herein, 
upon reasonable written notice and during normal business 
hours, to audit and inspect the Licensee, its books and 
records and its utilization of the Licensed Software in order 
to verify compliance with the terms of this Agreement.  
Audits will be made no more than once in any six (6) month 
period, and no more than twice in any twelve (12) month 
period.  If an audit reveals that Licensee has underpaid for 
Licensed Software based on Licensee’s actual use of such 
software, then Licensee will pay ACS, promptly upon 
demand by ACS: (a) the underpaid license fees therefore, 
which fees will equal ACS’s then-current list rates; (b) 
additional associated fees for services to be provided by 
ACS for any Maintenance Services; (c) any applicable late 
charges; and (d) if an audit reveals that Licensee has 
underpaid for Licensed Software by five percent (5%) or 
more, ACS’s reasonable costs of conducting the audit.  If an 
audit reveals Licensee is utilizing the Licensed Software in 
a manner not permitted under this Agreement, Licensee 
agrees to take, at Licensee’s expense, all reasonable 
corrective action requested by ACS. 
 
10.9 Nuclear Liability Indemnification. (WHERE 
APPLICABLE) To the extent Licensee is the owner, operator 
or service provider for a nuclear facility, Licensee shall be 
subject to the additional terms and conditions to be set forth 
on Attachment B to this Agreement, incorporated herein by 
this reference. In the event that Licensee is not the owner, 
operator or service provider for a nuclear facility, Licensee 
acknowledges and agrees that it may not use the Licensed 
Software for any use whatsoever for any part of any nuclear 

facility.  Licensee shall indemnify, defend and hold ACS 
harmless against any damage or loss arising from the use 
of the Licensed Software for any nuclear facility. 
 
10.10 Independent Contractors.  Nothing in this 
Agreement or in the course of dealing between ACS and 
Licensee shall be deemed to create between ACS and 
Licensee a partnership, joint venture, association, 
employment relationship or any other relationship other than 
an independent contractor relationship. 
 
10.11 Non-Solicitation.  During the term of this 
Agreement, and for twelve (12) months thereafter, Licensee 
shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit or employ any current 
or former ACS employees who have provided services to 
Licensee under this Agreement, without ACS’s prior written 
consent.  The foregoing restriction shall not apply to former 
employees of ACS who have not provided services to 
Licensee under this Agreement within twelve (12) months of 
their termination of employment with ACS or whose 
employment with ACS was terminated more than twelve (12) 
months prior to Licensee’s solicitation or employment.  In the 
event Licensee does employ any ACS employee described 
herein without ACS’s prior written consent, Licensee shall 
make payment to ACS, by way of liquidated damages, of an 
amount equal to the annualized base compensation and 
benefits at which Licensee hired such individual. Licensee 
shall make the payment described in the preceding 
sentence to ACS within thirty (30) days of the date of ACS’s 
invoice for such payment.   
 
10.12 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is 
held invalid or unenforceable, the provision shall be deemed 
modified only to the extent necessary to render it valid or 
eliminated from this Agreement and this Agreement shall be 
enforced and construed as if the provision had been 
included in this Agreement as modified or as if it had not 
been included. 
 
10.13 Waiver; Amendment.  Failure or delay by either 
Party to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement or 
any rights with respect to it or the failure to exercise any 
option provided under this Agreement shall in no way be a 
waiver of that provision, right or option, or in any way to 
affect the validity of this Agreement.  No waiver of any rights 
under this Agreement, or any modification or amendment of 
this Agreement, shall be effective or enforceable, unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 
 
10.14 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in 
two counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original 
and which shall together constitute one Agreement. 
 
10.15 Publicity.  ACS shall have the right to identify 
Licensee as a customer of ACS as part of ACS’s marketing 
efforts, including customer lists and press releases. 
 
10.16 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Georgia, USA without 
giving effect to its choice of law principles.  The parties 



 

ACS SLMA Document Nr. TP 93CD 4 

GENERAL MANAGEMENT Issue Date 4/23/2018 

Software License Maintenance Agreement  Revision Date Rev 5   3/26/2019 

 

             8

hereby acknowledge and agree that the United Nations 
Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods 
shall not apply to this Agreement. 
 
10.17 Notices.  All notices or other communications 
under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed 
to have been duly given when (a) delivered by hand (with 
written confirmation of receipt), (b) sent by facsimile (with 
written confirmation of receipt), or (c) two (2) calendar days 
after being deposited for delivery with a nationally 
recognized overnight delivery service and addressed or 
sent, as the case may be, to the appropriate addresses or 
facsimile numbers set forth on the first page of this 
Agreement (or to such other addresses or facsimile 
numbers as a party may designate by notice to the other 
party).   
 
All notices for ACS shall be addressed to the attention of the 
Chief Financial Officer with a copy delivered to ACS’s 
General Counsel. 
 
10.18 Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Agreement, 
other than for payments due, will be liable to the other for 
any failure or delay in performance under this Agreement 

due to circumstances beyond its reasonable control 
including, without limitation, Acts of God, labor disruption, 
war, terrorist threat or government action; provided that if 
either party is unable to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement for one of these reasons it shall give prompt 
written notice thereof to the other party and the time for 
performance, if any, shall be deemed to be extended for a 
period equal to the duration of the conditions preventing 
performance.  
 
10.19 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, all 
Appendices, attachments and exhibits hereto, and each 
Order, and all Supplements, attachments and exhibits 
thereto, constitute the entire agreement between ACS and 
Licensee with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement, and supersede all prior negotiations and 
agreements, whether oral or written, with respect to these 
matters.  This Agreement and each Order shall prevail over 
any additional, conflicting, or inconsistent terms and 
conditions which may appear on any purchase order or other 
document furnished by Licensee to ACS regardless of any 
statement to the contrary contained in any such purchase 
order or document. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PRISM
TM

 11 
Features

Continuing a long history of improvements and updates, PRISM 11 includes significant enhancements to both features and 
performance across the spectrum of PRISM applications. PRISM 11 is the first 64-bit version of our core platform taking full 
advantage of the increased memory space and parallel processing capabilities offered by the processor architecture. PRISM 11 
will help you deliver real-time information and process information up to 10 times faster than with previous PRISM  versions. 

PRISM Designer Display Editor 
PRISM Designer is the display editor tool that replaces DrawV as the application used for creation of dynamic system displays 
on your PRISM system. We will continue to provide 
support for DrawV on previous versions of PRISM, but 
PRISM 11.3 and later versions  include PRISM Designer 
as the standard display building application.

PRISM Designer is built using the same framework as 
the current GOI, so the modular look and feel and use 
of multiple views will be familiar to customers with 
the most recent versions of PRISM. It will include new 
graphic objects and editing capabilities, such as format 
painting, new alignment/spacing options, drag/drop 
between windows, and more. All existing displays 
created using DrawV will be compatible with Designer. 
Going to PRISM 11 now will ensure you are able to take 
advantage of this new tool immediately upon release.



PRISM 11 Features

Maximum Number of Stations
With the proliferation of IEDs and other automated devices 
and sensors being deployed on today’s grid, a modern 
automation system requires almost unlimited expansion 
capability. PRISM 11 now supports up to 100,000 stations, 
with up to 100,000 points per category, to ensure that you 
never have to worry about outgrowing your investment.

Control Queue – Buffer Size
Historically, the number of controls issued in a SCADA 
system was relatively low and did not push the queue 
limit of 512 concurrent controls. This limit has now been 
increased to 5,000 to support the increased use of controls 
required by applications such as Integrated Volt/VAr Control 
(IVVC), which also utilizes a “keep alive” mechanism.

Maximum Number of GOI Devices
Previous PRISM versions support up to 160 Graphical 
Operator Interface (GOI) devices. This number has been 
considerably increased in PRISM 11; it now supports up to 
300 devices. This is yet another way to ensure that you will 
not outgrow the system, enabling you to deliver increased 
situational awareness with more connections to PRISM 
system displays and reporting devices, whether locally, 
remotely, or on large multi-display video walls.

Functional Additions 
PRISM 11 includes many new features and enhancements 
to improve ease-of-use and situational awareness.

Alarm Inhibit (AI): enhanced to block dissemination of 
alarms to the display and print devices while still writing 
them to DREF

Limit Value Modified Flag: new feature—adds a flag 
when a limit value of a point has been changed from the 
value specified in the database files. There is one flag per 
limit. This feature generates an alarm when the limit has 
been modified, and sets the corresponding Limit Modified 
Flag. It displays both the original and new limit values in the 
alarm.

Event Inhibit (EI): a new RTDB attribute—blocks events 
from writing to Disc Resident Event File (DREF) and thus 
broadcasting to display and print devices. The EI Tag is 
available for both Status and Telemetry and is accessible in 
DrawV.

Rate Of Change Modified Flag (ROCM): adds a flag 
when the ROC value has been changed from the value that 
is specified in the database files. This flag is available for 
internal use and does not generate a system alarm.

Event Report: Highlighting the new Data Source options

Attribute Report: Highlighting the new Report Type options

Increased System Performance 
The PRISM system is designed to help utilities be agile and 
responsive when it comes to effectively managing your 
electrical network and infrastructure. We designed PRISM 
11 with enhanced processing capabilities and expanded 
capacities to meet your needs.

System Speed 
Your system must be able to perform at its best during 
those times when you need it the most—such as during 
a major storm or other outage event. PRISM has always 
been built on a high-performance real-time database in 
order to deliver mission-critical performance. Changes in 
PRISM 11 have increased its processing capability tenfold, 
from 5,000 database changes per second to 50,000. Now 
more than ever, you know the system can handle whatever 
comes your way.



Clamp To Zero (CTZ): a new attribute that allows the clamping of 
the current value (CV) of a telemetry point to zero when written to 
the database, if the CV is within a specified tolerance range.

Passing Sequence of Events (SOE) timestamp to RTDB: 
originally, the timestamp of the last update entry for a status point 
with time was stored only as seconds. This is now an 8-byte value and 
allows the timestamp of the last update to be stored in both seconds 
and milliseconds if the time value is supplied by the field device. If the 
SOE time is applied by the front-end driver (PCI, etc.), instead of from 
the field, then the milliseconds value will be stored as zero.

Short Circuit Value (SCV): an addition that saves the last non-zero 
value of all telemetry points. This enables the capture of the last 
reported value just before an outage occurs, providing the ability to 
determine loading prior to the outage.

Test Mode for Station: new feature—used for RTU testing or 
retesting. In Test Mode, alarms/events are routed to a separate “Test 
Mode” DREF file. It does not support alarm carry over to the next day, 
or alarm acknowledgment/deletion. Test Mode is a valuable tool that 
permits checking and verification of new field devices and associated 
database changes without affecting the production real-time 
database.

Study Mode Modified: for DMS applications, Study Mode has been 
modified to allow up to 10 separate modes per workstation. Study 
Mode is now local to the workstation as opposed to being broadcast 
globally, as in prior versions of PRISM. Underlying databases (DASdb) 
are unique for each Study Mode in the system. Note that changes in 
Study Mode DO NOT generate alarms.

Ground Tags (GT) and Ground Tag Flags (GTF): new tag types 
added to the system that may be applied to Status and Telemetry 
Points. For DMS systems, a trace is performed and the GTF is applied 
to the objects affected by the GT. When attempting to close into a GT, 
the operator will be alerted. GTF was updated from 1 bit wide to 3 
bits wide to accommodate three-phase power flow direction. GT has 
been added to Status Device Objects – Security Presentation and is 
accessible in DrawV.

Generate Alarm – Pass In Alarm Priority: allows PRISM 
applications to generate an alarm while setting a new “alarm priority” 
which overrides the one associated with that RTDB point. The alarm 
priority override occurs on an ad hoc basis for that specific alarm and 
is not set permanently. This is generally used internally for PRISM 
applications that can generate an alarm but is also available within the 
CMI application for use in scripts.

Multi-Bit Mode: In addition to single bit per status points, PRISM 11 
supports the use of the multi-bit status point, available in DNP and IEC 
protocols. Both modes allow linking of status points to support data 
reported from the field. The storage of multi-bit data as 1 status point 
location, as well as protocols up to 4 bits, are supported in PRISM 11.

NRLIMIT Alarm Type: The standard NLIMIT alarm type in PRISM is 
an analog limit alarm for a point that traverses a set limit on the point, 
with a timestamp that is shown as seconds. The new NRLIMIT alarm 
type in PRISM 11 supports showing the timestamp for the analog limit 
alarm in milliseconds, provided the data from the RTU is time tagged.

Up to ten Study Modes per workstation 

PRISM 11 Benefits at a Glance

• Required to support new PRISM Designer 
display editor

• Improved system performance/speed

• Enhanced alarm/event functionality

• Support for increased system expansion

• Heightened situational awareness for 
operators

• Expanded reporting functionalities

• Enhanced system security features

 PRISM 10 PRISM 11

Performance  
(RTDB changes/sec) 5,000 50,000

Max # of Stations  
Points/Category 10,000 100,000

Control queue: 
buffer size 512 5,000

Max # of GOI  
devices 160 300



PRISM 11 Features

Minsait ACS, An Indra company 
Advanced Control Systems, Inc. 
2755 Northwoods Parkway l Peachtree Corners, GA 30071   
email: info@acspower.com l 800.831.7223 l acspower.com
© 06/2020 Advanced Control Systems, Inc.  

Due to our policy of continuous development, specifications may change without notice.  
Not valid as a contractual item.

Improved Reporting (Greport) 
Several new functionalities have been added in Greport, 
the reporting tool accessed via the PRISM GOI. 

Tag Report: allows filtering of the Ground Tag (TGT) and 
Event Inhibit Tag (TEI) in the Tag Type Column

Attribute Report: two new options have been added to 
the standard Attribute Report: “Stations In Test Mode” and 
“Points In Limit Changes”. A confirmation text label shows 
which one is currently active.

Event Report: adds Data Source Selection with a 
confirmation text label showing which Data Source is 
currently active.

Security-Related Updates
Secure Shell (SSH) is a cryptographic network protocol 
for securely providing access to a remote computer and 
operating network services over an unsecured network. 
SSH commands are encrypted and secure in several 
ways. Both ends of the client/server connection are 
authenticated using a digital certificate, and passwords 
are protected by encryption. With PRISM 11, SSH is now the 
standard when it comes to remote login, making backups, 

and remote file transfer via scp or sftp. The old tools, such 
as rcp, ftp, rsh or remsh, have been replaced with scp, sftp 
and ssh.

Structure Changes and Upgrade  
Impact  
These applications/conversion programs were modified or 
added to aid the transition from PRISM 10 to PRISM 11.

RTDB (DASdb) – Lightweight point

For customers with Topology Processor, PRISM 11  supports 
a reduced-size data item to hold the colorization code 
for line sections in the topology model. This reduces the 
amount of memory that must be allocated for the line 
section points in the Real-Time Database (RTDB).

RTDB Initialization

RTDB Initialization application, rtdbinit, will  initialize 
the Limit Modified Flag attributes, as well as the Rate Of 
Changed Modified (ROCM) attribute.

LibreOffice

LibreOffice  replaced OpenOffice as the standard 
spreadsheet-based reporting tool integrated with 
PRISM. LibreOffice incorporates more features and 
improvements, and includes the same PRISM macros/
interfaces, applications for word processing, spreadsheets, 
presentations, and databases found previously in 
OpenOffice.

SwitchPlan

SwitchPlan replaced Switch Order for DMS applications, 
providing enhanced capabilities for those applications that 
perform automated switching on the network.

Email info@acspower.com for additional product 
specification and pricing information.



OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

City of Jacksonville Beach ● City Hall ● 11 North Third Street ●Jacksonville Beach ● FL 32250 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager 

FROM: Chris Ambrosio, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2065-2020 Emergency Rules and Procedures for City Council 

Meetings and Briefing During Declared Public Health Emergency (COVID-19) 

DATE:  August 24, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

On March 9, 2020, State of Florida Governor Ron DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 

(“EO 20-52”) that declared a statewide Public Health Emergency due to the dangers of COVID-

19, and that authorized local governments to take any prudent action necessary to ensure the public 

health, safety, and welfare.  

On August 7, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-193 which extends 

Executive Order No. 20-69 (previously extended by Executive Orders 20-121, 20-123, 20-139, 

and 20-150) suspending any Florida Statute that requires a quorum to be present in-person or 

requires a local government body to meet at a specific public place and permits local government 

bodies to utilize communications media technology (“CMT”) such as telephonic and video 

conferencing, as provided in Section 120.54(5)(b)2., Florida Statutes, through 12:01 a.m. on 

October 1, 2020. It is widely anticipated around the State that the use of CMT will not be further 

extended by the Governor.  

City Council meetings and briefings are necessary in order to conduct City business and 

governance. Since March 2020, most local governments, including the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

have utilized CMT to conduct governing body meetings and briefings. Starting October 1, 2020, 

the Governor’s suspension will likely terminate. Meanwhile, the public health emergency 

continues. As do the Governor’s, county’s, and the City of Jacksonville Beach’s declarations of 

emergency.  

In order to implement safety measures and mitigation efforts to protect the City Councilmembers, 

City staff and public health, welfare, and safety during City Council meetings and briefings, a 

hybrid format of rules, procedures, and protocols are necessary to allow public access, attendance 

and meeting participation. This proposed Resolution No. 2065-2020 provides rules, procedures, 

and protocols for City Council meetings and briefings that are held during any State, County, or 

City declared emergency during the COVID-19 pandemic.   

REQUESTED ACTION 

Adopt/Deny Resolution No. 2065-2020 to establish and implement rules, procedures and 

protocols for City Council meetings and briefings that are held during any state, county, or City of 

Jacksonville Beach declared emergency during the COVID-19 pandemic. 



Resolution No. 2065-2020 Page 1 of 5 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2065-2020 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH ESTABLISHING RULES, 
PROCEDURES AND PROTOCOLS FOR CITY COUNCIL LIVE 
PUBLIC MEETINGS AND BRIEFINGS DURING THE PERIOD 
OF THE DECLARED PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY 
CAUSED BY COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF 
RECITALS AND LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, REPEAL OF 
INCONSISTENT RESOLUTIONS AND CITY COUNCIL 
DECISIONS, SEVERABILITY, DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, State of Florida Governor Ron DeSantis issued Executive 

Order No. 20-52 (“EO 20-52”) that declared a statewide public health emergency due to the 
dangers of COVID-19, and that authorized local governments to take any prudent action necessary 
to ensure the public health, safety, and welfare; EO 20-52 has been extended through September 
5, 2020 (“Governor’s Declaration”), and officials expect it will be further extended; and  

 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, Duval County/City of Jacksonville Mayor, Lenny Curry, 

issued Emergency Executive Proclamation 2020-001 that declared a state of emergency due to the 
COVID-19 public health emergency in the Consolidated City of Jacksonville, including the City 
of Jacksonville Beach (“City”) (“County’s Proclamation”); on July 29, 2020, Mayor Curry issued 
Emergency Executive Proclamation 2020-006 that extended the County’s Proclamation; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 252.38(3)(a)5., Florida Statutes, on March 13, 2020, the 

City issued a Declaration of a State of Emergency (“City’s Declaration”) to activate and implement 
safety and mitigation measures to protect the health, welfare, and safety of City residents, 
businesses, and staff against COVID-19 risks; the City’s Declaration has continually been 
extended to current date in accordance with Florida law; and 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-69, 
which suspended any Florida Statute that requires a quorum to be present in-person or requires a 
local government body to meet at a specific public place and permitted local government bodies 
to utilize communications media technology (“CMT”) such as telephonic and video conferencing, 
as provided in Section 120.54(5)(b)2., Florida Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, at the City Council meeting held on April 6, 2020, the City Council 
unanimously approved the use of CMT and alternate start times to conduct City Council meetings 
and briefings in order to conduct City business during the public health emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s Declaration, the County’s Proclamation, the City’s 
Declaration, and many other emergency orders have been issued to implement safety measures 
and mitigation efforts to protect the public health, welfare, and safety; and 

 
WHEREAS, public health officials consistently recommend avoiding close physical 

interaction between people in order to slow or help prevent the spread of COVID-19; and the U.S. 



Resolution No. 2065-2020 Page 2 of 5 
 

Centers for Disease Control (“CDC”) recommends social distancing and avoiding large group 
gatherings because the virus spreads through respiratory transmission and contact; and 

WHEREAS, the intent and purpose of the Governor’s emergency orders, the Governor’s 
task force, and applicable CDC guidance, particularly in Phase II of opening the State of Florida, 
is to maintain the recommended safety protocols; and  

 
WHEREAS, official reports and data show that the COVID-19 pandemic continues to be 

a health threat at the national, state, and local levels, and that governments should maintain 
precautionary proactive measures against the health dangers and transmission of COVID-19 to 
protect the public health, welfare, and safety of citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is aware that special unprecedented rules and provisions 

must be made to ensure that City business and governance can occur without unnecessarily 
exposing either City personnel or the public to a risk of infection while ensuring public access and 
open government for City Council meetings and briefings; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 2-194(b)(1) of the City Code of Ordinances allows the procedures 
and formalities otherwise required of the City by law may be waived by the Mayor and City 
Manager jointly, and authorizes them to take whatever action is necessary to ensure the health, 
safety, and welfare of the community during a state of emergency; and  

 
WHEREAS, Section 2-55 of the City Code of Ordinances defines an emergency measure 

as an ordinance or resolution to provide for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
property, health or safety; section 2-56 of the City Code of Ordinances requires the affirmative 
vote of five (5) members of the City Council to enact an emergency measure; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, the Attorney General issued AGO 2020-03 which 
provides that “unless and until legislatively or judicially determined otherwise, if a quorum is 
required to conduct official business, local government bodies may only conduct meetings by 
teleconferencing or other technological means if either a statute permits a quorum to be present by 
means other than in-person, or the in-person requirement for constituting a quorum is lawfully 
suspended by the Governor during the state of emergency”; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 7, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-193 
which extends Executive Order No. 20-69 (previously extended by Executive Orders 20-121, 20-
123, 20-139, and 20-150) suspending any Florida Statute that requires a quorum to be present in-
person or requires a local government body to meet at a specific public place and permits local 
government bodies to utilize CMT such as telephonic and video conferencing, as provided in 
Section 120.54(5)(b)2., Florida Statutes, through 12:01 a.m. on October 1, 2020; and it is 
anticipated that the use of CMT will not be extended past that time; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of Florida Statues, Chapter 252, Emergency Management, as set 

out in Section 252.32(1), Florida Statutes, is “to protect the public peace, health, and safety and to 
preserve the lives and property of the people of this state” and Section 252.32(1)(b), Florida 
Statutes is “to confer upon … the governing body of each political subdivision (any county or 
municipality) the emergency powers provided herein”; and   



Resolution No. 2065-2020 Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 252.46, Florida Statutes, authorizes and empowers municipalities to 
make, amend, and rescind such orders and rules as are necessary for emergency management 
purposes, and to supplement the carrying out of the provisions of the State Emergency 
Management Act (Florida Statutes Sections 252.31-252.60); and  
 

WHEREAS, Section 252.34(5)(c), Florida Statutes, provides that emergency management 
means the preparation for, the mitigation of, the response to, and the recovery from emergencies 
and disasters, and which specific emergency management responsibilities include response to 
emergencies using all systems, plans, and resources necessary to preserve adequately the health, 
safety, and welfare of persons or property affected by the emergency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the policy and intent in Section 252.38, Florida Statutes is that safeguarding 

the life and property of its citizens is an innate responsibility of the governing body of each political 
subdivision, and the power is granted to provide for the health and safety of persons; and 

 
WHEREAS, public City Council meetings are designated as limited public forums by the 

Supreme Court; this allows reasonable regulations, policies or rules that do not attempt to suppress 
speech or a speaker, based on the disagreement with said speaker’s views; and 

 
WHEREAS, under Section 252.46(2), Florida Statutes, this Resolution shall serve as an 

order that will have full force and effect of law when filed in the office of the City Clerk, and all 
existing laws, ordinances, and rules inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution shall be 
suspended during the period of time and to the extent that such conflict exists; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that when virtual/CMT local government meetings are 

no longer authorized by the Governor, it is in the best interest of the health, welfare, and safety of 
the community to adopt this emergency measure Resolution to conduct City Council meetings and 
briefings in order to continue City business in a hybrid format of rules, procedures and protocols 
to allow public access, attendance and meeting participation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 
SECTION 1.  Adoption of Recitals and Legislative Findings. The foregoing recitals and 

legislative findings are deemed true and material parts of this Resolution and are fully incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 

SECTION 2. City Council Meetings and Briefings During the COVID-19 Declared 
State of Emergency.   

I – City Council Meetings. 

A. Effective October 1, 2020, and during the declared state of emergency either on the state, 
county or City level, the City Council meetings will begin at 6:00 p.m., otherwise, all other 
aspects of Sec. 2-16 - Public Meetings, City Code of Ordinances remain in effect.  



Resolution No. 2065-2020 Page 4 of 5 
 

B. Council Members must be physically present in Chambers during any City Council 
meeting in order to vote on any action item, Ordinance or Resolution that is before the City 
Council.  

C. Chambers seating will be configured to allow for social distancing (six feet distance or 
greater) between Council Members, City staff, and the public.  

D. Chamber occupant load capacity will be based on seating arrangement and allowance for 
six feet social distancing. This number will change as the room set up changes. At no time 
will the occupant load be greater than 50% of the normal Chamber occupant load.  

E. Face coverings or masks for all people in Chambers are encouraged and recommended at 
all times. If social distancing cannot be maintained then face coverings or masks will be 
required. 

F. City staff and the public will utilize personal protective equipment (“PPE”) while in 
Chambers. The public is encouraged to bring their own PPE.  The City will have PPE 
available, but cannot guarantee adequate supplies for all meeting participants. 

G. The meetings will be conducted in a hybrid format to allow public attendance and 
participation in-person, and also by using alternative methods.  

H. Public speaker cards will not be used during City Council meetings. A public speaker who 
is present in Chambers may raise his/her hand to be recognized to speak on an agenda item 
or during the courtesy of the floor portion of a meeting. The Mayor will call upon those 
members of the public who wish to speak for a maximum of three minutes.  

I. Citizens may also continue to participate and speak on specific agenda items by submitting 
comments via email, an online submission form, U.S. Mail, or submit in the drop box at 
the East entrance of City Hall before the scheduled agenda meeting. All submissions will 
be read into the record. All submissions become public record. All submissions will be 
limited to three minutes reading time. Submissions should include the speaker’s name and 
address. If the submission is made on behalf of a business then the business name and 
address should be provided. Information on how to use these modes of participation will 
be published to the public on the City Council meeting agenda notices and the City’s 
website.   

J. Members of the public and organizations who attend a meeting in person are encouraged 
to bring the minimum number of persons necessary to speak on that particular item or topic.    

K. City staff are instructed to bring the minimum number of staff needed to address a 
particular agenda item.  

 
II – City Council Briefings. 

A. Effective October 1, 2020, City Council briefings held on the second and fourth Mondays 
of each month will be held virtually using CMT starting at 5:30 p.m.   

B. The public will be provided the options to attend, view, and listen to briefings using CMT.  
  
 



III - City Council Meetings and Briefings. 

A. The City Manager and City Attorney are authorized to take any actions that will ensure 
compliance with the Sunshine Law and to provide technology and administrative support 
as necessary to fulfill these objectives as they relate to City Council meetings and briefings. 

B. These rules, measures, and procedures are designed and intended to follow the CDC health 
safety recommendations/mitigation and to protect the safety, health, and welfare of the 
community, City staff and Council Members. 

C. Pursuant to Florida law, this Resolution shall be deemed permissive regulations that are 
enforceable as law. This Resolution and rules set forth herein may be enforced by the City 
Police Department law enforcement officers, Code Enforcement officials, Fire Marshal and 
their designees. 

D. With the exception of each of the modifications and rules set forth herein, City Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 2 - Administration, A1ticle II - City Council, Division 1 - Generally, 
Division 2 - Rules of Order, and Division 3 - Procedures for adoption of ordinances and 
resolutions, shall otherwise be unchanged and continue to be in effect. 

SECTION 3. Repeal of Prior Inconsistent Resolutions and City Council Decisions. 
All prior resolutions or parts of resolutions, and prior City Council decisions that are in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution 
should be held invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, said determination shall not be held to 
invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect of any other section, sentence, phrase, or portion 
of this Resolution not otherwise determined to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 5. Directions to City Clerk. Upon adoption of this Resolution, the City Clerk 
shall cause the Resolution to be properly filed and recorded in the City Clerk's office. 

SECTION 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
passage and adoption by City Council. 

AUTHENTICATED this_ day of September, 2020. 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Laurie Scott, CITY CLERK 

Resolution No. 2065-2020 Page 5 of 5 



OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

City of Jacksonville Beach ● City Hall ● 11 North Third Street ●Jacksonville Beach ● FL 32250 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager 
 
FROM: Chris Ambrosio, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2020-8147 revising, amending, and adding new sections to City 

Code of Ordinances Chapter 19 – Public Nuisance Abatement 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2020 (Second Reading) 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On August 17, 2020, the City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 2020-8147, 
with a clarification to Sec. 19-7(7) to add “Florida Department of Financial Services prevailing 
legal rate”, in the place of the term of just “legal rate”.  
 
Chapter 19 of the City Code of Ordinances was codified in the 1950s. It is outdated, unfitting, and 
lacking elements vital to the Code Enforcement Department to control and abate public nuisances. 
The current Chapter 19 places significant responsibility of nuisance abatement and code 
enforcement upon the City Manager and City Council, rather than the building official, code 
enforcement officer(s), and Special Magistrate. The building official, code enforcement officer(s), 
and Special Magistrate should be the designated officials charged with securing compliance and 
enforcement of public nuisance abatement. The code hearing procedures should commence 
through the Special Magistrate. The City Manager and City Council should not be implicated as 
decision makers in an appellate challenge of the City nuisance abatement decisions. 
 
The attached Ordinance No. 2020-8147 provides necessary revision, amendment, and new sections 
to Chapter 19 that will: (a) expand the authorities and powers of the building official and code 
enforcement officer(s) to cite, control, prosecute, and abate public nuisances; (b) remove the 
lengthy procedures that place responsibility for code enforcement hearings and review on the City 
Manager and City Council; (c) establish the Special Magistrate code enforcement hearings and 
review processes; and (d) clarify appeals and levy of special assessment lien against property. This 
Ordinance serves the safety, health, and welfare public purposes with improved public nuisance 
abatement code enforcement methods and procedures.   
 
At Council briefing on August 7, the Council requested that a nuisance abatement lien reduction 
policy be developed for presentation to Council.  
  
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Adopt/Deny Ordinance No. 2020-8147 to revise, amend, and add new sections to City Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 19 – Public Nuisance Abatement. 



Page 1 of 11 

 

Introduced by: Council Member Chris Hoffman                      

1st Reading:  August 17, 2020   

2nd Reading:       

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8147      

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES 

OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

TO REFLECT BEST PRACTICES, REGULATIONS, STANDARDS, AND 

PROCEDURES FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 

ABATEMENT; PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, REPEAL 

OF CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville Beach (“City”) has the authority to adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to Art. VIII, § 2 of the Constitution of the State of Florida; and Chapter 166, Florida 

Statutes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 19 – Nuisances, codified in the 1950s, is 

outdated, unfitting and lacking elements vital to the Code Enforcement Department to control and 

abate public nuisances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current Chapter 19 places significant responsibility of nuisance abatement and 

enforcement upon the City Manager and City Council, rather than the building official, code 

enforcement officer(s), and Special Magistrate; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to retitle, amend, and revise Chapter 19 of the City Code of 

Ordinances to reflect best practices, regulations, standards, and procedures for public nuisance 

abatement and enforcement; and  

 

WHEREAS, a new Chapter 19 will: (a) correct conflicts between code enforcement nuisance 

abatement processes and the Special Magistrate hearing process; (b) eliminate lengthy processes 

designated to be handled by the City Manager and City Council; (c) create the Special Magistrate 

enforcement hearing procedure; and (d) provide clarification, modern practices, and additionally 

empower code enforcement officers to secure compliance and enforcement of public nuisance 

abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that this Ordinance serves legitimate government 

purposes, it is a permissible exercise of the City’s powers and authority, and benefits the health, 

safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 

FLORIDA: 

 

SECTION 1. RECITALS AND LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS. The above recitals and 

legislative findings are ratified, correct, and made a part of this Ordinance.   



Page 2 of 11 

 

 

SECTION 2. THAT THE TITLE AND SEC. 19-1 OF CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 

ARE HEREBY AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 1   

 

Chapter 19 – PUBLIC NUISANCES ABATEMENT 

 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

 

Sec. 19-1. – Public nuisance Ddefined.  

 

(1) For the purposes of this chapter, the word “public nuisance” is hereby defined as 

any person doing an unlawful act, or omitting to perform a duty, or suffering or permitting any 

condition or thing to be or exist, which act, omission, condition or thing either:  

(1)a. Injures or endangers the comfort, repose, health or safety of others; or  

(2)b. Offends decency; or  

(3)c. Is offensive to the senses; or  

(4)d. Unlawfully interferes with, obstructs or tends to obstruct, or renders 

dangerous for passage any public or private street, highway, sidewalk, 

stream, ditch, or drainage; or  

(5)e. In any way renders other person insecure in life or the use of property, or 

poses a hazard to people or property; or  

(6)f. Essentially interferes with comfortable enjoyment of life and property, or 

tends to depreciate the value of the property of others.  

 

(2) The maintaining, using, placing, storing, keeping, depositing, leaving, or permitting 

to be or remain on any public or private property or appurtenances, structures, or fixtures of any 

of the following items, conditions or actions are hereby declared to be and constitute a public 

nuisance; provided, however, this enumeration shall not be deemed or construed to be conclusive, 

limiting or restrictive:  

a.   Noxious growth and other rank vegetation such as weeds, grass, vines, 

palmetto scrub, or other similar vegetative growth to a height of 10 inches 

(10”) or more upon any property premises or land within a developed area 

of the City. For the purposes of this subsection, developed area shall mean 

any platted or occupied section of the City abutting a public right-of-way in 

which 25 percent (25%) of the lots in a block or tract have been developed 

by the building of a residential or commercial structure. In addition to the 

declaration of a nuisance in a developed area, the fire marshal may declare 

a lot a nuisance in an undeveloped area under the regulations of the Fire and 

Life Safety Code of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida as adopted by 

chapter 10 of this Code;  

b.   Accumulation of trash, litter, debris, garbage, bottles, paper, cans, rags, 

dead or decayed animal matter; fruit, vegetables, bricks, concrete, scrap 

lumber or other building debris or other refuse of any nature;  

                                                           
1 Revisions to the Code are indicated with strikethrough text to indicate deletions and underline text to indicate 

additions. 



Page 3 of 11 

 

c.   Any condition which provides harborage for rats, mice, snakes, and other 

vermin;  

d.   Any building or other structure which is in such a dilapidated condition that 

it is unfit for human habitation, or kept in such an unsanitary condition that 

it is a menace to the health of people residing in the vicinity thereof, or 

presents a more than ordinarily dangerous fire hazard in the vicinity where 

it is located;  

e.   All unnecessary or unauthorized noises and annoying vibrations, including 

animal noises;  

f.   All disagreeable or obnoxious odors and stenches, as well as the conditions, 

substances, or other causes which give rise to the emission or generation of 

such odors and stenches;  

g.   The carcasses of animals not properly disposed after death;  

h.   The pollution of any public well or cistern, stream, lake, canal, or body of 

water by sewage, dead animals wastes, or other substances;  

i.   Any building, structure, or other place or location where any activity which 

is in violation of local, state, or federal law is conducted, performed, or 

maintained;  

j.   Any accumulation of stagnant water permitted or maintained on any lot or 

piece of ground;  

k.   Dense smoke, noxious fumes, gas, soot, or cinders;  

l.   Neglect or failure to keep in a state of good repair any sidewalk, footway, 

or foot pavement situated upon any public lands lying immediately adjacent 

to the abutting private property by the party owning, occupying or having 

the custody of such abutting premise; or 

m. Stores, allows, or causes waste, debris, materials, or hazardous products in 

an open yard that is visible to the public. 

 

SECTION 3. THAT SEC. 19-2 OF CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 
 

Sec. 19-2. - Illustrative enumeration Enforcement official; right of entry.  

 

The maintaining, using, placing, depositing, leaving or permitting to be or remain on any 

public or private property of any of the following items, conditions or actions are hereby declared 

to be and constitute a nuisance; provided, however, this enumeration shall not be deemed or 

construed to be conclusive, limiting or restrictive:  

(1)  Noxious growth and other rank vegetation such as weeds, grass, vines, palmetto scrub, 

or other similar vegetable growth to a height of ten (10) inches or more upon any premises 

or land within a developed area of the city. For the purposes of this subsection, developed 

area shall mean any platted or occupied section of the city abutting a public right-of-way 

in which twenty-five (25) percent of the lots in a block or tract have been developed by 

the building of a residential or commercial structure. In addition to the declaration of a 

nuisance in a developed area, the fire chief may declare a lot a nuisance in an undeveloped 



Page 4 of 11 

 

area under the regulations of the fire prevention code as adopted by section 10-1 of this 

Code;  

(2)  Accumulation of trash, litter, debris, garbage, bottles, paper, cans, rags, dead or decayed 

fish, fowl, meat or other animal matter; fruit, vegetables, offal, bricks, concrete, scrap 

lumber or other building debris or other refuse of any nature;  

(3)  Any condition which provides harborage for rats, mice, snakes and other vermin;  

(4)  Any building or other structure which is in such a dilapidated condition that it is unfit 

for human habitation, or kept in such an unsanitary condition that it is a menace to the 

health of people residing in the vicinity thereof, or presents a more than ordinarily 

dangerous fire hazard in the vicinity where it is located;  

(5)  All unnecessary or unauthorized noises and annoying vibrations, including animal 

noises;  

(6)  All disagreeable or obnoxious odors and stenches, as well as the conditions, substances 

or other causes which give rise to the emission or generation of such odors and stenches;  

(7)  The carcasses of animals or fowl not disposed of within a reasonable time after death;  

(8)  The pollution of any public well or cistern, stream, lake, canal or body of water by 

sewage, dead animals, creamery, industrial wastes or other substances;  

(9)  Any building, structure or other place or location where any activity which is in violation 

of local, state or federal law is conducted, performed or maintained;  

(10)  Any accumulation of stagnant water permitted or maintained on any lot or piece of 

ground;  

(11)  Dense smoke, noxious fumes, gas, soot or cinders, in unreasonable quantities;  

(12)  Neglect or failure to keep in a state of good repair any sidewalk, footway or foot 

pavement situated upon any public lands lying immediately adjacent to the abutting 

private property by the party owning, occupying or having the custody of such abutting 

premises.  

 

 The building official and code enforcement officer(s) are designated as the enforcement 

officials of this section and the building official or designee are delegated the authority to enforce 

the provisions of this section, including the authority to inspect, issue orders to cause any violation 

of this chapter to be terminated, suppressed, and abated, and impose a lien upon any lot, tract, or 

parcel of benefited property for the actual costs of terminating, suppressing, and abating such 

violation. 

 

(1) Right of entry.  The building official, designees, and code enforcement officer(s) 

shall have the right of entry upon real property and shall be immune from 

prosecution, civil or criminal, for trespass upon real property while in discharge of 

their duties in enforcing the provisions of this section.  The same immunity shall 

inure to the fire marshal, City engineer, and all City employees acting under this 

section, their authorized agents, assistants, and contractors employed on behalf of 

the City in connection with such enforcement. 

 

SECTION 4. THAT SEC. 19-3 OF CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 
 



Page 5 of 11 

 

Sec. 19-3. - Notice to owner to remove, suppress or abate; contents.  

 

Whenever it is made to appear to the city manager building official and/or code 

enforcement officer(s) after investigation that a nuisance exists within the cCity, he they shall 

forthwith prepare an estimate of the total cost of removing, suppressing, or abating the nuisance, 

and cause to be served upon the person owning, occupying, or having the care or custody of any 

lot or parcel of land premises upon or in connection with such nuisance a written notice to remove, 

suppress, or abate the nuisance within twenty (20) days after service of the notice, which notice 

shall:  

 

(1)   Describe the prohibited act, occurrence or condition, in sufficient detail to plainly 

identify same;  

 

(2)   State the legal description of the property on which the same exists or is maintained;  

 

(3)   State the estimated total cost which will in the opinion of the city manager building 

official and/or code enforcement officer(s) cover the total cost of removing, 

suppressing, or abating same;  

 

(4)   The proportion of such cost proposed to be borne by the cCity, if any;  

 

(5)   The proportion of such estimated amount which shall be borne by the owner or 

occupant of the premises involved;  

 

(6)   State that unless such prohibited act, occurrence, or condition has been effectively 

removed, suppressed, or abated on or before the time stated in the twenty 20-day 

notice, the cCity will remove, suppress, or abate the same and assess the cost of so 

doing, or such proportion thereof as it may deem equitable and just, against the 

owner or occupant of the premises involved, provided such assessment shall in no 

event exceed the proportion of the estimated amount set forth in the aforementioned 

notice to be borne by the owner or occupant of the premises involved; and  

 

(7)   That such notice shall be served by hand delivery or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, upon the owner, occupant, or person having the care or custody of the 

particular property involved, if he be found upon the premises or within the cCity, 

and in case the owner, occupant, or custodian, cannot be found within the cCity 

after reasonable and diligent inquiry, such notice shall be posted in a conspicuous 

place upon the premises and a copy thereof mailed to the last known address or the 

address provided in official tax records of such owner, occupant, or person, or agent 

having the care or custody of the land involved.  

 

SECTION 5. THAT SEC. 19-4 OF CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 

 

Sec. 19-4. – Hearings; hearing notices; conduct of hearings; Special Magistrate designated.  



Page 6 of 11 

 

 

The City’s Special Magistrate shall have authority to hold hearings and assess fines against 

property owners and issue orders having full force of law in accordance with this chapter. Any 

person, owning or occupying the property abated, removed or otherwise interested suppressed, 

who objects to the proposed removal, suppression or abatement, or levy of a special assessment 

under this chapter, must present in writing to the city manager building official and/or code 

enforcement officer(s), his/her objections, within ten (10) days of delivery of the mailing or posting 

of the notice and must request a hearing before the city council Special Magistrate as provided in 

Ch. 2, Art. VI, Sec. 2-170, or the person shall have deemed to have consented thereto. The hearing 

shall be on the first regularly scheduled meeting following the request for the hearing. Failure to 

request a hearing or to appear before the Special Magistrate within the prescribed time shall be 

deemed a waiver of the property owner’s rights to appeal administrative action of the City or 

Special Magistrate to abate the nuisance.  After the hearing, the city council Special Magistrate, in 

the exercise of its his/her discretion, may revise, modify, or abandon the proposed action or order 

any additional action.  Action may also be brought in circuit court for abatement of a public 

nuisance.  In addition to lien rights, the City may apply to the court for a money judgment against 

the property owner for the City’s cost to abate the nuisance.  The building official and code 

enforcement officer(s) may initiate any proceeding allowed under this chapter. 

 

(1) The clerk for the Special Magistrate shall schedule the hearings and the code 

enforcement officer(s) shall issue hearing notices: (a) by sending written notice of 

the hearing to the owner and/or operator by certified mail, return receipt requested; 

or (b) by hand delivering the written notice to the owner and/or operator of the 

premises at their last known address at least 15 calendar days prior to the scheduled 

hearing. If an attempt to serve notice upon the owner and/or operator by hand 

delivery or certified mail is unsuccessful, service of the notice of the hearing may 

be made by posting as provided in Section 162.12(2)(b), Florida Statutes, such 

posting to take place not less than 10 days before the scheduled hearing date. The 

owner and/or operator shall be responsible for providing notice, to any tenant, 

lessee, or lessor, of the hearing. 

 

(2) Notice of hearing. The notice of hearing shall include: 

a. Statement of the time, place, and nature of the hearing; 

b. Statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which the hearing is 

to be held; 

c. Reference to the particular sections of the statutes and/or ordinances 

involved; and 

d. Short and plain statement of facts summarizing the incidents complained. 

 

(3) Conduct of hearings: 

a. City staff shall present evidence before the Special Magistrate. 

b. The alleged violator and the City shall have an opportunity to present 

evidence and argument on all issues involved, conduct cross examination, 

submit rebuttal evidence, and to be represented by legal counsel. 

c. The Special Magistrate may consider any evidence, including evidence of 

the general reputation of the place or premises. All testimony shall be given 



Page 7 of 11 

 

under oath and shall be recorded. Formal rules of evidence shall not apply, 

but fundamental due process shall govern the proceedings. Orders of the 

Special Magistrate shall be based upon competent and substantial evidence. 

d. The City shall have the burden of proving the existence of an unlawful 

public nuisance by the greater weight of the evidence. 

e. If the alleged violator(s) has been properly noticed in regard to the hearing 

before the Special Magistrate and fails to appear, the board may proceed 

with a hearing in absentia on the merits of the alleged violation. Any 

findings or orders resulting from such hearing are valid and binding upon 

the owner and/or operator. 

 

SECTION 6. THAT SEC. 19-5 OF CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 
 

Sec. 19-5. – Abatement by city Appeals. 

 

If at the time specified in the notice of section 19-3, the nuisance has not been removed, 

suppressed or abated, the city manager shall remove, suppress or abate the nuisance referred to in 

the notice according to the terms set forth in the notice An aggrieved party, including the City, 

may appeal a final administrative order of the Special Magistrate to the circuit court of Duval 

County. Such an appeal shall not be a hearing de novo but shall be limited to appellate review of 

the record created before the Special Magistrate. An appeal shall be filed within 30 days of the 

date of execution of the order being appealed.  The filing of an appeal shall not constitute an 

automatic stay of the proceedings or abatement of the nuisance without further action by the court. 

 

SECTION 7. THAT SEC. 19-6 OF CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 
 

Sec. 19-6. - Levy of special assessment lien against property to finance and defray costs Removal, 

suppression and abatement of public nuisance by City. 

 

The city council shall, as soon as practicable and within thirty (30) days after the completion 

of work as authorized in this chapter, ascertain and determine the actual cost thereof and the 

respective portions to be borne by the city if any, and the owners or occupants of the property 

involved and thereupon, by resolution, fix, levy and impose a special assessment against the 

property involved at an amount not exceeding either the actual cost of the work, or the estimated 

special assessment stated in the notice, which notice shall specify the following:  

 

(1)  Description of the work performed;  

(2)  Date of completion;  

(3)  Total cost;  

(4)  The proportion of such cost to be financed and defrayed by special assessment;  

(5)  The unit or basis for distribution the amount to be specially assessed among the several 

parcels of property where more than one parcel is liable for assessment;  



Page 8 of 11 

 

(6)  The fact that a lien has been assessed by the city with a complete schedule or breakdown 

of the specific amount of special assessment levied and imposed against and upon each 

respective particular parcel of property involved, showing in detail the description of the 

property, name of owner and amount of assessment as severally and respectively levied 

and imposed;  

(7)  That such liens shall bear interest at rate of eight (8) percent per annum unless paid 

within thirty (30) days after publication of such resolution;  

(8)  That the city clerk shall forthwith have prepared and entered in a lien book maintained 

in his office as an official record, the amount of such lien assessed against each parcel of 

property, the date of completion of such work and such other information as may be 

deemed appropriate;  

(9)  That the city clerk shall cause the resolution to be published by posting, or publication 

in a newspaper, as required by law;  

(10)  That the city shall have, assert and possess a lien, superior to all other claims, except 

taxes, against and upon the property as therein described for the respective amounts of 

such special assessments as indicated above, together with interest and costs of collection;  

(11)  Commanding the tax collector to enforce collection thereof.  

 

If at the time of issuance specified in the notice of section 19-3, the nuisance has not been 

removed, suppressed, or abated, the building official and/or code enforcement officer(s) shall take 

any necessary action to remove, suppress, or abate the nuisance referred to in the notice according 

to the terms set forth in the notice.  

 

SECTION 8. THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 

BEACH, FLORIDA IS HEREBY AMENDED BY ADDING A SECTION, TO BE 

NUMBERED SEC. 19-7 OF CHAPTER 19, WHICH SAID SECTION SHALL READ AS 

FOLLOWS. 
 

Sec. 19-7. - Levy of special assessment lien against property to finance and defray costs incurred 

by City.  

 

All costs incurred by the City to cure any violation of this article shall be a special assessment 

lien against the property and shall be charged and billed to the violator of this article.  The Special 

Magistrate shall, as soon as practicable and within 30 days after the completion of work as 

authorized in this chapter, ascertain and determine the actual cost thereof and the respective 

portions to be borne by the City, if any, and the owners or occupants of the property involved and 

thereupon, fix, levy, and impose a special assessment against the property involved at an amount 

not exceeding either the actual cost of the work, or the estimated special assessment stated in the 

notice, which notice shall specify the following:  

 

(1)   Description of the work performed;  

 

(2)   Date of completion;  

 

(3)   Total cost;  

 



Page 9 of 11 

 

(4)  The proportion of such cost to be financed and defrayed by special 

assessment;  

 

(5)  The unit or basis for distribution of the amount to be specially assessed 

among the several parcels of property where more than one parcel is liable 

for assessment;  

 

(6)  The fact that a lien has been assessed by the City with a complete schedule 

or breakdown of the specific amount of special assessment levied and 

imposed against and upon each respective particular parcel of property 

involved, showing in detail the description of the property, name of owner, 

and amount of assessment as severally and respectively levied and imposed;  

 

(7)   That such liens shall bear interest at the Florida Department of Financial 

Services prevailing legal rate unless paid within 30 days after the special 

assessment is imposed;  

 

(8)  That the City clerk shall forthwith have prepared and entered in a lien book 

maintained in his/her office as an official record, the amount of such lien 

assessed against each parcel of property, the date of completion of such 

work, and such other information as may be deemed appropriate;  

 

(9)  That the City clerk shall cause the assessment of lien to be published by 

posting, or publication in a newspaper, as required by law;  

 

(10)  That the City shall have, assert, and possess a lien, superior to all other 

claims, except taxes, against and upon the property as therein described for 

the respective amounts of such special assessments as indicated above, 

together with interest and costs of collection;  

 

(11)  Commanding the tax collector to enforce collection of the assessment and 

instruct the clerk to take any necessary actions to record and enforce the 

lien. 

 

(12) All liens may be foreclosed by the City. 

 

 

SECTION 9. THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 

BEACH, FLORIDA IS HEREBY AMENDED BY ADDING A SECTION, TO BE 

NUMBERED SEC. 19-8 OF CHAPTER 19, WHICH SAID SECTION SHALL READ AS 

FOLLOWS. 
 

Sec. 19-8. - Article construction. 

 

All powers and rights conferred by this article shall be in addition to and supplemental to 

those conferred by any other general or special laws governing public nuisances and shall be 



Page 10 of 11 

 

liberally construed to effectuate the purpose of this article. Nothing contained in this article shall 

prohibit the City of Jacksonville Beach from abating such public nuisances by any other means. 

This section does not restrict the right of any person to proceed under Section 60.05, Florida 

Statutes, against any public nuisance. 

 

Secs. 19-79 - 19-20. - Reserved.  

 

SECTION 10. THAT SEC. 19-22 OF CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 

 

Sec. 19-22. - Violation.  

 

(a1)   Violation. It shall be unlawful and a violation of this article for a human sign spinner 

to display a human commercial advertising sign while standing or sitting on public 

property or on public rights-of way, by waving, twirling, spinning or otherwise 

using some form of action or movement in a manner whereby a commercial 

advertising message is directed or oriented in whole or in part to any passing 

motorist or vehicular traffic transiting nearby on an adjoining street or highway.  

 

(b2)   Separate violation. Each day that a violation of this article occurs at a location on 

public property or on public rights-of-way shall be deemed a separate violation for 

purposes of the remedies, fines and penalties set forth herein. If a violation of this 

article occurs on the same day at a location on public property or on public rights-

of-way that is more than one hundred (100) feet (100’) from any other location 

where a violation of this article has occurred on the same day, then the violation 

shall be considered a separate violation for the purpose of the remedies, fines and 

penalties set forth herein even though the violation occurred on the same day.  

 

SECTION 11. THAT SEC. 19-23 OF CHAPTER 19 – NUISANCES OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 

 

Sec. 19-23. - Remedies, fines and penalties.  

 

(a1)  Each person that holds or controls a human commercial advertising sign in violation 

of this article shall be responsible for a civil fine and penalty as provided for in 

section 2-174 of the Jacksonville Beach Code of Ordinances.  

 

(b2)  The Jacksonville Police Department and any and all designated code enforcement 

officers are authorized to issue a citation to a person when, based upon personal 

investigation, there is reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a 

violation of this article. A warning notice is not required for the issuance of a 

citation for a violation of this article.  

 



( e}) In addition to the remedies set forth above in this aiticle, the City of Jacksonville 
Beach may seek injunctive or other available civil relief from a court of competent 
the Special Magistrate as provided in Ch. 2, A1t. VI, Sec. 2-170 to compel 
enforcement of the provisions of the article. 

SECTION 12. CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND ACTS. All ordinances and 
resolutions previously adopted or entered into by the City that are in conflict with this Ordinance 
are repealed to the extent inconsistent herewith 

SECTION 13. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, clause or provision of this 
Ordinance is held invalid, the remainder shall not be affected by such invalidity. 

SECTION 14. CODIFICATION. The City Council intends that this Ordinance will be 
made a pait of and codified in the City of Jacksonville Beach Code of Ordinances. 

SECTION 15. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance will immediately take effect upon 
its adoption by the City Council. 

AUTHENTICATED THIS DAY OF , A.O., 2020. -------

William C. Latham, Mayor 

Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

Page 11 of 11 



OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

City of Jacksonville Beach ● City Hall ● 11 North Third Street ●Jacksonville Beach ● FL 32250 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager 

FROM: Chris Ambrosio, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2020-8148 creating a new City Code of Ordinances Chapter 20 – 
Parks, Recreation, and Beach 

DATE:  August 17, 2020 (Second Reading) 

BACKGROUND 

On August 17, 2020, the City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 2020-8148. 
Currently, the City Code of Ordinances has a vacant Chapter 20 – Parks and Recreation. The City 
Attorney, Parks and Recreation Department, and Police Department, suggest that a new Chapter 
20 – Parks, Recreation, and Beach be created and codified. The new Chapter will: (a) provide both 
uniform and park specific local laws, rules, and regulations; (b) codify specified authority and 
enforcement action to specifically address operations, concerns, and issues that the Parks and 
Recreation and Police Departments encounter; (c) establish governing management mechanisms 
to protect City parks, park facilities, and public park users; and (d) create an enforcement provision 
for violators and trespassers. The public should be aware of and provided plainly codified rules 
and regulations for park use. This Ordinance serves a public purpose to provide guests and citizens 
of the City with hospitable, safe, and clean public environments and facilities in which to engage 
in recreational, leisure, and sporting activities.   

At the Council Briefing on August 3, 2020, Council asked whether the Splash Pad would be 
incorporated into Chapter 20. In the past, the Splash Pad season began the weekend of Memorial 
Day and ended the weekend of Labor Day. Currently, the Parks and Recreation Department has 
extended the season to run through the end of October. Next year, the daily water chemical 
maintenance will be performed by a contractor, versus reliance on limited staff availability, which 
will provide greater flexibility in adapting to seasonal demands. The Parks and Recreation 
Department recommends that the Splash Pad is not expressly included in the new Chapter 20 at 
this time.  

REQUESTED ACTION 

Adopt/Deny Ordinance No. 2020-8148 creating a new City Code of Ordinances Chapter 20 – 
Parks, Recreation, and Beach. 



OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

City of Jacksonville Beach ● City Hall ● 11 North Third Street ●Jacksonville Beach ● FL 32250 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager 

 

FROM: Chris Ambrosio, City Attorney 

 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2020-8145 revising and amending City Code of Ordinances 

Chapters 12 and 34 to adapt the City’s Code to new Florida Statute §509.102, 

pertaining to Mobile Food Dispensing Vehicles.  

 

DATE:  September 8, 2020  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

City Code of Ordinances Chapters 12 and 34 address local regulations and permit requirements of 

Mobile Food Vending Vehicles. The City permits the operation of a mobile food vendors in 

Commercial Limited: C-1, Commercial General: C-2, Commercial Service: CS, Central Business 

District: CBD, Industrial:  I-1, and certain commercial Planned Unit Development: PUD and 

Redevelopment District: RD zoning districts within the City.    

 

Florida Statute §509.102 (mobile food dispensing vehicles; preemption) became effective on July 

1, 2020. The Statute defines mobile food dispensing vehicle (“MFDV”), and preempts to the State 

of Florida the area of regulation of MFDV licenses, registrations, permits, and fees. It further 

mandates that a local governmental entity may not require a separate license, registration, or permit 

as a condition for the operation of a MFDV within the entity’s jurisdiction, and that a local 

governmental entity may not prohibit MFDV from operating within the entirety of the entity’s 

jurisdiction. It also provides that the Statute may not be construed to affect a local governmental 

entity’s authority to regulate the operation of MFDV other than the regulations described in 

subsection (2) of the Statute.  

 

The City Attorney and City Departments created a Mobile Food Dispensing Vehicles Application 

Packet, in place of the former Mobile Food Vending Permit Application Packet, in order to adapt 

to §509.102. The City’s Code of Ordinances Chapters 12 and 34 need revision in order to adapt, 

conform, and comply with the Statute. This proposed Ordinance revises and amends those certain 

portions of the Code of Ordinances. When this Ordinance passes final adoption, the Application 

Packet will be revised to account for the adopted Ordinance. On August 24, 2020, the Planning 

Commission recommended approval of the Ordinance to the extent it amends Chapter 34 (LDC), 

and the Commission supports the proposed changes to Chapter 12.   

 

REQUESTED ACTION 

 

Adopt/Deny Ordinance No. 2020-8145 to revise and amend the City’s Code of Ordinances 

Chapters 12 and 34 to conform and comply with Florida Statute §509.102. 



Page 1 of 18 

 

 

Introduced by:  Council Member Chris Hoffman                        

1st Reading:  August 17, 2020   

2nd Reading:       

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8148      

 

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE CHAPTER 20 “PARKS, RECREATION, 

AND BEACH” AND ASSOCIATED SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 

TO PROVIDE UNIFORM AND PARK SPECIFIC CODIFIED LOCAL 

LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS AND SPECIFIED AUTHORITY 

AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS CONCERNING THE CITY’S PARKS, 

PARK PROPERTIES, AND BEACH; PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE 

FINDINGS, REPEAL OF CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 

CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville Beach (“City”) has the authority to adopt this 

Ordinance pursuant to Art. VIII, § 2 of the Constitution of the State of Florida; and Chapter 166, 

Florida Statutes; and 

  

WHEREAS, the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 20 “Parks and Recreation” is currently 

a vacant Chapter with no articles or sections, and serves no meaningful or useful purpose for the 

City, residents, and the public; and 

 

WHEREAS, a proper Chapter 20 is needed to include codified local laws, rules, 

regulations, authority, and enforcement actions concerning operations and management of the 

City’s parks, park properties, and beach; and  

 

WHEREAS, such a new Chapter 20 will provide the City Parks and Recreation 

Department and employees, the Police Department, park users, and the public with explicit  

codified guidance, regulation, and enforcement provisions to manage and protect City parks and 

beach; and  

 

WHEREAS, a new Chapter 20 will in substantial part: (a) provide both uniform and park 

specific local laws, rules, and regulations; (b) codify specified authority and enforcement action to 

specifically address operations, concerns, and issues that the Parks and Recreation, and Police 

Departments encounter; (c) establish governing management mechanisms to protect City parks, 

park properties, and public park users; and (d) create an enforcement provision for violators and 

trespassers; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that this Ordinance serves legitimate 

government purposes, it is a permissible exercise of the City’s powers and authority, and benefits 

the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City of Jacksonville Beach and serves to protect 

and preserve City parks, park property, and the beach for the benefit of the public and citizens. 

 



Page 2 of 18 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 

BEACH, FLORIDA: 

 

SECTION 1. RECITALS AND LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS. The above recitals and 

legislative findings are ratified, correct and made a part of this Ordinance.   

 

SECTION 2. THAT THE TITLE OF CHAPTER 20 “PARKS AND RECREATION” 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS 

HEREBY AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS. 1   

 

Chapter 20 - PARKS, AND RECREATION, AND BEACH. 

 

SECTION 3.  THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 

BEACH, FLORIDA IS HEREBY AMENDED BY ADDING TO CHAPTER 20 ARTICLES 

TO BE NUMBERED “I THROUGH V,” AND ADDING SECTIONS WITHIN SAID 

ARTICLES TO BE NUMBERED “20-01 THROUGH 20-20,” WHICH SAID ARTICLES 

AND SECTIONS SHALL READ AS FOLLOWS. 
 

ARTICLE I. – DEFINITIONS 

Sec. 20-01. - Definitions.  

 

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the 

meanings ascribed to them in this chapter, except where the context clearly indicates a different 

meaning:  

 

Authorized or authorization means that the City Manager or Director of the City Parks and 

Recreation Department must officially approve and authorize requests. Authorized and 

Authorization entails an electronic or written letter, confirmation, or memorandum granting the 

request.  

 

Beach or public beach means all that part of the Atlantic Ocean beach lying between the bulkhead 

line on the west and the Atlantic Ocean on the east and extending to the City limits on the north 

and the south. The area includes the beach walkovers and beach access points.  

 

City means City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida.  

 

Department means the City Parks and Recreation Department.  

 

Director means the Director of the City Parks and Recreation Department.  

 

Golf Course means the City of Jacksonville Beach Golf Course and all its facilities and grounds 

located at 605 Penman Road South, Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

 

                                                           
1 Revisions to the Code are indicated with strikethrough text to indicate deletions and underline text to indicate 

additions. 



Page 3 of 18 

 

 

Organized activity means any planned recreational activity or game having formal organization or 

structure, or any activity or game affiliated with membership in an organization such as a school, 

social organization, or sports league. Organized activity shall not mean informal or casual “pick-

up” recreational activity or games, occurring without regularity or occurring spontaneously or by 

chance.  

 

Park means a park, playground, recreational center or any other area in the City, owned or used 

by the City, and devoted to active or passive recreation. 

 

Park property means all areas, buildings, locations, and facilities described in the definition of 

parks.  

 

Park roads means all surfaced areas designated for vehicular traffic, and passing through any 

legally defined park or recreational area or any part thereof.  

 

Parking area means any designated part of any park road, drive or special area contiguous thereto 

set apart for the temporary parking, standing, or stationing of a vehicle.  

 

Person means any individual regardless of age or gender, corporation, company, association, club, 

society, league, or group that utilize parks and park property.   

 

Vehicle means any wheeled conveyance, whether motor powered (such as an automobile, truck, 

motorcycle, scooter, or moped), or self-propelled (such as a bicycle or tricycle). The term shall 

include any trailer in tow of any size, kind, or description. Exception is made for baby carriages, 

motorized and non-motorized devices required to allow reasonable access to parks or park facilities 

for persons with disabilities, and vehicles in the service of the parks. 

 

ARTICLE II. - GENERAL  

Sec. 20-02. - Surveys of facilities.  

 

The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized and directed to conduct and maintain 

current surveys of all parks and recreational facilities of the City. At each location, he/she shall 

locate and designate all areas which have a specialized function, such as picnic areas, pavilions, 

athletic courts, beaches, playgrounds, or baseball diamonds.  

 

Sec. 20-03. - Interference with personnel.  

 

No person shall interfere with, hinder, or oppose any officer, agent, or employee of the City 

in the discharge of such officer’s, agent’s, or employee’s duties or with the regulation and 

enforcement of the beach and park regulations and rules. 

 

Sec. 20-04. - Violation of closing hours.  

 

No person shall enter or remain on the beach or in parks or on park property without a 

permit during closing hours. No person shall enter or remain on the beach or in parks or 

recreational facilities after such person receives notice of the closing hours from a City employee 



Page 4 of 18 

 

 

acting within the scope of his/her official duties. No person who has violated a park rule shall 

remain on the beach or in a park or recreational facility after a police officer, sheriff’s deputy, or 

City employee acting within the scope of his/her official duties, requests such person to leave or 

vacate a park or park property. 

 

ARTICLE III. - USE REGULATIONS 

Sec. 20-05. – Personal responsibility; necessity for rules and regulations.  

 

It is the responsibility of each person to conduct and participate in recreational activities 

and athletic events at the parks and on park property in such a manner so as to prevent injury or 

loss of life to any person including himself/herself. Therefore, for the public safety, it is necessary 

to prescribe rules and regulations to govern recreational activities and athletic events in parks and 

on public beaches.  

 

Sec. 20-06. - Authority to regulate beaches and park property.  

 

(1)  The City Manager is empowered to exercise discretion to regulate the time, place, 

and manner in which the public beaches, park property, or any portion thereof, are to be used by 

the public and to authorize the posting of signs regulating public use. In so doing, the City Manager 

is to give due regard to the safety and preservation of public property, the number of persons who 

can be safely protected and safeguarded at the particular location, and the public health, safety and 

welfare. City Manager directions given pursuant to the authority contained in this section are 

declared to have the effect of local law and shall be enforced by the City police officers and 

employees.  

 

(2)   Each park shall have at least one prominently posted sign that states the hours of 

operation for that park.  

 

Sec. 20-07. - Domestic animals.  

 

(1) Other than as specifically provided for below, in those park areas where dogs are 

allowed, the dogs shall at all times be restrained and on adequate leashes as set forth in Chapter 5 

of this Code of Ordinances, and all other pets shall be under constant physical control of a person. 

 

(2) At Paws Dog Park only, there are areas designated for dogs off leash. Dogs in these 

designated areas must be accompanied by their owner, be under vocal control, and not cause a 

public nuisance, safety hazard, or harass wildlife.  

 

(3) In the case of dog and other pet defecation on the beaches or park property, the 

owner or person in charge or in control of the dog or other pet shall immediately remove all feces 

deposited by such animal and dispose of same in a sanitary manner as set forth in Chapter 5 of this 

Code of Ordinances. 

 

(4) Notwithstanding the restrictions described in this section, animals engaged in 

training to provide assistance to an individual with a disability, or animals individually trained to 

provide assistance to an individual with a disability, shall be permitted in all public areas and 



Page 5 of 18 

 

 

public facilities. The accommodation of service animals as provided for herein shall at all times 

be in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), 42 USCA § 12101 et. 

seq., and Section 413.08, Florida Statutes.  

 

Sec. 20-08. – Traffic regulations. 

 

Applicable state vehicle traffic laws as contained in Chapter 316, Florida Statutes, shall 

apply in and about all parks, park property, roads, and areas, and in addition thereto the following 

rules shall be applicable on roads and driveways within City parks:  

 

(1)   No person driving, operating, controlling, or propelling any vehicle shall use any 

road or driveway other than the regularly designated park roads or driveways, except when directed 

to do so by a law enforcement officer, directional signs, or a Department employee.  

 

(2)   The operator of any vehicle must obey all signs in regard to speed limits, danger, 

director of traffic, and other traffic rules specifically applicable in park areas.  

 

(3)   All law enforcement officers and Department employees are hereby authorized and 

instructed to direct traffic whenever and wherever needed in the parks and recreation areas. All 

persons shall comply with any lawful order, signal, or direction of law enforcement officers and 

Department employees.  

 

(4)   No person shall drive a vehicle at a speed greater than is reasonable or prudent, 

having due regard for the surface, width, and condition of paving and the traffic thereon. All 

motorized vehicles shall give right-of-way to pedestrians or self-propelled vehicles. Maximum 

speed shall be 15 miles per hour in all parks.  

 

(5)   No person shall cause any vehicle to enter any park except through the designated 

park entrance, except for authorized emergency vehicles when conditions warrant.  

 

(6) No vehicle shall be driven on the beach without permitted approval by the City. 

 

Sec. 20-9. – Parking; servicing, washing of vehicles.  

 

(1)  No person shall park a vehicle on park property other than in the designated parking 

areas or at designated times provided for that particular type of vehicle, unless directed otherwise 

by law enforcement officers, Department employees, or as authorized by the City.  

 

(2)  No person shall double-park any vehicle at any time on any road, parkway, or 

parking area, unless so directed by a law enforcement officer or Department employee.  

 

(3)   No person shall park or station any vehicle in any zone designated and marked “no 

parking” or otherwise marked for restricted use.  

 

(4)  No vehicle shall be left overnight in any park or beach parking lot area unless 

authorized by the City Manager or designee, Director, or in emergencies.  



Page 6 of 18 

 

 

 

(5)    No person shall change any parts, repair, wash, grease, or perform other 

maintenance on a vehicle on any park property except in emergencies.   

 

Sec. 20-10. - Organized activities or potentially dangerous games.  

 

(1)  No person shall engage in any rough or potentially dangerous activity.  

 

(2)  Use of park property is limited to its intended use only, unless permission is granted 

in writing by the City Manager or designee. Skateboarding shall be governed by this section and 

in accordance with Section 20-18 of this Code, as amended from time to time.  

 

(3)  No person shall trespass on or use athletic fields that are posted for use by permit 

only without a valid permit.  

 

(4) No person shall play golf or use golf balls and clubs within any park areas or on the 

public beaches, with the exception of the Golf Course.   

 

Sec. 20-11. – Alcohol and intoxicating substances.  

 

No person shall consume any alcoholic beverage of any form on any park property, except 

as permitted by an alcoholic beverage special event permit as provided for in Chapter 19.5 of this 

Code of Ordinances.  This prohibition shall not apply to any prohibition within a public building 

when rented to private parties, or to the Golf Course, when the sale or consumption of alcoholic 

beverages has been authorized by the terms of any lease or other agreement approved by the City 

council, or to events held pursuant to an alcoholic beverage special event permit. Furthermore, no 

person under the influence of alcohol, any chemical substance set forth in Section 877.111, Florida 

Statutes, or any controlled substance under Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, to the extent that the 

person’s normal faculties are impaired will be permitted entry to park properties; and any person 

so doing, if discovered therein, will be subject to immediate expulsion from City property and 

reported to law enforcement authorities. 

 

Sec. 20-12. – Reserved. 

 

ARTICLE IV – ATLANTIC OCEAN BEACH 

Sec. 20-13. – Atlantic Ocean beach defined.  

 

As used in this Article, the term “Atlantic Ocean beach” shall mean that portion of the City 

contiguous to the Atlantic Ocean dedicated to the use of the public for recreation and extending 

from the easterly ocean bluff line west to the City limits. As used herein, the “ocean bluff line” is 

the easternmost projection of the top edge of the natural vegetated ocean bluff or dune which 

meanders along the shore of the Atlantic Ocean, or as established by a United States Coast and 

Geodetic Survey. In the absence of a clearly defined or recognizable bluff or dune, the City may 

elect to establish an ocean bluff line by measuring west or westerly a distance of 60 feet (60’) from 

the full moon high tide.  

  



Page 7 of 18 

 

 

Sec. 20-14. – Prohibited activities on Atlantic Ocean beach. 

 

(1)   No person shall be nude. Appropriate attire and covering is required.   

 

(2)  No glass.  

 

(3)  No swimming or bathing except between such hours of the day as shall be 

designated or posted by the Department for such purposes.  

 

(4)  No disobeying rules posted by the City, Ocean Rescue, or the City Manager or 

designee.  

 

(5)  No illegal drugs, alcoholic beverages, or unpermitted weapons.  

 

(6)  No open fires, campfires, grills, or other cooking or heating devices.  

 

(7) No fireworks, as defined by Section 791.01, Florida Statutes, with the exception of 

City authorized and permitted public displays of fireworks.  

 

(8)  No unauthorized person shall enter, occupy, or use in any manner any lifeguard 

stand, station, or other City lifesaving equipment at any time.  

 

(9)  No persons or pets shall wash or be washed, with soap or other cleaners, in any 

swimming area or any other public waters, including but not limited to beaches, public showers, 

storm water, lakes or streams.  

 

(10) No unleashed dogs at any time. Dogs on leashes are permitted to be on the beach 

at any hour from October 1 through March 31; and during the hours of 5:00 P.M. through 9:00 

A.M., from April 1 through September 30. 

 

(11) No person shall place or deposit, or permit to be placed or deposited, any human 

waste on the Atlantic Ocean beach. 

 

(12) Unless permitted by the City, no person shall park or operate any motor vehicle on 

the Atlantic Ocean beach.  This prohibition excludes authorized City and emergency vehicles. 

 

ARTICLE V – PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Sec. 20-15. – General park rules and regulations. 

 

(1) Applicable Parks.  The following parks are included in this Article: 

 

12th Avenue South Park 

Carver Center 

Cradle Creek Preserve 

Gonzales Park 

Huguenot Park 



Page 8 of 18 

 

 

Oceanfront Park 

Paws Dog Park 

Penman Park 

Rotary Park 

Seawalk Pavilion and Latham Plaza 

South Beach Park and Sunshine Playground 

Tall Pines Park 

Wingate Park 

 

(2) Hours.  The hours of operation for each City park, as may be amended from time 

to time, are from sunrise to sunset, except for Paws Dog Park, which opens at 5:00 A.M. and closes 

at 10:00 P.M. 

 

(3) Prohibited activities.  It shall be unlawful for any person to do any of the following 

in any park area or any other areas officially designated by the City Council as a park and posted 

as such unless specifically permitted by the appropriate authorization received from the City 

Manager and issued pursuant to this article, except for activities of the City which are undertaken 

within the scope of its governmental authority:  

a. Trespass when the park is closed. 

b. Camp overnight.  

c. Purchase, sell, offer, possess, or consume any alcoholic beverages, except 

in accordance with a special event and supplemental alcohol permit as 

provided in Chapter 19.5 of this Code of Ordinances. 

d. Cook foodstuff on grills other than those public grills provided by the City 

for that purpose. Persons may utilize grills provided by the City only for 

cooking in the designated park areas. No fires or food preparation is 

allowed that pose a hazard to public property or the general public.  

e. Set or stoke a fire, except for City-authorized prescribed burns or those 

fires set or stoked in designated City grills, where they are provided, and 

said fire shall not be allowed if it poses a hazard to public property or the 

general public. 

f. Litter, dump, or fail to remove all trash in the nature of boxes, papers, 

cans, bottles, garbage, and other refuse left or caused in the use of a park. 

If no trash receptacles are provided, then refuse and trash shall be carried 

away from the park area by the park user to be properly disposed of 

elsewhere. 

g. Engage in the defacing, destruction, removal, or alteration of any park 

facility, structure, grounds, or equipment. 

h. Construct or erect any hut, shanty, or other shelter. Park users may set up 

a temporary sun/shade apparatus up to 10 feet by 10 feet (10’ x 10’) in 

size. Such apparatus must be made of flexible material, and any support 

lines which extend beyond the length and width of the covering, must be 

flagged for visibility and cannot be within 15 feet (15’) of any game court, 

sports field, or children’s play equipment. No sun/shade apparatus shall 

remain in place overnight in any park. 



Page 9 of 18 

 

 

i. Disturb the natural surface of the ground in any manner unless authorized 

in writing by the City Manager and done in accordance with a City-

initiated land management activity. 

j. Erect or affix signs to any tree, post, pole, fence, or park facility or grounds 

except as provided by City ordinance, or through an approved facility use 

contract authorized by the City Manager. 

k. To bring or otherwise allow any cat, dog, or other animal into any park 

area, except in a public parking area or registered dogs in Paws Dog Park, 

walkways adjacent to a park, or where otherwise clearly marked by signs 

expressly permitting domestic animals in that area. Service animals that 

are specially trained and actively engaged in service to assist the 

handicapped are exempted from this section.  

l. To allow privately owned animals to discharge or deposit waste. All 

owners or others in charge of privately owned animals shall remove their 

animal waste from the park grounds, and may deposit animal waste in park 

trash receptacles. 

m. To disturb or remove any plant, wildlife, animal, bird, or egg located 

above, upon, or below the surface of the park grounds, or to allow any 

privately owned animal to do so unless specifically authorized in writing 

by the City Manager. 

n. To launch, throw, hurl, or otherwise propel an arrow, spear, BB, pellet, 

slingshot, javelin, or other dangerous object.  This part shall not be used 

or interpreted to regulate firearms, ammunition, or components thereof as 

defined in Chapter 790, Florida Statutes. 

o. Use roller skates, roller blades, or skateboards, except on park facilities 

specifically designated for this purpose. 

p. Use public restrooms to shave, bathe, and/or shower, unless shower 

facilities are specifically provided for public use. 

q. Sleep on park benches, tables, or under any covered areas or pavilion. 

r. Store personal goods or property on park property. 

s. Loiter. 

t. Bathe or otherwise be, use or remain in a water or drinking fountain and/or 

its reservoir or to allow any privately owned animal to do so. 

u. Discharge or deposit human waste, except in toilet facilities provided by 

the City. 

v. Engage in the sale, rental, delivery, demonstration, display, or offering as 

a business promotion any item or service for any non-City sponsored 

function(s), except as otherwise permitted for special events as provided 

by Chapter 19.5 of this Code of Ordinances or administrative rule. 

w. Use any park property for non-City sponsored fundraising activities, 

except as otherwise permitted for special events as provided in Chapter 

19.5 of this Code of Ordinances.  

x. Engage in gambling, conduct raffles, bingo games, or card games for 

money or donations for prizes or any other forms of gambling, whether 

the activity is for charity or otherwise. 



Page 10 of 18 

 

 

y. Play or operate any radio, stereo, public address system, or any other 

sound emitting device in such a manner that the sound produced is audible 

at a distance of greater than 100 feet (100’), unless otherwise permitted 

for special events as provided in Chapter 19.5 of this Code of Ordinances, 

except that no action shall be taken to enforce this part until a warning to 

cease such violation has been issued by a person authorized to enforce this 

chapter and the violator continues such violation. 

z. Refuse to vacate any pavilion, table, building, or other portion of a park 

area that is permitted for the exclusive use of another party as provided by 

a special event permit or temporary rental agreement authorized by the 

City.  

aa. Smoke, vape, or use tobacco products in any park, park property, athletic 

area, playground area, or indoor facility.   

bb. Drive any vehicle on any all-purpose field, including the Golf Course, with 

the exception of carts and devices allowed by the Golf Course staff.   

 

Sec. 20-16. - Huguenot Tennis Center (HTC). 

 

(1) Fees. Charges for the use of the tennis courts at HTC shall be by resolution 

approved by the City Council.  

 

(2) Hours of operation: 

Monday - Friday 9:00 A.M. - 12:00 P.M.; and 3:00 P.M. - 9:00 P.M. 

Saturday and Sunday 9:00 A.M. - 5:00 P.M.  

(The courts may be closed to the public during tournaments or special events). 

 

(3) Fiscal Year Holiday Hours: 

Independence Day - 8:00 A.M. - 1:00 P.M. 

Labor Day – OPEN 

Columbus Day – OPEN 

Veteran’s Day – OPEN 

Thanksgiving – Closed 

Friday after Thanksgiving – Closed 

Christmas Eve – Closed 

Christmas Day – Closed 

New Year’s Eve – 9:00 A.M. - 2:00 P.M. 

New Year’s Day – Closed 

Martin Luther King Day – OPEN 

Easter – Closed 

Memorial Day – OPEN 

 

(4) Rules and Regulations: 

a. HTC is a smoke-free facility. The use of cigars, cigarettes, vapor, or e-

cigarettes in any form is prohibited at HTC, and within 25 feet (25’) of the 

exterior fencing of the facility. 

b. Proper tennis attire is required (shirts must be worn at all times). 



Page 11 of 18 

 

 

c. Only flat-soled tennis specific shoes are allowed on the tennis courts. Cross 

trainers or other running shoes are not permitted for both safety and court 

maintenance and surface conditioning reasons. 

d. No skateboards, scooters, bicycles, or skates are allowed on the courts or 

within the perimeter fencing. 

e. No pets allowed on courts. 

f. Guide or assistance dogs for the handicapped are the only animals that will 

be allowed inside the buildings. 

g. No alcoholic beverages are allowed in any HTC area. 

h. The use, sale, or possession of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances 

is prohibited. Being under the influence of said substances and refusal to 

leave the premises may result in suspension from the facility and/or 

prosecution. 

i. Children must be supervised by parents at all times. Children under the age 

of 12 are not permitted to remain courtside or in the lounge or lobby areas 

unless supervised by a parent or an adult guardian. 

j. No hitting/throwing balls against walls in the facility or climbing on the 

furniture or fences. 

k. Games and excessive horseplay are not allowed on the premises. 

l. Profanity, loud noises, racquet throwing, abuse of City property, and similar 

aggressive behavior will not be tolerated. Failure to comply may result in 

suspension from the facility. 

m. Announcements or flyers for bulletin boards must be submitted to and 

approved by the HTC facility manager. 

n. City and HTC staff are not responsible for personal items left unattended, 

lost, or stolen. 

o. No parking in handicapped designated spaces unless the vehicle is properly 

registered and displays a handicap permit. 

p. Theft or vandalizing of City property or property belonging to a private 

party may result in criminal charges. Guests caught vandalizing property 

will forfeit their rights to the facility and will be prosecuted to the fullest 

extent of the law. 

q. Use of verbal or physical threats toward HTC staff or other patrons or the 

use of offensive, obscene, or illegal conduct is prohibited. Violators will be 

asked to leave the facility. Depending on the severity of the behavior, 

individuals may be suspended from future use of the facility. 

r. Dispose of gum properly by placing it in proper trash receptacles. 

s. Place unwanted, used balls in the recycling containers provided. 

 

(5) Check-in procedures: 

a. All users must sign in at the clubhouse prior to entering a court for play at 

all times (individual play, private lessons, team practices, etc.). 

b. All applicable fees must be paid prior to play. Only checks or cash are 

accepted. 

c. Failure to comply with registration procedures and submission of payment 

may result in interruption of play and forfeiture of court until resolved. 



Page 12 of 18 

 

 

d. Courts will be assigned by HTC staff.   

e. Court time will be limited to one and a half hours for singles and two hours 

for doubles. Anyone wishing to play longer may check in at the clubhouse 

and be added to the waiting list. 

f. A minimum of two courts will be available for walk-up play when all courts 

are playable. In the event there is a limited number of courts available due 

to maintenance, resurfacing, inclement weather, etc., at least two courts of 

the playable courts will be designated for reservation or walk-up play. 

g. Tournament and league matches take precedence over member and/or walk-

up play if at any time all courts are needed for these events. HTC’s 

reservation policy is subject to court availability. Court reservations can be 

made by calling HTC. 

h. Individuals  and instructors may make a reservation for one court up to 

seven days in advance. 

i. Teams may make a reservation for two courts up to seven days in advance. 

j. Reserved courts that have not been claimed and paid for 10 minutes after 

the scheduled time will be released to waiting parties. 

k. Prompt notification of reservation cancellation should be made to HTC 

staff. 

 

(6) Waiting List: 

a. When all walk-up courts have been issued, a waiting list will be started. The 

list will be in order of arrival. 

b. One person is not allowed to be on the waiting list for two courts. If two 

courts are needed, two individuals should sign up on the waiting list. There 

is no guarantee that the courts will be close to each other. 

 

(7) Court Use: 

a. Please be quiet when walking or waiting behind courts. 

b. When claiming a court, wait until the exiting players have finished a point 

or rally before entering. 

c. As a courtesy to players with a reservation following yours, please be ready 

to exit a court at the exact end of your reserved time. 

d. Do not enter adjacent courts (when in use) to retrieve stray balls. Wait until 

your neighboring players have finished a point, and then ask them to return 

your ball. 

e. After play, the court must be cleared of trash, properly groomed with the 

brushes provided, the lines swept, and equipment returned to the designated 

area.    
 

(8) Weather Procedures: 

a. Play will be halted on courts when HTC staff determines the courts are 

unplayable and HTC staff will determine when courts will be playable 

again. 



Page 13 of 18 

 

 

b. If the temperature is 100º or above, or the heat index is 106º or higher, or 

32º or below, any player may halt play. If lightning/thunder is detected, it is 

the players’ responsibility to halt play. 

 

(9) USTA League Team Practices. In the event the majority of the courts are 

unplayable, team practices will be cancelled. If enough courts are playable for each team to receive 

one court, then team practices will be held with each team receiving one court. 

 

(10) USTA League Matches. All league matches are assigned courts at least one day 

prior to the match. Matches scheduled on courts that are playable will go on as scheduled. Matches 

scheduled on courts that are unplayable will be cancelled and will be rescheduled. In the event a 

match is scheduled on a bank of courts where only a portion of those courts are playable, the 

matches should go on as scheduled on the playable courts and the unplayable courts should be 

rescheduled. 

 

(11) Reservations and Individual Play: 

a. In case of inclement weather, all reservations are subject to court 

availability. 

b. If courts are limited due to weather, all individual reservations will be 

cancelled. 

c. Players may contact HTC at 904-247-6221 to find out if courts are available 

for walk-up play. 

 

(12) Rescheduled Matches: 

a. Captains of cancelled matches should use their assigned practice night and 

courts to make up the matches. HTC staff will not schedule make up 

matches on other teams’ practice courts. 

b. Rescheduled matches played on team practice courts will not be interrupted, 

and shall be played until completion. 

c. Rescheduled matches should not be scheduled later than one and a half 

hours before closing. (e.g., no matches scheduled after 7:30 P.M. when 

facility closes at 9:00 P.M.) 

d. Subject to court availability, teams utilizing their allotted two courts for 

make-up matches may also reserve up to two additional courts on the same 

scheduled team practice night. 

 

(13) Host Policies & Procedures: 

a. A full-time HTC staff person must be on site during the event. 

b. Facility should be adequately staffed based on event size and need. 

c. All HTC staff should be knowledgeable of all policies, procedures, 

maintenance, and equipment use. 
 

Sec. 20-17. – Paws Dog Park. 

 

(1) Membership. Membership is required to access Paws Dog Park.  Membership Fees 

shall be established by resolution approved by the City council. 



Page 14 of 18 

 

 

 

(2) Rules and Regulations. Visitors of Paws Dog Park shall follow the rules and 

regulations set forth below. Violators may be subject to removal from the park and park privileges 

may be suspended: 

a. The park is open seven days a week from 5:00 A.M. until 10:00 P.M.  The 

park may be closed for maintenance on Thursdays from 9:00 A.M. until 

2:00 P.M. 

b. No animals other than dogs are permitted in the park. 

c. No dogs under four months of age are permitted in the park. 

d. No food (people or animal), treats, alcoholic beverages, smoking, glass, 

strollers, baby carriers, bicycles, or children’s toys are permitted in the park. 

e. Children under 12 must have close adult supervision at all times. 

f. No more than three dogs per handler are allowed. 

g. All dogs must have current vaccinations, must wear a collar and ID tags at 

all times, and must have a current rabies vaccination tag attached to its 

collar.  Required vaccinations include Rabies, Distemper, Parvo, and 

Bordetella.  

h. Sick dogs are not permitted in the park. 

i. Any Dog declared a “dangerous dog” (per City ordinance) is not permitted 

in the park. 

j. All dogs must be spayed or neutered in order to enter the park. 

k. All dogs must be leashed before entering the park and prior to leaving the 

park. 

l. All dogs must be off leash while inside the park. Choke collars or prong 

collars are not permitted in the park. 

m. Dog owners must be in the park and within view and voice contact of their 

dog(s) at all times. Dog owners must monitor and be responsible for their 

dog(s) at all times. 

n. Dogs must be accompanied by owner or handler at all times. Leaving dogs 

in the park unattended is prohibited. Unattended dogs will be removed by 

Animal Control. 

o. The weight limit for the small dog area is 30 lbs. Dogs less than 30 lbs. are 

only permitted in the small dog area. 

p. Large dogs are not permitted in the small dog area. Dogs 30 lbs. and over 

are only permitted in the large dog area. 

q. Dog waste must be immediately cleaned up and properly disposed of by its 

owner. The dog owner will be fined for failure to comply with this rule. 

r. Aggressive dogs are not permitted in the park. Any dog showing aggressive 

behavior must leave the park immediately without debate. The City Animal 

Control, police, and park staff are authorized to designate dogs as 

“aggressive” and to direct their removal from the Dog Park. 

s. Animals that exhibit a history of aggressive behavior are not permitted in 

the park, to be determined at the sole discretion of the City staff and Animal 

Control Officer(s). 

t. Owners whose dogs are shown to be aggressive may have their membership 

revoked. 



Page 15 of 18 

 

 

u. If dogs are playing rough, displaying excessive dominant behavior, (e.g., 

forcing upon another dog, thrusting, pinning other dogs down, etc.) or 

intimidating other dogs, owners should relocate their dog(s) to a different 

area of the park. If dominant behavior persists, owners are required to 

remove their dog(s) from the park. 

v. Be cautious with dog toys; some dogs do not like to share. 

w. Dog owners are solely liable for injuries or damage caused by their dog(s). 

x. Dog owners must fill any holes dug by their dogs. 

y. Dogs who bark excessively may be removed from the park. 

 

Sec. 20-18. - South Beach Park Skate Park.  

 

(1) Rules and regulations. To ensure the enjoyment, safety, and proper use of South 

Beach Park Skate Park, all persons using the park, including all persons skating or skateboarding 

at specifically designated areas of the park, shall comply with each of the following regulations: 

a. No person under the age of eight years old shall be permitted to utilize the 

skate area unless accompanied by an adult. 

b. No person shall skate or skateboard anywhere in the park except in a posted 

designated skate area. 

c. No person shall skate or skateboard in the designated area of the park unless 

all the equipment is in good repair and safe working order during use. 

d. No person shall skate or skateboard in the designated area of the park when 

the skate surface is wet, when it is raining, lightning, or during maintenance 

periods. 

e. No person shall ride, operate, or utilize any device other than skateboards 

or skates in the skate area. Prohibited devices include, but are not limited 

to, bicycles, scooters, motorized razors, and motorized vehicles. 

f. The park is closed after dark. No person shall enter or be in the park or skate 

area at any time other than during the posted hours of operation for the park 

or when City staff or designated representatives have closed the park or 

skate area.   

g. No person shall place or use any additional piece of equipment, obstacle, 

apparatus, or other material, including, but not limited to, ramps, jumps, or 

rails, within the park or skate area. 

h. No person shall use or engage in profanity, aggressive, reckless or 

boisterous behavior, including, but not limited to, fighting, tandem riding, 

pushing, horseplay, hazing or bullying, or any other activity which could 

endanger the safety of persons using the park. 

i. No person shall use, consume, or have within his/her custody or control, 

food or other beverages, other than water in a plastic container, within the 

skate area. No person shall use or possess glass products within the park. 

j. No person shall use, consume, or have within his/her custody or control, 

alcohol or illegal drugs within the park.  

k. No person shall enter or be in the park or skate area under the influence of 

alcoholic beverages or illegal drugs or with his/her motor skills or judgment 

impaired as the result of any alcoholic beverage or illegal drugs. 



Page 16 of 18 

 

 

l. No person shall engage in graffiti, tagging, or other defacing of the park. 

m. All persons using a park area must place trash in receptacles or containers 

provided. 

n. No person shall disobey the lawful and reasonable order of a police officer 

or City employee in the discharge of such officer or employee’s duties, or 

disobey or disregard the notices, prohibitions, instructions, or directions on 

any park sign, including rules and regulations posted on the grounds or 

buildings in the park. 

o. No person shall interfere with, encumber, obstruct, or render dangerous any 

part of the park. 

p. No person shall destroy, cut, break, deface, mutilate, injure, disturb, sever 

from the ground or remove any growing thing, including but not limited to 

any plant, flower, flower bed, shrub, tree, growth or any branch, stem, fruit 

or leaf thereof, or bring into or have in such person’s possession in the park 

any tool or instrument intended to be used for cutting thereof or any garden 

or agricultural implements or tools which could be used for the removal 

thereof. 

q. No pets are allowed in the skate park. 

r. This is an unsupervised park; skaters, users and observers assume their own 

risks. 

s. Helmets and personal safety equipment are recommended. 

 

Sec. 20-19. - South Beach Park Tennis Court. 

 

(1) Rules and Regulations: 

a. The Department reserves the right to schedule tennis court reservations and 

maintain a reservation schedule in the Department’s administration office. 

b. Residents may use the tennis court on a first come, first serve basis, or may 

make a reservation by acquiring a permit at the Parks and Recreation office 

on weekdays between 8:00 A.M. and 4:00 P.M. 

c. Permit holders are allowed to reserve the tennis court for a 90-minute block 

per day for singles play, and for two hours per day for doubles play. A 

maximum of two reservations may be made at one time. 

d. An additional reservation on the same day may be made only after 

completing your first reservation of the day. 

e. Reservations are not transferable. 

f. While a permit is not required for walk-up play on the tennis court, permit 

holders are considered “first priority” on the court. Non-permitted players 

must relinquish the court to permit holders for the time designated on the 

permit. We strongly encourage reserving a court for tennis play.  

g. All walk-up play begins and ends on the hour. If there are no players on the 

court, and no one is waiting, non-permit holders may begin play 

immediately, but must relinquish the court at the end of the next full hour if 

other non-permit holders are waiting to play. 

h. Non-permitted play is limited to 60 minutes for singles play and 90 minutes 

for doubles play when others are waiting. 



Page 17 of 18 

 

 

i. Tennis instructors must obtain a reservation permit (subject to the same 

terms as other permit holders) and shall pay a fee of $25.00 per 60 minutes, 

or $40.00 per 90 minutes for use of the court. Tennis instructors must 

provide proof of $1,000,000 in Liability Insurance naming the City as an 

additional insured. 

j. Tennis instruction or private/group lessons are prohibited without a permit. 

Violators will be subject to removal by law enforcement officers and may 

lose their privileges for a period of up to 60 days. 

k. All persons using the tennis court do so at their own risk; users agree to hold 

the City harmless from injury and agree to abide by the rules for use of the 

tennis court. The City assumes no responsibility for any accident or injury 

in connection with such use, or for any loss or damage to personal property. 

 

Sec. 20-20. - Enforcement.  

 

(1) Intent. It is the intent of the Department that these laws and regulations be enforced 

in a fair and equitable manner.  All rules and regulations contained in this chapter and permits 

required by this chapter are enforceable by all park employees and law enforcement officers. Those 

properly designated park employees may warn participants of violations and report such violations 

to the proper law enforcement officers for compliance. 

 

(2) Trespass. Any person or group found in violation of any of the laws, rules, and 

regulations of this Chapter shall be ordered to leave all parks, beaches, and recreation facilities for 

a minimum 48-hour period. Any person who fails to leave all facilities, parks, or beaches at the 

time requested may be arrested and prosecuted for trespassing or prosecuted under other existing 

ordinances or laws. Evidence that a violator refuses to leave any park, park property, facilities, or 

beach after being asked to leave by any City employee or law enforcement officer is sufficient to 

establish criminal trespass. 

 

(3) Any person determined by the Director or any law enforcement officer to be a 

violator of this chapter may be ordered by the Director or any law enforcement officer to remain 

out of any park, park property, park facilities, and beach areas for a period of time not to exceed 

six months. Upon being ordered to remain out of any park, park property, facility, or beach area, 

violators shall be entitled to a hearing before the Special Magistrate, in order to appeal the Director 

or law enforcement officer’s decision. The person appealing the Director’s decision may present 

evidence to the Special Magistrate. The request for such hearing must be in writing and 

simultaneously delivered to the Director and City Attorney. This request must be made in writing 

within three days of the order being appealed. Any authorized Department employee or designee 

or any law enforcement officer shall have the authority to enforce these laws, rules, and 

regulations, and to eject any person or group acting in violation of these laws, rules, and regulations 

from any park, park property, lands, or facilities or otherwise revoke their permission to use such 

park, park property, lands, or facilities. 

 

SECTION 4. CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND ACTS. All ordinances and 

resolutions previously adopted or entered into by the City that are in conflict with this Ordinance 

are repealed to the extent inconsistent herewith. 



SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, clause or provision of this 
Ordinance is held invalid, the remainder shall not be affected by such invalidity. 

SECTION 6. CODIFICATION. The City Council intends that this Ordinance will be 
made a paii of and codified in the City of Jacksonville Beach Code of Ordinances. 

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance will immediately take effect upon its 
adoption by the City Council. 

AUTHENTICATED THIS DAY OF ______ , A.D., 2020. 

William C. Latham, Mayor 

Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

Page 18 of 18 



OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

City of Jacksonville Beach ● City Hall ● 11 North Third Street ●Jacksonville Beach ● FL 32250 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager 

 

FROM: Chris Ambrosio, City Attorney 

 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2020-8145 revising and amending City Code of Ordinances 

Chapters 12 and 34 to adapt the City’s Code to new Florida Statute §509.102, 

pertaining to Mobile Food Dispensing Vehicles.  

 

DATE:  September 8, 2020  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

City Code of Ordinances Chapters 12 and 34 address local regulations and permit requirements of 

Mobile Food Vending Vehicles. The City permits the operation of a mobile food vendors in 

Commercial Limited: C-1, Commercial General: C-2, Commercial Service: CS, Central Business 

District: CBD, Industrial:  I-1, and certain commercial Planned Unit Development: PUD and 

Redevelopment District: RD zoning districts within the City.    

 

Florida Statute §509.102 (mobile food dispensing vehicles; preemption) became effective on July 

1, 2020. The Statute defines mobile food dispensing vehicle (“MFDV”), and preempts to the State 

of Florida the area of regulation of MFDV licenses, registrations, permits, and fees. It further 

mandates that a local governmental entity may not require a separate license, registration, or permit 

as a condition for the operation of a MFDV within the entity’s jurisdiction, and that a local 

governmental entity may not prohibit MFDV from operating within the entirety of the entity’s 

jurisdiction. It also provides that the Statute may not be construed to affect a local governmental 

entity’s authority to regulate the operation of MFDV other than the regulations described in 

subsection (2) of the Statute.  

 

The City Attorney and City Departments created a Mobile Food Dispensing Vehicles Application 

Packet, in place of the former Mobile Food Vending Permit Application Packet, in order to adapt 

to §509.102. The City’s Code of Ordinances Chapters 12 and 34 need revision in order to adapt, 

conform, and comply with the Statute. This proposed Ordinance revises and amends those certain 

portions of the Code of Ordinances. When this Ordinance passes final adoption, the Application 

Packet will be revised to account for the adopted Ordinance. On August 24, 2020, the Planning 

Commission recommended approval of the Ordinance to the extent it amends Chapter 34 (LDC), 

and the Commission supports the proposed changes to Chapter 12.   

 

REQUESTED ACTION 

 

Adopt/Deny Ordinance No. 2020-8145 to revise and amend the City’s Code of Ordinances 

Chapters 12 and 34 to conform and comply with Florida Statute §509.102. 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 1 of 12 

Introduced by:                            

1st Reading:       

2nd Reading:       

 

ORDINANCE NO.  2020-8145 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REVISE CHAPTERS 12 AND 34 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA; 

TO ADAPT THE CITY’S CODE TO NEW FLORIDA STATUTE SECTION 

509.102 CONCERNING MOBILE FOOD DISPENSING VEHICLES; 

PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, REPEAL OF 

CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville Beach (“City”) has the authority to adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to Article VIII of the Constitution of the State of Florida; and Chapters 163 and 166, 

Florida Statutes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City permits the operation of a mobile food dispensing vehicle in Commercial 

Limited: C-1, Commercial General: C-2, Commercial Service: CS, Central Business District: 

CBD, Industrial:  I-1, and certain commercial Planned Unit Development: PUD and 

Redevelopment District: RD zoning districts within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City requires a mobile food vendor who desires to operate a mobile food 

dispensing vehicle located on private property within certain City zoning districts to submit a 

completed mobile food dispensing vehicle application and to obtain approval prior to selling food 

to the general public; and 

 

WHEREAS, Florida Statute §509.102 (mobile food dispensing vehicles; preemption) became 

effective on July 1, 2020, it defines mobile food dispensing vehicle, and preempts to the State of 

Florida the area of regulation of mobile food dispensing vehicles licenses, registrations, permits, 

and fees; and  

 

WHEREAS, Florida Statute §509.102(2) further mandates that a municipality, county, or other 

local governmental entity may not require a separate license, registration, or permit as a condition 

for the operation of a mobile food dispensing vehicle within the entity’s jurisdiction, and that a 

municipality, county, or other local governmental entity may not prohibit mobile food dispensing 

vehicles from operating within the entirety of the entity’s jurisdiction; and 

 

WHEREAS, Florida Statute §509.102(3) provides that this section may not be construed to affect 

a municipality, county, or other local governmental entity’s authority to regulate the operation of 

mobile food dispensing vehicles other than the regulations described in subsection (2); and  

 

WHEREAS, the City has revised its mobile food dispensing vehicle information and guidelines 

application packet accordingly to comply with or conform to Florida Statute §509.102, and still 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 2 of 12 

preserve required procedures and regulations for the operation of mobile food dispensing vehicles 

in the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to revise and amend certain portions of its Code of 

Ordinances as set forth in this Ordinance to adapt to and conform with Florida Statute §509.102, 

but still maintain aspects of its mobile food dispensing vehicle application packet and required 

documentation which are still allowed by the State; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that this Ordinance serves legitimate government 

purposes and is in the best interests of the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the 

City of Jacksonville Beach. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 

FLORIDA: 

 

SECTION 1. RECITALS AND LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS. The above recitals and legislative 

findings are ratified, correct and made a part of this Ordinance.   

 

SECTION 2.  CHAPTER 12, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2, SECTION 12-33 OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:1  

 

Sec. 12.33. – Mobile food vending dispensing vehicles. 

 

(1)   Definitions. 

 

b.   Mobile food vending dispensing vehicle means a vehicle-mounted public food 

service establishment that is either self-propelled or otherwise movable from place 

to place. A mobile food vending vehicle is further defined as having, as part of the 

vehicle, a three-compartment sink for washing, rinsing and sanitizing equipment 

and utensils; a separate hand wash sink; adequate refrigeration and storage capacity; 

full provision of power utilities including electrical, LP-gas, or a portable power 

generation unit; a potable water holding tank; and a means for liquid waste 

containment and disposal any vehicle that is a public food service establishment 

and that is self-propelled or otherwise moveable from place to place and includes 

self-contained utilities, including, but not limited to, gas, water, electricity, or liquid 

waste disposal. 

 

c.   Mobile food vendor means any person or business selling food from a mobile food 

vending dispensing vehicle from which food items are sold to the general public.  

 

                                                           
1 Strikethrough text indicates deletions, underline text indicates additions. 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 3 of 12 

d. Operator means the owner, licensee, proprietor, lessee, manager, assistant 

manager, or appointed agent of a public lodging establishment or public food 

service establishment. 

 

e. Public food service establishment means any building, vehicle, place, or structure, 

or any room or division in a building, vehicle, place, or structure where food is 

prepared, served, or sold for immediate consumption on or in the vicinity of the 

premises; called for or taken out by customers; or prepared prior to being 

delivered to another location for consumption. The term includes a culinary 

education program, as defined in Florida Statute §381.0072(2), which offers, 

prepares, serves, or sells food to the general public, regardless of whether it is 

inspected by another state agency for compliance with sanitation standards. 

 

(2) Location, permit, and separation requirements.  

  

a. Mobile food vendors dispensing vehicles may be located on a lot in a Commercial 

Limited: C-1, Commercial General: C-2, Commercial Service: CS, Central 

Business District: CBD, I-1:  Industrial, and certain commercial Planned Unit 

Development: PUD and Redevelopment District: RD zoning districts, as 

determined by the City Planning and Development Department, having six 

thousand (6,000) square feet or more of area, and containing a principal building or 

use. The maximum number of mobile food vendors dispensing vehicles per lot is 

limited as follows: 

i. Maximum of one (1) mobile food vendor on lots having containing six 

thousand (6,000) to forty-three thousand five hundred fifty-nine (43,559) 

square feet of area; 

ii. Maximum of two (2) mobile food vendors on lots having containing forty-

three thousand five hundred fifty-nine (43,559) or more square feet of area. 

 

b.   Mobile food vending permits, unless sooner suspended or revoked, shall be valid 

for an initial period that coincides with the expiration date established for this 

section. 

 

cb. Approved State licenses and permits must be attached to the mobile food vending 

dispensing vehicle where they are readily visible and shall include the name, 

mailing address, and valid phone number of the mobile food vending vehicle owner 

and shall list the addresses and parcel identification numbers where the permit is 

valid. 

 

d.   Routine inspections may be conducted by code enforcement inspectors, building 

code inspectors, fire inspectors, or police officers on each mobile food vending 

vehicle at any time and at any frequency deemed appropriate by the city. 

 

ec. Mobile food vending dispensing vehicles must be located at least one-hundred 

(100) feet (100’) from the main entrance to any eating establishment or similar food 

service business and one-hundred (100) feet (100’) from any outdoor dining area. 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 4 of 12 

This separation requirement shall apply only during the normal hours of operation 

of the eating establishment or similar food service business or outdoor dining area. 

 

fd.  Mobile food vending dispensing vehicles: 

i. are not allowed to Must be located within outside of a required sight 

visibility triangle at the intersection of a driveway, alleyway, or public street 

with another public street as set forth in Chapter 34 of this Code of 

Ordinances;  

ii. or Shall be located no closer than within five (5) feet (5’) of a public 

sidewalk, utility box or vault, handicapped ramp, building entrance, or exit, 

or emergency access/exit way; and  

iii. mMust not locate within any area of the lot that impedes, endangers, or 

interferes with pedestrian or vehicular traffic. Mobile food vending 

dispensing vehicles must be located a minimum distance of fifteen (15) feet 

(15’) in all directions away from a fire hydrant.; and 

iv. May not occupy or prevent access to any handicap accessible parking space. 

 

e.   Mobile food vending vehicles may not occupy or prevent access to any handicap 

accessible parking space. 

 

(3)   Hours of operation, Ssignage and noise.  

 

One (1) free-standing sandwich board or A-frame type sign is permitted on private property 

for each mobile food vendor. The total size of the sign may not exceed forty-two (42) inches in 

height or thirty-six (36) inches in width. No audio amplification is permitted as part of a mobile 

food vending operation. 

 

a. The mobile food vendor or designee must be present at all times during operation 

of the mobile food dispensing vehicle.  Hours of operation are limited to the hours 

between 7:00 a.m. and 3:00 a.m. unless the designated location on the lot 

accommodating the mobile food dispensing vehicle is located within 150 feet 

(150’) of the property line of a dwelling unit in a residential zoning district, in which 

case the hours of operation are limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 

p.m. 

 

b. One (1) freestanding sandwich board or A-frame type sign is permitted on private 

property for each mobile food dispensing vehicle. The total size of the sign may not 

exceed 42 inches (42”) in height or 36 inches (36”) in width. 

 

c. No audio amplification is authorized as part of a mobile food vending dispensing 

vehicle operation. 

 

d. The mobile food dispensing vehicle, signage and any associated outdoor seating 

must be removed from its approved locations during impermissible hours of 

operation; and must not be stored, parked, or left overnight on any public street or 

sidewalk. 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 5 of 12 

 

(4)  Hours of operation Waste Management. 

 

a.   Hours of operation are limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 3:00 a.m. unless 

the designated location on the lot accommodating the mobile food vending vehicle 

is located within one hundred fifty (150) feet of the property line of a dwelling unit 

in a residential zoning district, in which case the hours of operation are limited to 

the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.  The mobile food vendor is responsible 

for the proper disposal of waste and trash associated with the permitted mobile food 

dispensing vehicle operation. City trash receptacles shall not be used for this 

purpose. At a minimum, mobile food vendors must remove all waste and trash from 

their approved location at the end of each day or as needed to maintain the health 

and safety of the public. Mobile food vendors must keep all areas within 25 feet 

(25’) of the vehicles and any associated seating areas clean of grease, trash, paper, 

cups, or cans associated with the mobile food dispensing operation. 

 

b.   The mobile food vending operator or his or her designee must be present at all 

times.  Liquid waste or grease shall be disposed of at an approved location (for 

example, an approved commissary) and shall not be placed in tree pits, storm 

drains, or onto any sidewalk, street, or any other public space. Under no 

circumstances shall grease be released or disposed of in the City’s sanitary or storm 

sewer systems. If at any time evidence of the improper disposal of liquid waste or 

grease is discovered, the responsible mobile food vendor will be required to cease 

operation immediately, clean up the improperly disposed material to the 

satisfaction of the City, and shall not resume operation of the mobile food 

dispensing vehicle until an alternate method of disposal has been approved by the 

City Public Works Department. 

 

c.   The mobile food vending vehicle and any associated outdoor seating must be 

removed from its permitted locations during impermissible hours of operation; and 

must not be stored, parked, or left overnight on any public street or sidewalk.  If the 

proposed commissary is located within the City of Jacksonville Beach, written 

approval for its use from the Public Works Department is required. 

 

d.   With the exception of allowable outdoor seating areas, all equipment required for 

the operation must be contained within, attached to, or within three feet (3’) of the 

mobile food dispensing vehicle; and all food preparation, storage, and 

sales/distribution shall be in compliance with all applicable sanitary regulations.  

 

  



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 6 of 12 

(5)   Waste Management Annual local business tax receipt required.  

 

a. The mobile food vendor is responsible for the proper disposal of waste and trash 

associated with the permitted operation. City trash receptacles shall not be used for 

this purpose. At a minimum, vendors must remove all waste and trash from their 

approved location at the end of each day or as needed to maintain the health and 

safety of the public. Vendors must keep all areas within twenty-five (25) feet of the 

vehicles and any associated seating areas clean of grease, trash, paper, cups or cans 

associated with the vending operation In accordance with Florida Statute §509.102, 

a separate local license and/or permit is not required to operate a mobile food 

dispensing vehicle within the City of Jacksonville Beach.  

 

b. Liquid waste or grease shall be disposed of at an approved location (for example, 

an approved commissary) and shall not be placed in tree pits, storm drains, or onto 

any sidewalk, street, or any other public space. Under no circumstances shall grease 

be released or disposed of in the city's sanitary or storm sewer systems. If at any 

time evidence of the improper disposal of liquid waste or grease is discovered, the 

responsible mobile food vending business will be required to cease operation 

immediately, clean up the improperly disposed material to the satisfaction of the 

city, and shall not resume operation until an alternate method of disposal has been 

approved by the public works department For each vending location, a City of 

Jacksonville Beach annual local business tax receipt shall be applied for, paid for 

and issued before engaging in any business or commercial activity.  A copy of a 

valid local business tax receipt must be clearly displayed on the mobile food 

dispensing vehicle and shall be renewed annually.  

 

c. With the exception of allowable outdoor seating areas, all equipment required for 

the operation must be contained within, attached to or within three (3) feet of the 

mobile food vending vehicle; and all food preparation, storage, and 

sales/distribution shall be in compliance with all applicable sanitary regulations 

To obtain a mobile food dispensing vehicle local business tax receipt, the mobile 

food vendor must provide the City Clerk with a City of Jacksonville Beach mobile 

food dispensing vehicle application packet and evidence of possessing all 

applicable zoning approvals, State of Florida licenses and permits, including, but 

not limited to, the following: 

i. Department of Business and Professional Regulations (MFDV License); 

ii. Florida Department of Health (License);  

iii. Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles (Drivers License(s) 

for the applicant/legal business owner and all authorized mobile food 

dispensing vehicle drivers); and 

iv. City of Jacksonville Beach Fire Marshal fire safety inspection report 

showing vehicle is code compliant with NFPA 1- 50.7, NFPA 96. 

 

(6) Licenses and permits required. For each location, a City of Jacksonville Beach business 

tax receipt for the mobile food vending business must be obtained; and all required State of Florida, 

Duval County, and City of Jacksonville Beach permits, licenses, and business tax receipt must be 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 7 of 12 

clearly displayed on the mobile food vending unit. Prior to the issuance of a City of Jacksonville 

Beach mobile food vending business tax receipt, the vendor shall provide evidence of having 

obtained all applicable State of Florida and Duval County licenses and permits, and obtained 

approval from the City of Jacksonville Beach Public Works Department for the method for the 

disposal of grease within an approved grease disposal facility. A mobile food vending business tax 

receipt shall be renewed annually. 

 

(76)  Application submittal requirements. Applications for the operation of a mobile food 

dispensing vehicle vendor permits must include the following information:  

 

a.   Name, address, telephone number, and email address of the applicant and vehicle 

the owner, where applicable of the vehicle if not the same as the applicant.  

 

b.   Description of the types of food and/or beverages to be sold, proposed hours of 

operation, and mobile food establishment business name.  

 

c.   Color photograph of the mobile food vending dispensing vehicle depicting the its 

current condition of the unit.  

 

d.   Address of proposed vending site(s), including the property address, property 

owner’s name and telephone number, and the name of the principal business located 

on the property where applicable Vending location and property owner 

information, including the legal property/site address(es), parcel identification 

number(s), name, address, emergency telephone number, email address, and 

existing principal business name.  

 

e.   Vending location Ssite plan for each proposed vending site, drawn to scale, 

depicting the following information:  

i.   Total square footage lot area of the property;  

ii.  Location and square footage of the existing principal and accessory use(s) 

and associated parking spaces, where applicable;  

iii.  Proposed location for the mobile food vending dispensing vehicle; and  

iv.  Location of ingress/egress to the site.  

 

f.   Street Aaddress of proposed location to store where the mobile food vending 

dispensing vehicle is stored when not in use.  

 

g.   Copies of all permits and business licenses required by the State of Florida and 

Duval County.  

 

h.   Notarized Fully executed commissary agreement confirming verifying the mobile 

food vendor is operating in conjunction with a licensed commissary in accordance 

with Florida Statutes, where applicable. All commissaries must be pre-approved by 

the city prior to issuance of a mobile food vendor permit.  

 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 8 of 12 

i.   Completed and Nnotarized property owner affidavit signed by each property owner 

indicating that the vendor applicant has permission to vend on his/or her property. 

The affidavit must also indicate that the property owner and acknowledgesing the 

following requirements responsibilities:  

i.   The property owner shall comply with all ordinances regarding solid waste 

disposal, and shall provide the mobile food vendor access to solid waste 

collection on the subject property; 

ii.   The property owner shall require that the mobile food vendors meet all 

applicable federal, state and local statutes, regulations, laws, ordinances, 

rules and codes; including but not limited to permitting requirements 

regarding his/or her specific business; 

iii.   The property owner shall acknowledge that she/he understands the 

regulations governing the mobile food vendors dispensing vehicle and shall 

be held responsible, along with the mobile food vendor, for any zoning code 

violations; and 

iv.   The property owner shall ensure that the property is continuously 

maintained in a neat, clean, and orderly manner.  

 

j.   Proof of business insurance, issued by an insurance company that is licensed to do 

business in the State of Florida, and which protects insures the applicant from 

against all claims for damages to property and bodily injury, including death, which 

may arise from operations under or in connection with the mobile food dispensing 

vehicle vendor.  

 

k. Copy of Jacksonville Beach Fire Marshal Fire Safety Inspection Report showing 

vehicle is code compliant with NFPA 1-50.7, NFPA 96. 

 

l. Completed Mobile Food Dispensing Vehicle Local Business Tax Receipt form. 

 

(87)   Enforcement procedure.  

 

a.   Revocation. If at any time, the State of Florida or Duval County revokes or suspends 

the issued mobile food vending permit, the City of Jacksonville Beach business tax 

receipt for the mobile food vending business will be simultaneously revoked or 

suspended. A mobile food vendor who has his or her permit declared null and void 

or revoked for any of the reasons set forth in this section shall not be allowed to 

reapply for a mobile food vending permit for a period of ninety (90) days after the 

effective date of such action.  Inspections may be conducted by code enforcement 

inspectors, building code inspectors, fire marshal or designee, or police officers on 

each mobile food dispensing vehicle at any time and at any frequency deemed 

appropriate by the City. 

 

b. Other violations. If at any time evidence is provided that a mobile food vending 

business is being operated in a way that does not comply with these regulations, a 

notice of violation shall be issued to the lot owner and mobile food vendor and the 

violation shall be referred to the special magistrate for a hearing and disposition in 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 9 of 12 

accordance with the provisions of Article VI Code Enforcement of Chapter 2 

Administration of this Code of Ordinances If at any time, the State of Florida 

revokes or suspends the issued mobile food dispensing vehicle permit, the City of 

Jacksonville Beach local business tax receipt will be simultaneously revoked or 

suspended. A mobile food dispensing vehicle that has its State license or permit 

declared null and void or revoked for any of the reasons set forth in this section 

shall not be allowed to reapply for a mobile food dispensing vehicle authorization 

or a local business tax receipt for a period of 90 days after the effective date of such 

action. 

 

c.   If at any time evidence is provided that a mobile food dispensing vehicle is being 

operated in a way that does not comply with these guidelines, a notice of violation 

shall be issued to the lot owner and mobile food vendor and the violation shall be 

referred to the Special Magistrate for a hearing and disposition in accordance with 

the provisions of Article VI Code Enforcement of Chapter 2 Administration of this 

Code of Ordinances.  

 

(8) Enforcement procedure Non-transferability.  All mobile food dispensing vehicle operation 

locations approved by the City are non-transferable upon the sale or transfer of ownership 

of the mobile food dispensing vehicle.  All local business tax receipts issued by the City 

are non-transferrable upon the sale or transfer of ownership of the mobile food dispensing 

vehicle.  Each location application for operation of a mobile food dispensing vehicle 

requires separate zoning approval and a separate local business tax receipt. 

 

a. Revocation. If at any time, the State of Florida or Duval County revokes or suspends 

the issued mobile food vending permit, the City of Jacksonville Beach business tax 

receipt for the mobile food vending business will be simultaneously revoked or 

suspended. A mobile food vendor who has his or her permit declared null and void 

or revoked for any of the reasons set forth in this section shall not be allowed to 

reapply for a mobile food vending permit for a period of ninety (90) days after the 

effective date of such action. 

 

b. Other violations. If at any time evidence is provided that a mobile food vending 

business is being operated in a way that does not comply with these regulations, a 

notice of violation shall be issued to the lot owner and mobile food vendor and the 

violation shall be referred to the special magistrate for a hearing and disposition in 

accordance with the provisions of Article VI Code Enforcement of Chapter 2 

Administration of this Code of Ordinances. 

 

  



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 10 of 12 

SECTION 3. CHAPTER 34, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 34-41 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Sec. 34-41. – General. 

 

Mobile food dispensing vehicle means a vehicle-mounted public food service establishment 

that is either self-propelled or otherwise movable from place to place. A mobile food vending 

vehicle is further defined as having, as part of the vehicle, a three-compartment sink for washing, 

rinsing and sanitizing equipment and utensils; a separate hand wash sink; adequate refrigeration 

and storage capacity; full provision of power utilities including electrical, LP-gas, or a portable 

power generation unit; a potable water holding tank; and a means for liquid waste containment and 

disposal any vehicle that is a public food service establishment and that is self-propelled or 

otherwise moveable from place to place and includes self-contained utilities, including, but not 

limited to, gas, water, electricity, or liquid waste disposal. 

 

Mobile food vendor means any person or business selling food from a mobile food vending 

dispensing vehicle from which food items are sold to the general public. 

 

SECTION 4. CHAPTER 34, ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 2, SECTION 34-342 OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Sec. 34-342. - Commercial limited: C-1. 

 

(b) Permitted uses.  

(26) Mobile food vendors dispensing vehicle as defined in and in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 12-33 Mobile Food Vending Dispensing 

Vehicles of Chapter 12 Food and Food Products of this Code of 

Ordinances.  

 

SECTION 5. CHAPTER 34, ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 2, SECTION 34-343 OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Sec. 34-343. - Commercial general: C-2. 

 

(b) Permitted uses.  

(30) Mobile food vendors dispensing vehicle as defined in and in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 12-33 Mobile Food Vending Dispensing 

Vehicles of Chapter 12 Food and Food Products of this Code of 

Ordinances.  

 

SECTION 6. CHAPTER 34, ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 2, SECTION 34-344 OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 11 of 12 

 

Sec. 34-344. - Commercial service: CS. 

 

(b) Permitted uses.  

(20) Mobile food vendors dispensing vehicle as defined in and in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 12-33 Mobile Food Vending Dispensing 

Vehicles of Chapter 12 Food and Food Products of this Code of 

Ordinances.  

 

SECTION 7.  CHAPTER 34, ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 2, SECTION 34-345 OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Sec. 34-345. - Central business district: CBD. 

 

(b) Permitted uses.  

(25) Mobile food vendors dispensing vehicle as defined in and in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 12-33 Mobile Food Vending Dispensing 

Vehicles of Chapter 12 Food and Food Products of this Code of 

Ordinances.  

 

SECTION 8.  CHAPTER 34, ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 2, SECTION 34-346 OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY 

AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Sec 34-346. Industrial district: I-1 

 

  (b) Permitted uses. 

(21) Mobile food vendors dispensing vehicle as defined in and in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 12-33 Mobile Food Vending Dispensing 

Vehicles of Chapter 12 Food and Food Products of this Code of 

Ordinances.  

 

SECTION 9. CONFLICTING ORDINANCES. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 10. SEVERABILITY. It is the intention of the City Council that if any section, 

subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance is deemed invalid or unconstitutional by a court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion will become a separate provision and will not affect the 

remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 11.  CODIFICATION. The City Council intends that this Ordinance will be made a 

part of the City of Jacksonville Beach Code of Ordinances. 

 

SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall take effect upon final reading and 

approval by the City Council for the City of Jacksonville Beach. 



Ordinance No.  2020-8145  Page 12 of 12 

 

AUTHENTICATED THIS _____th DAY OF ___________, A.D., 2020.  

 

 

____________________________________ 

William C. Latham, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Laurie Scott, City Clerk 



 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL  32250 

Phone: 904.247.6231 

Fax: 904.247.6107 

Planning@jaxbchfl.net 

 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Mike Staffopoulos, City Manager 
 
From: Heather Ireland, Senior Planner 
 
Re: Ordinance No. 2020-8149, amending PUD Rezoning Ordinance 

No. 99-7765 governing the property located at 2520-2902 Isabella 
Boulevard, by providing a new project narrative and preliminary 
development plan. (Isabella Office PUD)  

 
Date: August 27, 2020 
  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The subject property is located on the west side of Isabella Boulevard, south of 
Osceola Avenue. The commercial property consists of five (5) existing buildings. 
In 1999 the property was rezoned from Residential, single-family: RS-2 to 
Planned Unit Development: PUD zoning via Ordinance No. 99-7765 (Isabella 
Office Center PUD). Permitted uses listed under the ordinance include business 
and professional offices, financial institutions, insurance and real estate offices, 
travel agencies, and business service offices. In 2008, Ordinance No. 99-7765 
was amended via Ordinance No. 2008-7949 to add two conditional uses to the 
existing list of uses. These conditional uses added were “physical fitness 
facilities” and “dance studios and schools”.  
 
In 2013, an individual vacant lot under separate ownership at the time, and 
situated between the northerly two buildings of the existing PUD (Lot 4, Block 
30) was also rezoned from RS-2 to PUD under Ordinance No. 2013-8030. The 
applicant identified identical permitted uses to the existing Isabella Office Center 
PUD project. The original Isabella Office Center PUD, Lot 4 (vacant), and the 
six (6) existing commercial buildings on the east side of Isabella Boulevard 
(Osceola Professional Center) are now under common ownership.  
 
The six (6) commercial buildings on the east side of Isabella Boulevard were 
rezoned from RS-2 to PUD (Osceola Professional Center PUD) in 2011 under 
Ordinance 2011-8007. The list of permitted uses approved under the 2011 
Ordinance included the same uses as the Isabella Office Center PUD project 
narrative and several others. The property owner now wishes to amend the 
Isabella Office Center PUD to permit the same exact list of uses that are 
permitted in the commercial building immediately to the east in the Osceola 
Professional Center PUD.  The list of proposed permitted uses for the Isabella  
 
Memorandum   



 

2 
 

Ordinance Number 2020-8149 
August 28, 2020              Page 2 
 
 
Office Center PUD is provided in the updated project narrative.  Additionally, the 
property owner is proposing to amend the preliminary development plan for the 
Isabella Office Center PUD to consolidate the two original PUD ordinances and 
include Lot 4.  
 
Adjacent uses include the Osceola Professional Center and multiple-family 
residential to the east, a retention pond, and single-family residential to the 
south, a municipal retention pond to the west, and commercial and single-family 
residential to the north across Osceola Avenue. Considering that the PUD 
amendment request is to permit identical uses that are already permitted in the 
commercial buildings immediately to the east of the subject property, and that 
there are no known issues with the current range and mix uses in the Osceola 
Professional Center, adjacent properties should not be negatively impacted.  
 
The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the 
proposed amendments by the City Council at their August 24, 2020 public 
hearing.  
 
REQUESTED ACTION   
  
Adopt/Deny Ordinance No. 2020-8149, amending PUD Rezoning Ordinance 
No. 99-7765 governing the property located at 2520-2902 Isabella Boulevard, 
by providing a new project narrative and preliminary development plan. 
(Isabella Office Center PUD)  
 



 
Ordinance Number 2020-8149     Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
Introduced by: _____________________ 
1st Reading: _______________________ 
2nd Reading: ______________________ 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8149 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: PUD 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 99-7765, ESTABLISHING A PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT: PUD ZONING DISTRICT, SUPPLEMENTING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING REGULATIONS AND ZONING ATLAS 
FOR THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS 
PROVIDED UNDER CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF SAID CITY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida, heretofore 

enacted and established a Land Development Code and Zoning Atlas for said City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved the rezoning of certain property in the City from 

Residential, single-family: RS-2 to Planned Unit Development: PUD on August 2, 1999 via 
Ordinance No. 99-7765, to establish the Isabella Office Center PUD; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to the Isabella Office Center PUD 

on April 7, 2008 via Ordinance 2008-7949 to amend the project narrative, adding conditional 
uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council also approved the rezoning of certain property in the City 

from Residential, single-family: RS-2 to Planned Unit Development: PUD on September 3, 2013 
via Ordinance No. 2013-8030, to rezone Lot 4, Block 30, Jacksonville Beach Heights to permit 
the same uses as the Isabella Office Center PUD; and 
 

WHEREAS, the owners of all certain property described herein have applied to the City 
Council to amend Ordinance No. 99-7765 to include the subject property of Ordinance No. 2013-
8030 within the Ordinance No. 99-7765 PUD, by amending the preliminary development plan 
and by updating the project narrative to amend the list of proposed uses; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the application, all relevant support 

materials, the staff report, the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and public testimony 
given at the public hearings. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA: 
 
 
 



 
Ordinance Number 2020-8149     Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 
 SECTION 1.  That the City Council has considered the adoption of this ordinance based 
on one or more of the factors listed in Section 34-211(c) of the Land Development Code and 
hereby finds that this amendment will not result in an adverse change in the community in which 
it is located. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That Planned Unit Development: PUD Ordinance No. 99-7765 is hereby 
amended to add permitted uses as identified in the PUD Project Narrative submitted with the 
rezoning application dated July 20, 2020 as attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  
 
 SECTION 3.   That Planned Unit Development: PUD Ordinance 99-7765 is hereby 
amended by providing a new preliminary development plan dated July 13, 2020, and attached 
hereto as Exhibit B; and.   
 
 SECTION 4.  Except as provided herein, all other portions of Ordinance No. 99-7765 
and all other portions of the Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code and Zoning Atlas shall 
remain in effect.  

 
 SECTION 5.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith be and the same 
are, to the extent the same may be in conflict, hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 6.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its adoption and recordation with the 
Clerk of Circuit Court, Duval County, Florida. 
 
 
 
AUTHENTICATED THIS _____ DAY OF ____________________, 2020. 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 
William C. Latham, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Laurie Scott, CITY CLERK 



















OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

City of Jacksonville Beach ● City Hall ● 11 North Third Street ●Jacksonville Beach ● FL 32250 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Chris Ambrosio, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2020-8150, amending Employee Benefits and Leave Policy to 

provide for an additional paid holiday (President’s Day, 3rd Monday in February) 
 
DATE:  September 3, 2020 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In September 2019, the City surveyed similarly situated municipalities regarding their paid 
holidays and benefits. All but one of the municipalities surveyed recognize President’s Day as an 
official paid holiday, whereas the City does not. Attached is a copy of the survey from September 
2019 when the City surveyed similarly situated municipalities. 
 
In order to bring the City’s paid holidays to a level consistent with other similarly situated 
municipalities, the City is recommending that President’s Day, the 3rd Monday in February, be 
added as an official paid holiday for employees and staff. Adding this holiday as a paid holiday 
observed by the City has been fully anticipated for the 2020/2021 Budget. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Adopt/Deny Ordinance Number 2020-8150, amending the City Employee Benefits and Leave 
Policy to provide President’s Day as an official paid holiday for employees and staff. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Paid Holidays Jacksonville 
Beach 

Atlantic   
Beach 

Neptune    
Beach Jacksonville St Augustine St Johns  

County 
Orange   

Park Fernandina 

New Year's Day Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Martin Luther King Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

President's Day N Y Y Y Y Y Y N 

Good Friday N N N N Y Y N Y 

Memorial Day Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Independence Day Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Labor Day Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Veteran's Day Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Thanksgiving Day Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Day after Thanksgiving Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Christmas Eve Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Christmas Day Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Total Paid Holidays 10 11 11 11 12 12 11 11 



Ordinance No. 2020-8150  Page 1 of 2 
   

Introduced by:                            
1st Reading:       
2nd Reading:       

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8150 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING THE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE 
POLICY PROVIDING FOR AN ADDITIONAL PAID HOLIDAY 
(PRESIDENT’S DAY); PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS, 
DIRECTION TO AMEND CITY POLICY, REPEAL OF CONFLICTS, 
SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

  WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville Beach (“City”) has the authority to adopt this 
Ordinance pursuant to Article VIII of the Constitution of the State of Florida; and Chapters 163 
and 166, Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to recruit and retain the most qualified employees and staff 
for the City of Jacksonville Beach; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the benefits and paid leave of comparable cities in 

northeast Florida; and 
 
WHEREAS, the great majority of similarly situated municipalities surveyed recognize 

President’s Day as an official paid holiday, whereas the City does not; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to remain competitive in the marketplace for similarly 

situated municipalities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City recognizes the need for both Union and Nonunion employees and 

staff to enjoy rest, relaxation, revitalization, and time with family; and holidays help provide this 
in addition to stress release, incentive, and mental and physical health benefits for employees.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH, FLORIDA: 
 

SECTION 1.  RECITALS AND LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS.  The above recitals and 
legislative findings are ratified, correct, and are made a part of this Ordinance.   

 
SECTION 2. AMENDMENT OF PERSONNEL BENEFIT AND LEAVE 

POLICIES.  That the Nonunion Employee Personnel Policies and Union Collective Bargaining 
Agreements are amended for recognized holidays as follows: 

 
  



Ordinance No. 2020-8150  Page 2 of 2 
   

SECTION 3.  OBSERVED HOLIDAYS: 
 

DATE HOLIDAY 

January 1 New Year’s Day 
3rd Monday in January Martin Luther King Birthday 
3rd Monday in February President’s Day 
Last Monday in May Memorial Day 
July 4 Independence Day 
1st Monday in September Labor Day 
November 11 Veteran’s Day 
4th Thursday in November Thanksgiving Day 
4th Friday in November Day after Thanksgiving Day 
December 24 Christmas Eve 
December 25 Christmas Day 

 
SECTION 4.  DIRECTION TO AMEND CITY POLICY. The City Council intends 

that this Ordinance will immediately amend the City Employee Benefits and Leave Policy to 
provide for President’s Day, the 3rd Monday in February, an additional paid holiday for employees 
and staff. The City Manager is directed to take any proper action necessary to accomplish this 
amendment.   

 
SECTION 5. CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND ACTS. All ordinances and 

resolutions previously adopted or entered into by the City that are in conflict with this Ordinance 
are repealed to the extent inconsistent herewith. 

 
SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, clause or provision of this 

Ordinance is held invalid, the remainder shall not be affected by such invalidity. 
 

SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance will immediately take effect upon its 
adoption by the City Council. 

 
AUTHENTICATED THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, A.D., 2020.  

 
 
 
____________________________________
William C. Latham, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

 



OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

City of Jacksonville Beach ● City Hall ● 11 North Third Street ●Jacksonville Beach ● FL 32250 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager 
 
FROM: Chris Ambrosio, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2020-8151, amending Chapter 8 - Cemeteries, Sec. 8-2 and Sec. 8-

3 of the City Code of Ordinances to replace the City Clerk as cemetery records 
custodian, with the Parks and Recreation Department, as the proper and actual 
custodian of these records. 

 
DATE:  September 3, 2020 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City Attorney previously submitted, and City Council approved, an ordinance that made 
necessary changes to the cemetery plot forms and to correct certain terms and designations in 
Chapter 8 – Cemeteries, of the City Code of Ordinances. 
 
Currently, Chapter 8 sections 8-2 and 8-3 of the Code of Ordinances improperly designate the City 
Clerk as cemetery records custodian. The Parks and Recreation Department serves as the proper 
and actual custodian of these records. To make the necessary correction in the Code of Ordinances, 
this proposed Ordinance No. 2020-8151 is needed and would accomplish the revision. 
 
The proposed ordinance will serve to clarify the records custodian designation, the processing and 
handling of public records requests, exercise of good record keeping, and improve City cemeteries 
documentation management. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Adopt/Deny Ordinance Number 2020-8151, amending Chapter 8, Sec. 8-2 and Sec. 8-3 of the 
City Code of Ordinances to replace the City Clerk as cemetery records custodian, with the Parks 
and Recreation Department. 
 



Ordinance No. 2020-8151  Page 1 of 2 
 

                                                                                Introduced by:                            
1st Reading:       
2nd Reading:       
 

ORDINANCE NO.  2020-8151 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8, “CEMETERIES,” OF THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, CODE OF ORDINANCES 
BY REVISING THE TITLE AND AMENDING SECTION 8-2. “SAME – 
CITY CLERK TO MAINTAIN RECORD OF GRANTEES, ETC.” AND 
AMENDING SECTION 8-3. “DISINTERMENTS; MOLESTING GRAVES” 
BY CHANGING THE REFERENCE FROM “CITY CLERK” TO “PARKS 
AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT”; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF 
RECITALS, SEVERABILITY, REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES, CODEFICTION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

  WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville Beach has the authority to adopt this Ordinance 
pursuant to Article VIII of the Constitution of the State of Florida; Chapters 163 & 166, Florida 
Statutes; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk maintains several of the City’s records, but it does not 

maintain cemetery records of grantees, or any cemetery records; cemetery records are maintained 
by the Parks and Recreation Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, currently sections 8-2 and 8-3 of the City Code of Ordinances designate the 

City Clerk as cemetery records custodian, however, the Parks and Recreation Department is the 
proper and actual custodian of these records; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Jacksonville Beach finds the proposed 
ordinance will serve to clarify the records custodian designation, the processing and handling of 
public records requests, exercise of good record keeping, and the regulation of City cemeteries. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA: 
 

SECTION 1. RECITALS.  The above recitals are ratified and confirmed as being true 
and correct and are made a part of this Ordinance and adopted.   

 
SECTION 2.  THAT SECTION 8-2 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF 

JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY AMENDED TO READ AS 
FOLLOWS:1 

Sec. 8-2. - Same – City clerk Parks and Recreation Department to maintain record of 
grantees, etc. 

                                                           
1 Words deleted are stricken, words added are underlined.  



Ordinance No. 2020-8151  Page 2 of 2 
 

The city clerk Parks and Recreation Department shall provide a bound book for the 
cemetery record, to be kept by the city clerk Parks and Recreation Department and each deed 
delivered under this chapter shall be duly entered, showing the name of grantee, date, the 
description of the lot, number of grave spaces, date of opening each grave, name of undertaker, 
and such other data as may complete a record of the operation of the cemetery. In the absence of 
original deed such record shall be conclusive on any application for burial in any lot in the 
cemetery. 

 
SECTION 3.  THAT SECTION 8-3 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF 

JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, IS HEREBY AMENDED TO READ AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Sec. 8-3. Disinterments; molesting graves.  
 
All applications for opening any grave shall be made in such form as may be provided and 

prescribed by the city manager and such applications shall be checked for lot described in cemetery 
record book by the city clerk Parks and Recreation Department and endorsed on such applications, 
and it shall be the duty of the city manager to cause the lot to be located on the ground as 
corresponding to the records, and the city manager is hereby authorized to adopt such reasonable 
uniform regulations as deemed essential for the protection, improvement and orderly operation of 
the cemeteries and file the same in the office of the city clerk Parks and Recreation Department, 
and it shall be unlawful for any person to open any grave, bury any body, or disinter any remains 
in the city cemeteries without a permit issued by the city—or commit any act of vandalism, 
willfully molest any grave, plat or markers thereof, or injure or appropriate any trees or growth, 
equipment or property therein and any person who shall violate this provision shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor. 

 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. It is the intention of the City Council that if any section, 

subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance is deemed invalid or unconstitutional by a court 
of competent jurisdiction, such portion will become a separate provision and will not affect the 
remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 5. CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances 

in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed.  
 

SECTION 6. CODIFICATION. The City Council intends that this Ordinance will be 
made a part of the City of Jacksonville Beach Code of Ordinances. 

 
SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect upon final reading 

and approval by the City Council for the City of Jacksonville Beach.  
 

AUTHENTICATED THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, A.D., 2020.  

____________________________________
William C. Latham, Mayor 

____________________________________ 
Laurie Scott, City Clerk 


	CC Meeting Viewing Instructions 200908 
	Agenda Packet Final 090320 CW
	CC 200908 Agenda
	WS 200810 mins Final
	City Manager Mike Staffopoulos called the Budget Workshop to order at 5:00 P.M.
	UPublic Works
	William C. Latham, Mayor

	WS 200811 min Final
	City Manager Mike Staffopoulos called the Budget Workshop to order at 5:04 P.M.
	The Workshop adjourned at 6:30 P.M.

	CC 200817 Briefing Minutes Final
	UCity Manager
	UPublic Works Roadway Condition Strategy
	Bruce Myhre and Mark Nelson, with Jones Edmunds, reviewed the Pavement Management Program [on file] suggestions for the City of Jacksonville Beach.  Director of Public Works Dennis Barron and Project Engineer Kayle Moore reiterated the suggested progr...
	Conversation ensued regarding not using only computer software generated data to evaluate roads, but also include physical inspections.
	UOrdinance 2020-8147, Chapter 19, Public Nuisance Abatement
	City Attorney Chris Ambrosio presented an overview of the recommended and proposed amendments to Ordinance No. 2020-8147, Chapter 19, Public Nuisance Abatement.
	Mr. Ambrosio stated the current ordinance is outdated, no longer fits the City’s needs, and lacks elements on control and abatement for Code Enforcement.
	A possible abatement lien reduction policy would be considered for the City and would be reviewed at a later date if needed.
	Mr. Ambrosio stated the recommended amendments to Ord. No. 2020-8147 would be presented for First Reading at the August 17, 2020, Council Meeting
	UDiscussion on Resuming In-Person Meetings in October
	City Manager Mike Staffopoulos stated Council meetings, special meetings, and briefings for September would continue to be held virtually due to CMT (Communications Media Technology).  Mr. Staffopoulos stated, if the CMT expires for October, he would ...
	Conversation ensued regarding different options, but the consensus of Council was as follows:
	The Briefing adjourned at 6:40 P.M.
	Submitted by:  Jodilynn Byrd
	Administrative Assistant
	Approved:
	William C. Latham, MAYOR
	Date: _______________________________

	CC 200817 Draft Minutes Final
	Authorization to Participate in FLC Legislative Policy Committees and Attend Conference CW 
	Council Memo - Bid No. 1920-07 Lift Station No. 2 8-27-20  CW 
	MEMORANDUM
	TO:  Michael J. Staffopoulos, City Manager
	FROM:  Dennis W. Barron, Jr., Director of Public Works

	#1 LS#2 Engr. Recommendation of Award letter 8-27-20
	#2 LS#2 Engr. Construction-Administration Fee 8-27-20
	#3 LS#2 Bid Tabulation Form 8-27-20
	#1 CCM  Award RFP # 06-1920 Graffiti Abatement CW
	#2 Selection Committee Scoring
	#4 RFP Graffiti Abatement for the City of Jacksonville Beachand Repairs
	City of Jacksonville Beach
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
	CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH,
	FORM 2
	RFP AWARD NOTICE FORM
	City of Jacksonville Beach
	1460A Shetter Avenue, Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250, (904) 247-6229
	1. Company Name:  ____________________________________________
	2. Address Name:  ____________________________________________
	3. City, State and Zip  ____________________________________________
	6. E-mail address:  __________________________________________________________
	PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY
	ITEMS BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH
	Thank you for your proposal.
	CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH
	Contractor:
	FORM 4
	DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE COMPLIANCE FORM
	Vendor’s Signature

	#5 Graffiti Abatement Contract for BioTraits Contracting Inc. CA8.14.20
	A. Preparation of Invoices: Invoices will be prepared in accordance with CONTRACTOR’s standard invoicing practices and will be submitted to the CITY by CONTRACTOR, unless otherwise agreed. The amount billed in each invoice will be calculated as set fo...
	B. Payment of Invoices: Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.
	C. Disputed Invoices: In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, only that portion so contested may be withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be paid.
	A. Workers Compensation Coverage is required.
	B. General Liability Coverage is required for all CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors.
	C. Products and Completed Operations are required for CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors.
	D.  Business Auto Liability Coverage is required for CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors.
	E. Professional Liability is not required.
	F. Pollution Liability required of CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors.
	The CITY requires Pollution/Environmental Liability insurance covering cleanup costs including on-site discovery and third party liability, on-site and off-site third party pollution liability coverage, natural resources damage coverage.
	Limits of Liability:   $1,000,000  Each Pollution Event Limit
	$1,000,000 Aggregate Policy Limit
	G.   Excess or Umbrella Liability Coverage.
	H. Claims Made Coverage – No Gap
	I. Certificates of Insurance

	#6 RFP_06-1920 Biotraits Chemical, Inc.
	#7 Graffiti Abatement Contract for Krystal Klean LLC CA8.14.20
	A. Preparation of Invoices: Invoices will be prepared in accordance with CONTRACTOR’s standard invoicing practices and will be submitted to the CITY by CONTRACTOR, unless otherwise agreed. The amount billed in each invoice will be calculated as set fo...
	B. Payment of Invoices: Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.
	C. Disputed Invoices: In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, only that portion so contested may be withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be paid.
	A. Workers Compensation Coverage is required.
	B. General Liability Coverage is required for all CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors.
	C. Products and Completed Operations are required for CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors.
	D.  Business Auto Liability Coverage is required for CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors.
	E. Professional Liability is not required.
	F. Pollution Liability required of CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors.
	The CITY requires Pollution/Environmental Liability insurance covering cleanup costs including on-site discovery and third party liability, on-site and off-site third party pollution liability coverage, natural resources damage coverage.
	Limits of Liability:   $1,000,000  Each Pollution Event Limit
	$1,000,000 Aggregate Policy Limit
	G.   Excess or Umbrella Liability Coverage.
	H. Claims Made Coverage – No Gap
	I. Certificates of Insurance

	#8 RFP_06-1920 Krystal Conpanies, LLC dba Krystal Klean
	CCM - SCADA Server Upgrade - AAP 9-1-2020 CW 
	Pending Sole Source - Advanced Control Systems
	Agenda Memo Reso. No. 2065-2020 Council meetings and briefings 
	Reso. No. 2065-2020 Council Meetings Briefings final CA.9.2.20
	Ch. 19 Ordinance 2020-8147 Agenda Memo 8.17.20 2nd Reading CW
	Ordinance No. 2020-8147 Public Nuisance Abatement 2nd reading copy 9.3.20
	Memo Ch. 20 Ordinance 2020-8148 2nd Reading 8.17.20
	MFDV Ord. No. 2020-8145 Agenda Memo 9.8.20 1st Reading
	Ordinance 2020-8148 Ch. 20 Parks, Recreation and Beach. second reading 9.3.20
	Ord. No. 2020-8145 MFDV 8.25.20
	MS 8-25-20 CC1 Isabella Office PUD Amend Ord Memo  CW
	Ord 2020-8149 Isabella Office PUD Zoning Amend
	ORDINANCE NO. 2020-8149

	Ordinance 2020-8149 Attachments
	CM - Adding President's Day to Paid Holidays
	Holiday Attachment
	Ordinance No. 2020-8150
	CM - Ord. No. 2020-8151 amend Ch. 8 cemetery
	Ord No. 2020-8151 Amendment to Ch. 8 - Cemetery
	#3  Intent to Award Notification.pdf
	d_RFP_06-1920 Selection Committee Scoring.pdf
	Summary






